
   

 
 

  99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.855.3913    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

 
 
 

New Albany Planning Commission Agenda 
Monday, November 20, 2023 7:00pm 

Members of the public must attend the meeting in-person to participate and provide comment at 
New Albany Village Hall at 99 West Main Street. The meeting will be streamed for viewing 
purposes only via the city website at https://newalbanyohio.org/answers/streaming-meetings/ 

I. Call to order 
 

II. Roll call 
 

III. Action on minutes:   October 16, 2023 
   

IV. Additions or corrections to agenda 
Administration of oath to all witnesses/applicants/staff who plan to speak regarding an 
application on tonight’s agenda.  “Do you swear to tell the truth and nothing but the 
truth.” 

 
V.  Hearing of visitors for items not on tonight's agenda 
 
VI. Cases:   
 

FDP-77-2023 Final Development Plan  
Final development plan to allow for construction of a CME Credit Union with a drive-
through and Crimson Cup Coffee Shop on 2.03 acres located at the southwest corner of 
Beech Road and Smiths Mill Road (PID: 093-106512-00.00). 
Applicant: Brian Wellert  
 
Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for  
FDP-77-2023. 
 
Motion of approval for application FDP-77-2023 based on the findings in the staff report 
with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 

 
VAR-79-2023 Variances 
Variance to eliminate the requirement that there be active and operable doors on the 
Beech Crossing elevation; associated with a final development plan application for a 
CME Credit Union with a Crimson Cup Coffee Shop development generally located at 
the southwest corner of Beech Road and Smiths Mill Road (PID: 093-106512-00.00). 
Applicant: Brian Wellert 

 
Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for  
VAR-79-2023. 
 
Motion of approval for application VAR-79-2023 based on the findings in the staff report 
with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 
 

  

https://newalbanyohio.org/answers/streaming-meetings/


   

 
 

  99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.855.3913    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

VAR-89-2023 Variances 
Variances to C.O. 1154.12(b)(3) to allow both outdoor storage and indoor storage of 
hazardous materials to encroach into the setback where code requires such material to be 
at least 200 feet from all property lines at 3195 Harrison Road (PID: 095-111732-00.000, 
095-111564-00.000). 
Applicant: Tuan Q. Luu with MDG Architecture Interiors on behalf of Rinchem 
Company LLC 

 
Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for  
VAR-89-2023. 
 
Motion of approval for application VAR-89-2023 based on the findings in the staff report 
with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 
 
VAR-104-2023 Variances 
Variances to the Reserve at New Albany PUD text and plat to allow a home extension to 
encroach into the rear setback and conservation easement, and to allow a paver patio to 
encroach into a conservation easement at 7823 Calverton Square (PID: 222-001816). 
Applicant: The Columbus Architectural Studio on behalf of Thad and Susanne 
Perry 

 
Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for  
VAR-104-2023. 
 
Motion of approval for application VAR-104-2023 based on the findings in the staff 
report with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 
 
CU-105-2023 Conditional Use 
Request for a conditional use permit to operate a school located at 7527 and 0 West 
Campus Road and 6005 Nacot Place (PIDs: 222-002055, 222-004975, 222-004626). 
Applicant: Cornerstone Academy Community School, c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq. 
 
Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for CU-105-
2023. 
 
Motion of approval for application CU-105-2023 based on the findings in the staff report 
with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 
 
CU-108-2023 Conditional Use 
Request for a conditional use permit to operate a model home located at 7215 Steeple 
Chase Lane N (PID: 222-005343). 
Applicant: Bob Webb Woodhaven, LLC, c/o Kirk Denyes 
 
Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for CU-108-
2023. 
 
Motion of approval for application CU-108-2023 based on the findings in the staff report 
with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 
 
CU-109-2023 Conditional Use 
Request for a conditional use permit to operate a model home located at 7390 Haven 
Green Lane (PID: 222-005319). 
Applicant: Bob Webb Woodhaven, LLC, c/o Kirk Denyes 
 



   

 
 

  99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.855.3913    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for CU-109-
2023. 
 
Motion of approval for application CU-109-2023 based on the findings in the staff report 
with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 

 
VII. Other business 
 
VIII. Poll members for comment 

 
IX. Adjournment 



   

23 1016 DRAFT PC Meeting Minutes  1 

 
 
 

New Albany Planning Commission 
October 16, 2023 Meeting Minutes - DRAFT 

I. Call to order 
The New Albany Planning Commission held a regular meeting on Monday, October 16, 
2023 in the New Albany Village Hall.  Chair Kirby called the meeting to order at 7:06 
p.m., and asked to hear the roll. 
 

II. Roll call 
Those answering roll call: 
 Mr. Kirby   present 
 Mr. Wallace   present 
 Mr. Schell   present 
 Ms. Briggs   present 
 Mr. Larsen   present 
 Council Member Brisk  present 
 
Having all voting members present, the commission had a quorum to transact business. 
 
Staff members present:  Law Director Albrecht, Engineer Albright, Planning Manager 
Mayer, Planner Nichols, Deputy Clerk Madriguera. 
  

III. Action on minutes:   September 18, 2023 
Chair Kirby asked whether there were any corrections to the minutes from the meeting on 
September 18, 2023.   
 
Hearing none, Commissioner Wallace moved for approval of the September 18, 2023 
meeting minutes as submitted.  Commissioner Briggs seconded the motion.   
 
Chair Kirby asked for discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Wallace yes; Ms. Briggs yes; Mr. Larsen abstain; Mr. Kirby yes; Mr. 
Schell yes.  Having four votes in favor, the September 18, 2023 meeting minutes were 
approved as submitted. 

   
IV. Additions or corrections to agenda 

Chair Kirby asked whether there were any additions or corrections to the agenda. 
 
Planner Nichols said yes.  She stated that, as the commission had read in the staff report, 
the application for Haines Creek was incomplete.  As a result, the applicant has requested 
that their applications scheduled for consideration and public hearing on tonight’s 
agenda, FDP-87-2023, FPL-88-2023, FPL-91-2023, FPL-92-2023, be tabled until the 
November 20, 2023 meeting. 
 
Chair Kirby asked staff to compare the staff report to the minutes from the meeting 
approving the initial development plan. He recalled that there was quite a bit of 
discussion regarding the spacing of the street trees, and that the commission imposed a 
condition requiring tighter spacing of the trees.  He observed that the staff report for the 
final development plan did not seem to incorporate that condition. 



   

23 1016 DRAFT PC Meeting Minutes  2 

Planer Nichols stated that she would check on that. 
 

Chair Kirby asked whether the applications could be tabled with one motion, or whether 
the applications needed to be tabled individually. 
 
Planning Manager Mayer replied that they could all be tabled together. 
 
Chair Kirby moved to table the final development plan and three final plats, FDP-87-
2023, FPL-88-2023, FPL-91-2023, and FPL-92-2023, until the November 20, 2023 
meeting.  Commissioner Schell seconded the motion.   
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he 
asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes; Mr. Schell yes; Mr. Larsen yes; Mr. Wallace yes; Ms. 
Briggs yes.  Having five yes votes the applications were laid upon the table until the 
November 20, 2023 meeting. 

 
V.  Hearing of visitors for items not on tonight's agenda 

Chair Kirby asked whether there were any visitors present who wished to address the 
commission for an item that was not on tonight’s agenda. 
 
Jim Rufo, 9175 Lee Hall Court.  Mr. Rufo stated that he lives in the Tidewater 
community and he was concerned about the Haines Creek development along the Jug 
Road intersection. 
 
Chair Kirby asked Mr. Rufo to pause briefly.  Chair Kirby then administered the oath to 
all present who would be addressing the commission. 
 
Mr. Rufo stated that he had two main concerns about the development.  First was the 
street traffic. The intersection of Central College Road and Jug Road is a tight turn.  The 
amount of large dump trucks and semi-tractor trailers has increased as the result of Intel 
construction.  The dump trucks move quickly, and there have been semis that have turned 
around and, in the process, they have destroyed lamp posts and grass.  He stated that he 
did not feel this location was suited for a 151-home development because it could 
increase traffic by 300 more cars.  He was interested to know whether a road study has 
been conducted.  He also noted the recent uptick in crime.  He had heard that this 
development was supposed to connect to Tidewater via McClellan but was not sure and 
would like to understand more about that.  He saw no indication for sidewalks or trails.  
He continued that his first ask was for a redesign of Central College and Jug Road, and 
that the redesign should include, at a minimum, sidewalks and turn lanes and bike lanes.  
This would promote the healthy lifestyle of New Albany.  His second ask was for a No 
Truck sign on Central College east of 62.  The other main concern was the park space.   
He explained that Tidewater does not have any park space and now this development was 
being proposed without providing sufficient space.  And the fee in lieu of the park space 
was not the fair market value of the land.  His ask here was that the developer be made to 
follow the strategic plan and comply with parkland and open space requirements, and to 
provide sidewalks along Central College.   
 
Chair Kirby responded that city staff is available to go over the fine details of the issues 
he raised. He continued that he believed that there were paths and sidewalks along 
Central College Road.   
 
Planning Manager Mayer confirmed that was correct. 
 



   

23 1016 DRAFT PC Meeting Minutes  3 

Chair Kirby continued, regarding the portions of frontage with no sidewalks, that those 
portions of land are private property not owned by the city.  Until and unless the city is 
granted the land, it cannot install a path or sidewalk. The city’s goal is that all new 
developments have sidewalks/paths.  Thus, he explained that now there are multiple 
fragments of paths that lead nowhere but as the city is granted land and with new 
development the fragments will connect.  Chair Kirby speculated that fair market value of 
the land for the fee in lieu was the reason these applications were tabled.  He encouraged 
Mr. Rufo to chat with staff and elected officials regarding the acquisition of green space 
for Tidewater; and on the issue of connecting with Tidewater he explained that the plan is 
to connect with the next lot over and to minimize curb cuts. He added that city staff could 
speak to the issue of adding sidewalks across private property, but nothing would happen 
until the city was granted permission or the land.  
 
Planning Manager Mayer gave Mr. Rufo his card. 
 
Aaron Underhill, 8000 Walton Parkway, applicant in the Haines Creek applications 
approached the lectern.  He apologized for the inconvenience and let the commission 
know that he could not attend the meeting on November 20, 2023, however he was able 
to attend on December 4, 2023.  He requested that the commission reconsider their 
decision to table the applications until November 20, 2023 and further requested that the 
applications be tabled until the December 4, 2023 meeting. 
 
Chair Kirby asked Law Director Albrecht whether Mr. Underhill had provided new 
information that was unavailable to the commission at the time of their initial 
consideration of the motion to table.  Law Director Albrecht replied yes. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there were any other visitors present who wished to speak on 
an item not on tonight’s agenda, including items laid upon the table. 
 
Hearing none, Chair Kirby moved to reconsider the commission’s decision to table the 
Haines Creek applications, FDP-87-2023, FPL-88-2023, FPL-91-2023, FPL-93-2023, 
until the November 20, 2023 meeting.  Commissioner Larsen seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to 
hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes; Mr. Larsen yes; Mr. Schell yes; Mr. Wallace yes; Ms. 
Briggs.  Having five yes votes, the motion for reconsideration was granted. 
 
Commissioner Wallace moved to table the Haines Creek applications, FDP-87-2023, 
FPL-88-2023, FPL-91-2023, FPL-93-2023, until the December 4, 2023 meeting.  
Commissioner Briggs seconded the motion.   
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he 
asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Wallace yes; Ms. Briggs yes; Mr. Kirby yes; Mr. Larsen yes; Mr. 
Schell yes.  Having five yes votes, the Haines Creek applications were laid upon the table 
until the meeting on December 4, 2023. 

 
VI. Cases:   
 

FDP-84-2023 Final Development Plan Amendment 
Final development plan amendment to allow for site circulation modifications to a 
previously approved carry-out food and beverage establishment with a drive-through 
facility on approximately 2+/- acres located immediately north of Johnstown Road and 



   

23 1016 DRAFT PC Meeting Minutes  4 

generally south of the intersection at Bevelhymer Road and Walton Parkway (PID: 222-
004463). 
Applicant: Prime AE Group, c/o Steve Fox 
 
Planner Nichols delivered the staff report. As part of the staff presentation Planner 
Nichols also stated that one thing not brought up in the written staff report is the need for 
a cross-access easement along the new two-way drive. Staff recommends that the 
planning commission require this cross-access easement.  

 
Chair Kirby confirmed that staff was requesting a third condition, a cross access 
easement, that was not in the staff report. 
 
Planner Nichols stated yes. 
 
Chair Kirby asked to hear from engineering. 
 
Development Engineer Albright delivered the engineering report. 
 
Commissioner Wallace clarified that the staff report had a five-foot shortening distance 
that was not present in the engineering memo.  He wanted to clarify that the condition 
should specify five feet.  He further noted that the condition in the staff report regarding 
the southern curb cut did not include the use of signage prohibiting U-turns from the 
north drive aisle as stated in the engineering comments. 
 
Planner Nichols answered yes and stated she would include those items in the Record of 
Action. 
 
Chair Kirby asked to hear from the applicant. 
 
Applicant Steve Fox, Civil Engineer 8415 Pulsar Place 43230, spoke in support of the 
application and explained that the modifications were intended to improve circulation and 
that he agreed with the conditions in the staff report.  He stated that at this time they were 
uncertain about what would happen with the property to the north. 
 
Commissioner Schell asked Mr. Fox whether he owned both parcels. 
 
Mr. Fox replied that it was actually one parcel, but it may be split in the future.  He 
further stated that in the event the lot was split, they had no problem providing the cross-
access easement. 
 
Chair Kirby requested that staff note that in order to be sure that the cross easement is 
added as a condition of approval of an application for the lot split. 
 
Planning Manager Mayer replied that it was a good idea to make that a condition of 
approval, and that staff will work with the applicant. 
 
Chair Kirby asked who was responsible for the maintenance on the shared private drives, 
and asked whether it was monetarily split. 
 
Mr. Fox replied that he thought it was pro-rated among the property owners. 
 
Greg Munster, the owner of the Wealth Center at 9835 Johnstown Road, stated that he 
was not sure about that.  He stated that he is concerned about the maintenance of the 
private drives in this area and was hopeful that the business park will take over the 
maintenance; he has reached out the NACO and they are considering it.  The traffic has 
changed, the ingress and egress has changed and he was concerned about the cost of 



   

23 1016 DRAFT PC Meeting Minutes  5 

plowing and maintenance.  He further noted an area on the site plan that he thought 
would include more trees for screening. 
 
Applicant and property owner Tom Brigdon, 387 Livingston Avenue 43215, explained 
that they have always and will continue to maintain the southern road. 
 
Mr. Munster explained that what he was actually saying was that he thought it was time 
for the business park to take over maintenance.  And, the southern road was not the area 
he was expressing concern about, he was concerned about the increase in traffic from 
Walton Parkway and maintenance of the northern and eastern private drives.  This was a 
maturing business area and needed to be treated as such. 
 
Commissioner Schell noted that Mr. Munster mentioned that he had contacted the New 
Albany Company (NACO), and asked what their response was. 
 
Mr. Munster responded that NACO thought it made sense, but nothing was put in 
writing.  He further noted that there are other areas further north that are maintained by 
the business park. 
 
Commissioner Schell asked whether he was currently spending money on maintenance. 
 
Mr. Munster responded that he has spent money from time to time when it needed 
plowing, but the roads are old and through traffic load is increasing.  In addition, there is 
construction traffic, which happens, but he does not feel he should have to pay for it. 
 
Commissioner Schell responded that from one business owner to another, whether Mr. 
Munster would agree that the increase in traffic increased the visibility of his business, 
which was not horrible. 
 
Mr. Munster agreed that in the longer term it would be beneficial. 
 
Commissioner Briggs asked Law Director Albrecht whether he had a comment. 
 
Law Director Albrecht stated that making the private road a city road is not within the 
jurisdiction of what the commission would be deciding tonight.  The commission could 
hear the concerns but he wanted to be clear about the role of the commission. 
 
Chair Kirby replied that reasonable conditions on the property being considered are 
within the purview of the commission and asked whether Mr. Fox would be willing for 
the two-way driveway to be a public right of way. 
 
Mr. Fox responded that he could not commit to that because it is jointly owned property 
and there are restrictions on the property. 
 
Chair Kirby asked staff how close the two-lane drive way was to meeting the 
construction standards for a public right of way. 
 
Planning Manager Mayer replied that the city standards per the Strategic Plan for a public 
street included connectivity, street typology – the street scape and trees, and construction 
standards.  He was unsure whether this would meet those criteria but stated that New 
Albany has private streets serving as secondary streets in retail areas.  He continued that 
private streets serve an important role for connectivity.  He stated that he would research 
the issue but did not believe it was built to public right of way standards, based on its 
character and location. 
 



   

23 1016 DRAFT PC Meeting Minutes  6 

Development Engineer Albright agreed with Planning Manager Mayer.  He was not sure 
but speculated that it does not meet public right of way standards. 
 
Chair Kirby responded that for the applicants’ purposes and for the neighbor’s purposes it 
was possible that this was not desirable as a public street and it was not built to the 
standard of a public street.  Thus, it was not unlikely that it would remain a private road.  
He also noted that the city’s batting average on this issue was not perfect, it was working 
out well around the hotels, but not as well around Keswick.  For staff, he added, that the 
commission’s objective was to plan for roads that work and to minimize tension among 
the owners. 
 
Chair Kirby asked for further questions from the commission and the public. 
 
Mr. Munster stated that he would like to revisit the green space.  He continued that he 
recalled seeing a rendering with more green space. 
 
Mr. Fox stated that perhaps there was less green space because he had to include more 
parking. 
 
Mr. Munster then asked the applicant whether he would be opposed to adding trees to his 
property. 
 
Planner Nichols then stated that the existing approved landscape plan had trees and 
shrubs on the east side.  
 
Chair Kirby asked for further questions and comments.  Hearing none, Chair Kirby stated 
that he heard three conditions.  One was the basic cross access easement, another was 
about the sign prohibiting U-turns, and no lot split without a cross-access easement to the 
new lot.  
 
Commissioner Briggs asked whether a condition confirming the trees needed to be added. 
 
Planner Nichols confirmed that the trees were present in the existing and approved 
landscape plan. 
 
Chair Kirby moved to admit the staff reports and related documents into the record for 
FDP-84-2023.  Commissioner Wallace seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he 
asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes; Mr. Wallace yes; Mr. Larsen yes; Ms. Briggs yes; Mr. 
Schell yes.  Having five affirmative votes, the staff reports and related documents were 
admitted into the record. 
 
Commissioner Wallace moved to approval the amendment to FDP-84-2023 subject to the 
two conditions listed in the staff report including the commentary regarding the specifics 
of the engineer’s comments, subject to staff approval, and the following additional 
conditions: 

3. that cross-access easements be required and documented, subject to staff 
approval; and that there would be no lot split without cross-access easement to 
the new parcel. 

 
Commissioner Larsen seconded the motion.   
 



   

23 1016 DRAFT PC Meeting Minutes  7 

Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he 
asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Wallace yes; Mr. Larsen yes; Mr. Schell yes; Ms. Briggs yes; Mr. 
Kirby yes.  Having five yes votes, FDP-84-2023 was approved subject to the stated 
conditions. 
 
The commission wished the applicant good luck. 
 
Chair Kirby noted that the Epcon applications included a lot of underlined text and he 
requested that the underlined text include a reference to the corresponding condition.  
These markers would help with wayfinding through the conditions and the underlined 
text. 

 
ZC-90-2023 Rezoning 
Request to rezone 84.736 acres located at 2650 Harrison Road in Licking County from 
Agricultural (AG) to Limited General Employment (L-GE) for an area to be known as the 
Jug Street South Expansion Zoning District (PID: 037-112110-00.000, 037-111930-
00.000, 037-112044-00.001, 037-112044-00.003, 037-112044-01.000, 037-112044-
03.000, 037-112044-02.000, 037-112044-00.002, 037-112044-00.009, 037-112044-
00.004, 037-112044-00.005, 037-112044-00.000, 037-112044-00.008, 037-112044-
00.007, 037-112044-00.005, 037-112050-00.001). 
Applicant: Jackson B. Reynolds, III 

 
Planner Nichols delivered the staff report. 
 
Chair Kirby asked for comments from engineering. 
 
Development Engineer Albright stated that engineering had no comments. 
 
Chair Kirby asked to hear from the applicant. 
 
Applicant Jackson Reynolds, III, attorney with Smith and Hale.  He stated that he had 
been working in this area for quite some time.  He thanked staff and stated that his client 
had one small request, and that was regarding condition #2.  He requested that the words, 
“as possible” be removed from the condition.  He explained that the applicant wanted to 
remove the subjective context from the sentence. 
 
Chair Kirby confirmed that staff was agreeable to this.  Chair Kirby further confirmed 
with Mr. Reynolds that this proposed text matched adjacent texts. 
 
Commissioner Wallace stated he was not sure if it removed all of the subjective context 
as the terms “simple and unobtrusive” were subjective and remained.  He further noted 
that some texts imposed a 65-foot height restriction, and asked whether the building 
height of 85-feet here was agreeable to staff. 
 
Planner Nichols responded that there was no concern with the 85-foot building height.  
She explained that the 65-foot height maximum was imposed on properties that were 
adjacent to residential uses.  Staff had agreed to the 85-foot height here because there are 
no adjacent residential uses. 
 
Commissioner Larsen noted that in item #6, that there would be an exception for 
transmission lines to not be underground, and asked why. 
 
Chair Kirby responded that the reason was because the utility lines were so big.  He 
further remarked that he believed that transmission was a term of art. 



   

23 1016 DRAFT PC Meeting Minutes  8 

 
Commissioner Wallace stated that as long as the condition was clear. 
 
Planning Manager Mayer explained that staff had no concerns with this, and explained 
that transmission poles are required for the larger lines like these.  Distribution poles 
were used for the smaller poles along the street. 

 
Chair Kirby asked if there were any further questions from the commission.  Hearing 
none, he moved to admit the staff reports and related documents into the record for ZC-
90-2023.  Commissioner Wallace seconded the motion.   
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he 
asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes; Mr. Wallace yes; Ms. Briggs yes; Mr. Larsen yes; Mr. 
Schell yes.  Having five yes votes, the staff reports and related documents were admitted 
into the record. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was anyone present from the public who wished to 
comment. 
 
Hearing none, Commissioner Schell moved to recommend approval of ZC-90-2023 
based on the findings in the staff report with the six conditions in the staff report, as 
modified by removing the words “as possible” from condition #2.  Commissioner Briggs 
seconded the motion.   
 
Chair Kirby asked if there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to 
hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Schell yes; Ms. Briggs yes; Mr. Kirby yes; Mr. Larsen yes; Mr. 
Wallace yes.  Having five yes votes, ZC-90-2023 the zoning change was approved with 
the conditions in the staff report as amended by the commission. 
 
The commission wished the applicant good luck. 

 
FPL-94-2023 Final Plat 
Final plat for Briscoe Parkway public street dedication and easements phase 1 located 
between Horizon Court and Harrison Road in Licking County.  
Applicant: City of New Albany 
 
Planning Manager Mayer delivered the staff report for FPL-94-2023 final plat for Briscoe 
Parkway phase 1, and FPL-95-2023 final plat for Briscoe Parkway phase 2, in a single 
presentation. 
  
Chair Kirby asked for comments from engineering. 
 
Development Engineer Albright replied that there were no comments from engineering. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if there were any questions from the commission or from the public. 
Hearing none, he moved to admit the documents and related staff reports into the record 
for FPL-94-2023.  Commissioner Wallace seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he 
asked to hear the roll. 
 



   

23 1016 DRAFT PC Meeting Minutes  9 

Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes; Mr. Wallace yes; Mr. Wallace yes; Mr. Schell yes; Ms. 
Briggs yes.  Having five yes votes, the staff reports and related documents were admitted 
into the record. 
 
Commissioner Briggs moved to approve of FPL-84-2023 based on the findings in the 
staff report with the conditions in the staff report, and noted there were no conditions 
here, subject to staff approval.  Chair Kirby seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he 
asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Ms. Briggs yes; Mr. Kirby yes; Mr. Schell yes; Mr. Wallace yes; Mr. 
Wallace yes.  Having five yes votes the final plat for phase 1 of Briscoe Parkway was 
approved.  
 
FPL-95-2023 Final Plat 
Final plat for Briscoe Parkway public street dedication and easements phase 2 located 
between Harrison Road and Clover Valley Road in Licking County.  
Applicant: City of New Albany 

  
Chair Kirby asked whether there were any additional comments from staff on FPL-95-
2023. 

 
Planning Manager Mayer stated that there were none from staff.  Development Engineer 
Albright stated there were no engineering comments. 
 
Chair Kirby moved to admit the staff reports and related documents into the record for 
FPL-95-2023.  Commissioner Wallace seconded the motion.  Chair Kirby asked whether 
there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes; Mr. Wallace yes; Ms. Briggs yes; Mr. Larsen yes; Mr. 
Schell yes.  Having five yes votes, the staff reports and related documents were admitted 
into the record. 
 
Chair Kirby moved for approval of FPL-95-2023 based on the findings in the staff report 
and noted there were no conditions in the staff report, subject to staff approval.  
Commissioner Wallace seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he 
asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes; Mr. Wallace yes; Ms. Briggs yes; Mr. Larsen yes; Mr. 
Schell yes.  Having five yes votes, phase 2 of Briscoe Parkway was approved. 
  

VII. Other business 
Chair Kirby asked if there was any other business before the commission. 
 
Planning Manager Mayer answered no. 

 
VIII. Poll members for comment 

Chair Kirby polled the members for comment.  None of the members had a comment. 
 

IX. Adjournment 
Having no further business, Chair Kirby adjourned the October 16, 2023 New Albany 
Planning Commission meeting at 8:04 p.m. 

 



   

23 1016 DRAFT PC Meeting Minutes  10 

 
 
Submitted by:  Deputy Clerk Madriguera, Esq. 
 
Appendix 
FDP-84-2023 
 Staff Report 
 Record of Action 
FDP-87-2023 
 Record of Action 
FPL-88-2023 
 Record of Action 
FPL-91-2023 
 Record of Action 
FPL-92-2023 
 Record of Action 
ZC-90-2023 
 Staff Report 
 Record of Action 
FPL-94-2023 
 Staff Report 
 Record of Action 
FPL-95-2023 
 Staff Report 
 Record of Action 



23 1016 Chipotle Access Amendment FDP-84-2023  1 of 5 

 

  
 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

October 16, 2023 Meeting 

 

 

CHIPOTLE 

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT 

 

 

LOCATION:  Located immediately north of Johnstown Road and generally south of the 

intersection at Bevelhymer Road and Walton Parkway (PID: 222-

004463). 

APPLICANT:   Prime AE Group, c/o Steve Fox 

REQUEST: Final Development Plan Amendment 

ZONING:   Infill Planned Unit Development (IPUD), Subarea 7D-Section 2: 

Business Park (South Oak Grove – Retail) 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Retail  

APPLICATION: FDP-84-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received September 29, 2023. 

Staff report prepared by Chelsea Nichols, Planner 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests review and approval of a final development plan amendment to allow for 

revisions to the previously approved Chipotle circulation pattern. The proposed revisions include:  

1. Adding a second full access curb cut on the east side of the site, and  

2. Modifying the previously approved northwestern right-out only curb cut to a full access 

curb cut.  

The rest of the site and the entire building is unchanged. 

 

The Planning Commission reviewed and approved the final development plan for this site at their 

October 17, 2022 meeting (FDP-115-2022). 

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The site and building are currently under construction. The site is located immediately north of 

Johnstown Road and generally south of the intersection at Bevelhymer Road and Walton 

Parkway within Subarea 7D-Section 2: Business Park (South Oak Grove – Retail).  

 

The lot is approximately 2 acres in size and can accommodate an additional development. The 

Chipotle is located on the southern portion of the lot and a separate future development could be 

located on the northern portion of the lot. Currently, there are no plans to split the lot into two. 

However, the current proposal does contemplate theoretical property lines for when the larger 2-

acre lot is split into two. Once that lot split happens in the future, the Chipotle site would become 

approximately 1 acre at that time. The review of this application is based on the potential future 

lot split and a site size of 1 acre.   

 

III. EVALUATION 

The staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, zoning regulations. 

Primary concerns and issues have been indicated below, with needed action or recommended 

action in underlined text. Planning Commission’s review authority is found under Chapter 1159. 

The property owners within 200 feet of the property in question have been notified. 



23 1016 Chipotle Access Amendment FDP-84-2023  2 of 5 

 

 

The Commission should consider, at a minimum, the following (per Section 1159.08): 

a. That the proposed development is consistent in all respects with the purpose, intent and 

applicable standards of the Zoning Code; 

b. That the proposed development is in general conformity with the Strategic Plan/Rocky 

Fork-Blacklick Accord or portion thereof as it may apply; 

c. That the proposed development advances the general welfare of the Municipality; 

d. That the benefits, improved arrangement and design of the proposed development justify 

the deviation from standard development requirements included in the Zoning 

Ordinance; 

e. Various types of land or building proposed in the project; 

f. Where applicable, the relationship of buildings and structures to each other and to such 

other facilities as are appropriate with regard to land area; proposed density may not 

violate any contractual agreement contained in any utility contract then in effect; 

g. Traffic and circulation systems within the proposed project as well as its appropriateness 

to existing facilities in the surrounding area; 

h. Building heights of all structures with regard to their visual impact on adjacent facilities; 

i. Front, side and rear yard definitions and uses where they occur at the development 

periphery; 

j. Gross commercial building area; 

k. Area ratios and designation of the land surfaces to which they apply; 

l. Spaces between buildings and open areas; 

m. Width of streets in the project; 

n. Setbacks from streets; 

o. Off-street parking and loading standards; 

p. The order in which development will likely proceed in complex, multi-use, multi- phase 

developments; 

q. The potential impact of the proposed plan on the student population of the local school 

district(s); 

r. The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency’s 401 permit, and/or isolated wetland permit 

(if required);  

s. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 404 permit, or nationwide permit (if required). 
 
It is also important to evaluate the PUD portion based on the purpose and intent. Per Section 
1159.02, PUD’s are intended to: 

a. Ensure that future growth and development occurs in general accordance with the 

Strategic Plan; 

b. Minimize adverse impacts of development on the environment by preserving native 

vegetation, wetlands and protected animal species to the greatest extent possible 

c. Increase and promote the use of pedestrian paths, bicycle routes and other non-vehicular 

modes of transportation; 

d. Result in a desirable environment with more amenities than would be possible through 

the strict application of the minimum commitment to standards of a standard zoning 

district; 

e. Provide for an efficient use of land, and public resources, resulting in co-location of 

harmonious uses to share facilities and services and a logical network of utilities and 

streets, thereby lowering public and private development costs; 

f. Foster the safe, efficient and economic use of land, transportation, public facilities and 

services; 

g. Encourage concentrated land use patterns which decrease the length of automobile 

travel, encourage public transportation, allow trip consolidation and encourage 

pedestrian circulation between land uses; 

h. Enhance the appearance of the land through preservation of natural features, the 

provision of underground utilities, where possible, and the provision of recreation areas 

and open space in excess of existing standards; 



23 1016 Chipotle Access Amendment FDP-84-2023  3 of 5 

i. Avoid the inappropriate development of lands and provide for adequate drainage and 

reduction of flood damage; 

j. Ensure a more rational and compatible relationship between residential and non-

residential uses for the mutual benefit of all; 

k. Provide an environment of stable character compatible with surrounding areas; and 

l. Provide for innovations in land development, especially for affordable housing and infill 

development. 

 

Engage New Albany Strategic Plan Recommendations 

The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan lists the following development standards for the 

Neighborhood Retail future land use category: 

1. Parking areas should promote pedestrians by including walkways and landscaping to 

enhance visual aspects of the development.  

2. Combined curb cuts and cross access easements are encouraged.  

3. Curb cuts on primary streets should be minimized and well-organized connections should 

be created within and between all retail establishments.  

4. Retail building entrances should connect with the pedestrian network and promote 

connectivity through the site.  

5. Integrate outdoor spaces for food related businesses.  

 

A. Use, Site and Layout 

1. The site is currently under construction for a 2,394 sq. ft. Chipotle restaurant with a 

drive-thru on approximately 1 acre. The Chipotle has a dine-in option but focuses 

primarily on to-go orders. The drive-thru lane is pick-up only and not a conventional, 

full-service drive-thru with a menu or order board.  

2. The proposed revisions include:  

a. Adding a second full-access curb cut on the east side of the site along a shared 

private drive aisle; and  

b. Modifying the previously approved northwestern right-out only curb cut to a full 

access curb cut at an existing traffic circle on a private drive.  

3. The rest of the site and the entire building is unchanged. The proposed lot coverage is 

unchanged. The proposed setbacks remain unchanged with the exception of the pavement 

being added for the new curb-cut and the revised curb-cut. 

 

Previously approved site plan:    Proposed site plan: 

 

 

 

 



23 1016 Chipotle Access Amendment FDP-84-2023  4 of 5 

 

B. Access, Loading, Parking 

1. The drive aisle on the northern side of the site is modified to accommodate two-way 

traffic. This access point allows traffic to enter and exit on the private access drive shared 

with the Wealth Center. The applicant states that by allowing for two-way traffic north of 

the Chipotle building, in-lieu of one-way, it improves potential connections and access to 

the vacant area on the north side of the parcel. In order to provide appropriate circulation 

on-site with the new bidirectional traffic flow, the drive aisle:  

a. Adds a second full-access curb cut on the east side of the site.  

b. Changes the right-out only curb cut to a full access curb cut at the private traffic 

circle.  

2. The applicant has updated the drive-through to include a concrete curb on one side to 

assist with traffic circulation. 

a. The city traffic engineer recommends a condition of approval requiring the 

shortening of the southern curb of the drive-through approximately five (5) feet 

in order to help cars turn into drive-thru from the parking lot. This encourages 

vehicles to enter from the parking lot and not from the drive aisle from the traffic 

circle. The city staff recommends a condition of approval that the southern curb 

is shortened and use of signage prohibiting U-turns from the north drive aisle be 

subject to the city traffic engineer’s approval. 

3. The development utilizes the same shared private drives on the west and eastern sides of 

the site. 

4. The zoning text encourages shared access drives between sites by allowing for zero 

pavement setbacks and by including a provision stating that cross access easements 

between developments within Section 2 shall be provided. Historically the city staff and 

Planning Commission have encouraged shared curb cuts and connecting drive aisles 

between commercial sites.  

 

C. Architectural Standards  

There are no proposed changes to the architecture. The previously approved architecture is 

included in the packet material for reference.  

 

D. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  

There are no proposed changes to the landscaping.  

 

E. Lighting & Signage 

There are no proposed changes to the lighting or to the signage.  The previously approved signage 

is included in the packet material. 
 

IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the application and provided the following comments. These 

comments can also be found in a separate memo attached to this staff report. Staff recommends a 

condition of approval that the comments of the city engineer are addressed, subject to staff 

approval.  

1. Refer to Exhibit A.  Add the Monumentation Note to sheet C-1. 

2. Refer to Exhibit B.  Shorten the length of the curb where indicated to facilitate turning 

movements for those wishing to utilize the drive thru lane. 

3. Refer to sheet C-3.  Add site distance triangles at all curb cuts and ensure that 

landscaping, fencing, etc. does not impede motorist view. 

 

V. SUMMARY 

The proposed final development plan amendment improves the circulation onsite by converting 

the one-way drive aisle to two-way traffic. The drive-through stacking, pedestrian connections 

and parking lot configuration remains unchanged. The revisions to the site plan are simply to 

improve the vehicular circulation by adding an additional curb cut to the east and traffic flow.   

 



23 1016 Chipotle Access Amendment FDP-84-2023  5 of 5 

The proposed plan amendment allows for flexibility in the design and location of the future 

development on the northern portion of the lot.  The number and location of curb cuts connecting 

this site to the north will be evaluated with future applications.  

 

VI.  ACTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate:  

 

Move to approve final development plan amendment FDP-84-2023 with the following 

conditions: 

 1. That the comments of the city engineer are address, subject to staff approval; and 

2. That the southern curb is shortened and use of signage prohibiting U-turns from the 

north drive aisle be subject to the city traffic engineer’s approval. 

 

 

Approximate Site Location: 

 

 
Source: nearmap 

 



123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear Prime AE Group, c/o Steve Fox

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records. 

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to
issuance of any zoning or building permits. 

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions.

Thank you.



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Tuesday, October 17, 2023

The New Albany  Planning Commission took the following action on Monday, October 16, 2023 .

Final Development Plan Modification

Location: 10087 Johnstown Rd.
Applicant: Prime AE Group, c/o Steve Fox

Application: PLFDM20230084
Request: Final Development plan amendment to allow for revisions to the previously 
approved Chipotle circulation pattern. 
Motion: To approve with conditions

Commission Vote: Motion to approve with conditions, 5-0 

Result: Final Development Plan Amendment, PLFDM20230084 was approved with conditions, by
a vote of 5-0.

Recorded in the Official Journal this Tuesday, October 17, 2023.

Condition(s) of Approval:
1) That the engineering comments in the engineering review memo dated October 2, 2023 be addressed;
2) That the southern curb for the drive-through is shortened by 5' and use of signage prohibiting U-turns
from the north drive aisle be required, subject to the city engineer's approval; and
3) That a cross-access easement for the new two-way drive aisle be provided and recorded prior to the
submittal of any lot split applications.

Staff Certification:

Chelsea Nichols
Planner



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  1 of 13   

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

October 16, 2023 Meeting 

  

 

COURTYARDS AT HAINES CREEK SUBDIVISION 

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

LOCATION:  Generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection at Central 

College Road and Jug Street Rd NW (PIDs: 222-005156, 222-005157, 

222-005158, 222-005159). 

APPLICANT:   EC New Vision Ohio LLC, c/o Aaron L. Underhill, Esq. 

REQUEST: Final Development Plan 

ZONING:   Courtyards at Haines Creek I-PUD Zoning District 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 

APPLICATION: FDP-87-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received September 15, 2023 and October 2, 2023.   

Staff report completed by Chelsea Nichols, Planner. 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The application is for a final development plan for a new 151 lot age-restricted subdivision 

known as “Courtyards at Haines Creek”. There are three combined preliminary and final plat 

applications for the property on the agenda. However, they will be evaluated under separate 

staff reports: FPL-88-2021, FPL-91-2023, and FPL-92-2023.  

 

The Planning Commission reviewed the zoning change and preliminary development plan for 

the property on June 20, 2023 (ZC-07-2023) and the zoning change was adopted by city council 

on July 18, 2023 (O-84-2023). The final development plan application is generally consistent 

with the approved preliminary development plan. The subdivision zoning text requires 90% of 

the homes be age-restricted resulting in 136 age-restricted and 15 non-age-restricted homes. 

 

During the rezoning hearing, the city council approved it with a requirement that the applicant 

“to perhaps relocate up to four units shown on the preliminary development plan” near the 

adjacent neighbor along the western boundary line to provide additional tree preservation. 

Those four homes have been relocated to the northern area of the site and back onto Reserve C.  

 

The Parks and Trails Advisory Board (PTAB) reviewed the proposed development at their 

October 2, 2023 meeting and recommended approval with conditions. The PTAB placed the 

following conditions of approval on the application: 

1. That the open space amenities shall be installed and included as part of the overall 

subdivision infrastructure improvements (e.g. streets, utilities, etc.); 

2. That the final alignment of the leisure path shall be subject to staff approval; 

3. Increase the open space with consideration of the wetland on the adjacent property to the 

north; and 

4. Review the 42k fee in-lieu payment or purchase land within close proximity to the 

development.  

 

In addition, at the Parks and Trails Advisory Board meeting, the applicant verbally committed to 

sliding lots 152-155 west to allow pedestrian access at the northeast corner. The Planning 

Commission will evaluate the lot location as part of this Final Development Plan application. 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  2 of 13   

Staff recommends a condition of approval that the lots on the plat match the lots on the final 

development plan.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 63.5+/- acre zoning area is located in Franklin County and is made up of four properties. 

There is one existing barn located on one of the properties. The site is generally located at the 

northwest corner of the intersection at Central College Road and Jug Street Rd NW. The site is 

located immediately west of the Licking County line and immediately, north of Agricultural 

zoned and residentially used properties, and there are unincorporated residentially zoned and used 

properties to the west and north of the site.  

 

III. PLAN REVIEW 

Staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations. 

Primary concerns and issues have been indicated below, with needed action or recommended 

action in underlined text. Planning Commission’s review authority is found under Chapter 1159. 

The property owners within 200 feet of the property in question have been notified. 

 

The Commission should consider, at a minimum, the following (per Section 1159.08): 

That the proposed development is consistent in all respects with the purpose, intent and 

applicable standards of the Zoning Code; 

(a) That the proposed development is in general conformity with the Strategic Plan/Rocky 

Fork-Blacklick Accord or portion thereof as it may apply; 

(b) That the proposed development advances the general welfare of the Municipality; 

(c) That the benefits, improved arrangement and design of the proposed development justify 

the deviation from standard development requirements included in the Zoning 

Ordinance; 

(d) Various types of land or building proposed in the project; 

(e) Where applicable, the relationship of buildings and structures to each other and to such 

other facilities as are appropriate with regard to land area; proposed density may not 

violate any contractual agreement contained in any utility contract then in effect; 

(f) Traffic and circulation systems within the proposed project as well as its appropriateness 

to existing facilities in the surrounding area; 

(g) Building heights of all structures with regard to their visual impact on adjacent facilities; 

(h) Front, side and rear yard definitions and uses where they occur at the development 

periphery; 

(i) Gross commercial building area; 

(j) Area ratios and designation of the land surfaces to which they apply; 

(k) Spaces between buildings and open areas; 

(l) Width of streets in the project; 

(m) Setbacks from streets; 

(n) Off-street parking and loading standards; 

(o) The order in which development will likely proceed in complex, multi-use, multi- phase 

developments; 

(p) The potential impact of the proposed plan on the student population of the local school 

district(s); 

(q) The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency’s 401 permit, and/or isolated wetland permit 

(if required);  

(r) The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 404 permit, or nationwide permit (if required). 
 
It is also important to evaluate the PUD portion based on the purpose and intent. Per Section 
1159.02, PUD’s are intended to: 

a. Ensure that future growth and development occurs in general accordance with the 

Strategic Plan; 

b. Minimize adverse impacts of development on the environment by preserving native 

vegetation, wetlands and protected animal species to the greatest extent possible 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  3 of 13   

c. Increase and promote the use of pedestrian paths, bicycle routes and other non-vehicular 

modes of transportation; 

d. Result in a desirable environment with more amenities than would be possible through 

the strict application of the minimum commitment to standards of a standard zoning 

district; 

e. Provide for an efficient use of land, and public resources, resulting in co-location of 

harmonious uses to share facilities and services and a logical network of utilities and 

streets, thereby lowering public and private development costs; 

f. Foster the safe, efficient and economic use of land, transportation, public facilities and 

services; 

g. Encourage concentrated land use patterns which decrease the length of automobile 

travel, encourage public transportation, allow trip consolidation and encourage 

pedestrian circulation between land uses; 

h. Enhance the appearance of the land through preservation of natural features, the 

provision of underground utilities, where possible, and the provision of recreation areas 

and open space in excess of existing standards; 

i. Avoid the inappropriate development of lands and provide for adequate drainage and 

reduction of flood damage; 

j. Ensure a more rational and compatible relationship between residential and non-

residential uses for the mutual benefit of all; 

k. Provide an environment of stable character compatible with surrounding areas; and 

l. Provide for innovations in land development, especially for affordable housing and infill 

development. 

 

A. Engage New Albany Strategic Plan  

The site is located within the Residential District future land use district. The Engage New 

Albany Strategic Plan lists the following development standards for the Residential District: 

• Organically shaped stormwater management ponds and areas should be incorporated into 

the overall design as natural features and assets to the community. 

• Houses should front onto public open spaces and not back onto public parks or streets. 

• All or adequate amounts of open space and parkland is strongly encouraged to be 

provided on-site. 

• A hierarchy of open spaces is encouraged. Each development should have at least one 

open space located near the center of the development. Typically, neighborhood parks 

range from a half an acre to 5 acres. Multiple greens may be necessary in large 

developments to provide centrally located greens.  

• Adequate amounts of open space and parkland are encouraged to be provided on site.  

• Rear or side loaded garages are encouraged. When a garage faces the street, the front 

façade of the garage should be set back from the front facade of the house.  

• Any proposed residential development outside of the Village Center shall have a base 

density of 1 dwelling unit per gross acre in order to preserve and protect the community’s 

natural resources and support the overall land conservation goals of the community. A 

transfer of residential density can be used to achieve a gross density of 1 dwelling unit 

per acre.  

• Private streets are at odds with many of the community’s planning principles such as: 

interconnectivity, a hierarchy of street typologies and a connected community. To 

achieve these principles, streets within residential developments must be public.  

 

The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan recommends the following standards as prerequisites for 

all development proposals in New Albany: 

• Development should meet setback recommendations contained in strategic plan. 

• Streets must be public and not gated. Cul-de-sacs are strongly discouraged. 

• Parks and open spaces should be provided, publicly dedicated and meet the quantity 

requirements established in the city’s subdivision regulations (i.e. 20% gross open space 

and 2,400 sf of parkland dedication for each lot). 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  4 of 13   

o All or adequate amounts of open space and parkland is strongly encouraged to be 

provided on-site. If it cannot be provided on-site, purchasing and publicly 

dedicating land to expand the Rocky Fork Metro Park or park space for the Joint 

Parks District is an acceptable alternative. 

• The New Albany Design Guidelines & Requirements for residential development must 

be met. 

• Quality streetscape elements, including an amenity zone, street trees, and sidewalks or 

leisure trails, and should be provided on both sides of all public streets. 

• Homes should front streets, parks and open spaces. 

• A residential density of 1 dwelling unit (du) per acre is required for single-family 

residential and a density of 3 du per acre for age restricted housing. 

o Higher density may be allowed if additional land is purchased and deed 

restricted. This type of density “offset” ensures that the gross density of the 

community will not be greater than 1 unit per acre. Any land purchased for use as 

an offset, should be within the NAPLS district or within the metro park zone. 

o 3 du/acre is only acceptable if 100% age restricted. Otherwise, the federal 

regulations and criteria for subdivisions to qualify as age-restricted must be 

accounted for when calculating density (i.e. 80% age restricted and 20% non-age 

restricted). 

o Age restriction must be recorded as a deed restriction and included as a 

requirement in the subdivision’s zoning text. 

 

B. Use, Site and Layout 

1. The property is zoned I-PUD under the Courtyards at Haines Creek PUD text.  

2. The zoning text section VI(A) permits a maximum of 151 lots in the age-restricted 

subdivision named “Courtyards at Haines Creek.”  

3. The subdivision consists of 136 age-restricted and 15 non-age-restricted homes on 

approximately 63.5+/- acres. Furthermore, the text prohibits any permanent resident 

within the age-restricted units to be under the age of 21, to the extent permitted by law. 

4. The final development plan is generally consistent with the preliminary development 

plan that was approved as part of the zoning change application (ZC-07-2023).  

5. The text requires that prior to the issuance of the first building permit for construction 

of a home in this zoning district, the applicant/developer shall provide evidence to the 

city that it has recorded a written restriction requiring the property may only be 

developed and operated in accordance with the age restriction requirements listed 

above.  Prior to recording the restriction, the text requires the applicant/developer to 

deliver a draft copy of the restriction to the city’s law director for reasonable review 

and confirmation. These requirements are consistent with other age-restricted 

subdivisions in New Albany.   

6. Zoning text section VI(D) states that the minimum lot width at the building line shall 

be 52 feet. All of the proposed lots are meeting these requirements. 

7. The city’s design consultant, MKSK, provided the following comments related to the 

location of the four relocated homes: 

a. As the applicant verbally committed during the PTAB meeting, center the four 

relocated parcels within Haines Creek and Lourdes Drive, providing access to a 

leisure path on either side for increased public green space. Staff recommends a 

condition of approval that the city’s design consultant comments be addressed, 

subject to staff approval.  

8. Zoning text section VI(F) requires the following setbacks: 

  

SETBACKS 

Central College Road and Jug Street Rd NW 

(Engage New Albany strategic plan 

recommends 100-foot setback) 

100-foot building and pavement setback from 

the edge of the right-of-way, except homes 

and other improvements on Lots 71 and 72 

shall be permitted within this setback. 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  5 of 13   

Front Yard 20 feet, except for the Lane Homes facing 

Defiance Drive which shall have a minimum 

front yard setback of 15 feet. 

Side Yard  5 feet 

Rear Yard  50 feet for lots with rear boundary lines 

which also serve as the eastern and western 

perimeter boundary of this zoning district, 15 

feet for all other lots.  

 

All of the setbacks required in the zoning text are accurately shown on the final development 

plan. The setbacks for individual homes will be reviewed and approved with each new 

residential building permit application.  

 

C. Access, Loading, Parking  

1. The primary access points into the subdivision are from Central College Road and Jug 

Street Road NW in the locations shown on the final development plan. Per zoning text 

requirements and the submitted plats, the applicant is dedicating right-of-way to the city 

for a distance that extends 40 feet from the centerlines of Central College Road and Jug 

Street Road NW. 

2. Zoning text section VII(E) requires the right-of-way to be dedicated for the future 

extension of two streets to the western boundary line of the subdivision. The final 

development plan shows the construction of the extension for a distance of 10 feet from 

its westernmost intersection. Signage is also proposed to be installed at the end of the 

10-foot stubs which indicate that these streets may be extended in the future as a 

through street. The city staff recommends a condition of approval that the sign be 

shown on the plans at the time of permitting, subject to staff approval. 

3. Zoning text section VII(E) also requires all internal streets to be dedicated as public 

streets and built to city standards. The right-of-way for these internal streets is required 

to be 50 feet with 26-foot pavement widths, measured from front of curb to front of 

curb. The right-of-way for alleys shall be a minimum of 20 feet with a minimum of 16 

feet of pavement. The proposed north-south street shall have a right-of-way of 60 feet 

in width. These requirements match those found in the city’s subdivision regulations.  

4. Zoning text section VII(F) requires a 5-foot-wide, concrete public sidewalk to be 

constructed within the right-of-way on each internal subdivision street (other than Haines 

Creek Drive, the south side of Cedarville Drive, and the north side of Heidelberg Drive 

where leisure trail is required). This requirement is being met. 

5. Zoning text section VII(G) requires 8-foot-wide, asphalt leisure trails to be installed 

along the north side of Central College Road, the west side of Jug Street rights-of-way, 

along both sides of Haines Creek Drive to the intersection with Heidelberg Drive, and 

along both sides of Heidelberg Drive that goes westward. This requirement is being met. 

6. A leisure trail with a minimum width of 8 feet is proposed along the south side of the 

pond in Reserve “A,” and along Central College Road. The city is coordinating street 

improvements with the Franklin County engineer.  The path running along the south 

side of the pond in Reserve A provides a meaningful alternative leisure trail connection 

from Haines Creek Drive to Jug Street Road, rather than running along the street 

frontage which may require more tree removal. The city recommends a condition of 

approval that the installation of the leisure path along Central College Road be subject 

to staff approval. 

7. Zoning text section VII(A) requires all homes to have a minimum of 2 off-street parking 

spaces on their driveways in addition to a minimum of 2 parking spaces within the 

garage. This appears to be met and will be reviewed and approved as part of each new 

residential building permit. 

8. Per code section 1167.05(f), the Planning Commission shall determine the number of 

parking spaces required for the club house as it is a use not mentioned in the code. The 

applicant proposes 23 designated parking spaces for the club house. 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  6 of 13   

D. Architectural Standards 

1. The Architectural standards have been approved as part of the PUD rezoning. The PUD 

text states the design of the neighborhood borrows from the tradition of summer retreat 

camps like Lakeside Ohio and Oak Bluffs Meeting Camp on Martha’s Vineyard. These 

camps were a collection of small cottages around a central meeting house and green.  The 

architectural aesthetic is consistent with the character of New Albany by referencing the 

“rectangular form houses.” The homes in this community are simple forms, generally 

rectangular in shape.  

9. The text requires all homes to be a minimum of 1.5 stories or 1.5 stories in appearance 

from the front elevation thereby meeting one of the New Albany Strategic Plan’s 

development standards recommendations that all houses should be a minimum of 1.5 

stories in appearance and a maximum of three stories.  This appears to be met and will be 

reviewed and approved as part of each new residential building permit.  

1. The text requires the final development plan submittal includes detailed architectural 

elevations and/or renderings and must incorporate additional architectural details 

including roof plans; garage door design/colors; dormer details; entablature; and shutter 

specifications; columns, cornice and pediment details; window specifications; louver 

details, brickmould profile. These architectural plans are to create a baseline set of 

architectural requirements and guidelines from which each home design will be based.  

These details are included in the submitted home elevations and have been reviewed by 

the city architect.  The city architect has the following comments: 

a. The city architect recommends eliminating the horizontally proportioned 

window grids from the home designs from Dean Wenz’s office. The city 

staff recommend a condition of approval be that the plans be updated at the 

time of permitting to meet this recommendation of eliminating of the 

horizontally proportioned grids. 

b. The city architect provided a marked sheet indicating suggested revisions to 

the Lane Homes, specifically with regard to the proposed dormers  

 

 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  7 of 13   

 

 

 

The city staff recommends a condition of approval that all applicable home elevations are updated 

at the time of permitting to meet the city architect’s recommendations for the dormers. 

 

2. Exterior paint colors for siding, doors, shutters, fascias, cornices, soffits and 

miscellaneous trim have been submitted. Zoning text section XI(A)(2) states garage doors 

that are white in color shall only be used in the circumstance when white is the primary 

exterior color of the individual home. The architectural sheets include white garage doors 

on houses with non-white colored exteriors. The city staff recommends a condition of 

approval that the plans be revised at the time of permitting as needed to meet this garage 

door color requirement. 

3. Zoning text section IX(C)(3)(i) requires shutters to have appropriate shutter hardware 

(hinges and shutter dogs.) The city staff recommends a condition of approval that the 

final shutter hardware is provided on all homes and their design be subject to staff 

approval.   

4. The text states where the courtyard condition is present and is not screened from the 

view, a decorative fence shall be installed and may extend past the building setback line 

to provide screening of the courtyard area from the right-of-way. A combination of 

landscaping and fencing may also be used to achieve the same screening objective, but 

solid fences shall be prohibited to provide this screening. This appears to be met on the 

final development plan. 

5. The text further states that where the courtyard conditions are adjacent to open space, a 

decorative fence and landscaping may be installed between the lot line and the courtyard 

to provide screening. Screening shall have a minimum opacity of 75% to a height of feet. 

The applicant has submitted an aluminum decorative fencing design and an exhibit 

indicating the areas where this treatment will occur throughout the subdivision. Staff is 

supportive of only aluminum fencing to be used in areas along public right-of-way or 

open space.  

6. The zoning text requires on corner lots, the street on which the front façade of a home is 

required to be located shall be identified as part of the final development plan submittal.  

This has been submitted and the proposed orientations all appear to be appropriate. 

7. Zoning text section IX(C)(2) states that exposed concrete foundation walls shall be 

prohibited unless otherwise approved as part of the final development plan. It appears as 

though exposed concrete foundations are not being proposed as part of this final 

development plan. Individual homes will be reviewed and approved as part of each new 

residential building permit.  

 

E. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  

1. Per C.O. 1159.07, detailed landscaping plans must be provided for all areas of the final 

development plan. The landscape plan must include the proposed landscape for all 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  8 of 13   

reserve areas and street lawns. The applicant submitted a detailed master landscape plan 

for the subdivision.  

2. Per the zoning text, street trees shall be required on both sides of internal public streets 

where homes are present. Street trees shall be a minimum of 2 ½ inches in caliper at 

installation and shall be spaced at an average distance of 30 feet on center, except that a 

double row of trees shall be provided along the Haines Creek Drive. These trees may be 

grouped, provided the quantity is equivalent to 1 tree per 30 feet or fraction thereof. 

3. The zoning requires the developer to work in good faith with the owner of property to the 

south of Central College Road that is directly across to the street from the subdivision 

entrance to establish a screening plan and install landscaping at the developer’s expense. 

The applicant proposes to install nine (9) spruce trees in front of the Mason property to 

screen the front of the home. 

4. The zoning text commits to a Tree Preservation Zone which applies to the following 

areas of the subdivision: 

a. For a minimum distance of 100 feet from the right-of-way of Central College 

Road and Jug Street Road NW in Reserve A; 

b. In areas to the south of the intersection of Jug Street Road NW and a new public 

street connecting it to the new subdivision; 

c. Within the northwest corner of the zoning district and covering the tree line along 

the north property line of Reserve C; and 

d. Within a distance of 30 feet from the rear property line on any lots where a 

minimum rear yard setback of 50 feet is required. Trees shall be preserved in 

accordance with the recommendations of a certified arborist and subject to staff 

approval. 

e. The city code does not permit the removal of trees with the 100-year floodplain 

and stream riparian corridor. The city landscape architect recommends the 

developer provide a clear plan boundary for tree removal limits outside of those 

zones if additional trees are to be removed. The developer should preserve the 

maximum number of established groupings of trees present on the site. 

f. The city’s landscape architect recommends a condition of approval that the 

developer utilizes fencing around tree drip lines for proper protection along all 

tree preservation zones, subject to staff approval.  

5. New Albany’s Codified Ordinance requires that 2,400 square feet per home be dedicated 

as parkland and 20% of the total acreage in the subdivision shall be dedicated as open 

space. The zoning text states ownership and maintenance of the parkland and open space 

areas which are shown on the preliminary development plan shall be defined and 

approved with the final development plan. 

a. For this development the total minimum, required parkland and open space is 

21.01 acres.  

b. The applicant is providing multiple reserve areas (A-K) that consists of either 

open space or parkland, totaling 17.66 acres. Per C.O. 1187.16 wet and dry 

stormwater basins shall not be considered parkland or open space. 

c. Therefore, the proposal does not meet the Codified Ordinance requirements 

since there is a 3.35-acre deficit in parkland. The developer is requesting to 

waive the appraisal requirement and use the $42,000 per acre value that was 

established by the most recent appraisal the city completed in September 

2022. This results in a total fee payment of $140,700.00. 

d. Per codified ordinance chapter 1159.07(3)(X) the city Planning Commission 

must review: 

i. The amount and location of open space and parkland required to be 

provided on-site and 

ii. The dollar amount of the fee payment based upon an appraisal 

completed by the applicant as required by 1165.10(d) if less than the 

required 21.01 acres is provided on-site.  

e. The city staff determined the applicant cannot request a deviation from the 

procedural requirements of the codified ordinances.  Therefore, the applicant 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  9 of 13   

must complete and submit an appraisal as required in Chapter 1165.10(d) 

outlined above. 

f. This appraisal must be completed prior to the Planning Commission taking 

final action on the final development plan. The application can have a full 

hearing, including public input, but staff recommends the application be 

tabled until the appraisal is completed and submitted.  

 

Reserves: 

1. The PUD text states “due to the nature of this subarea as an age-restricted community, it 

shall be exempt from the requirement of Section 1185.15(c)(6) that would otherwise 

require all residences to be located within 1,200 feet of playground equipment.” 

2. Reserves A, B, C & J: These are the perimeter areas providing tree preservation and 

buffering. 

a. Reserve A consists of a large basin, wetlands, preservation of trees, a stream, a 

pavilion and leisure trail. Reserve A also shows grading for the basin proposed 

within the 100-year floodplain. The city floodplain regulations (C.O. Section 

1154.02 and 1154.04) do not allow for any modifications to this area. The city 

staff recommends a condition of approval requiring the basin and grading to be 

revised to meet code requirements or a variance can be requested. 

b. Reserve B consists of the preservation of trees.  

c. Reserve C consists of a basin, stream, tree preservation zone, and a drainage 

swale connecting the stream to an off-site wetland located to the east. The 

developer is required to provide natural grasses in this area. No artificial 

pesticides and fertilizers are permitted in this area.  

i. During the rezoning hearing, the city council directed the applicant to 

perhaps relocate up to four units that were previously along the western 

boundary to provide additional tree preservation. Those four homes have 

since been relocated to the northern area of the site and back onto 

Reserve C. Where those lots were previously located is now Reserve J. 

The PTAB recommended that the applicant review increasing open space 

with consideration of the wetlands on the adjacent property to the east. 

The Planning Commission should evaluate the appropriateness of the 

four relocated lots along reserve C. 

d. Reserve J provides tree preservation. The natural vegetation will be untouched. 

The city landscape architect recommends the applicant provide a site plan that 

shows how the reserve’s green space will be used as an amenity for the 

community (i.e. seating, paths, etc.). Staff recommends a condition of approval 

that the city landscape architect's comments are addressed, subject to staff 

approval.  

e. The city’s landscape architect provided the following comments related to the 

basins that are also attached in the packets as a memo:  

i. Revise basins to increase undulation in grade and create a more 

naturalized form Basins should not exceed 6:1 slope.  

ii. Increase planting adjacent storm water basins. Trees should be planted in 

randomized spacing and species in groups of 3 to 9 trees. See diagram. 

iii. Densely plant trees along swale. Trees should be planted in randomized 

spacing and species in groups of 3 to 9 trees. See diagram. 

iv. The city staff recommends a condition of approval that the city landscape 

architect's comments are addressed, subject to staff approval. 

3. Reserves D, E, F, and G: These areas are located along the eastern side of Haines Creek 

Drive and provide a landscaping buffer between the homes and the public street. 

4. Reserve H: This is the community amenity area which consists of a club house with pool, 

a community garden, a bocce court, and pickleball courts. 

5. Reserve I and Reserve K: These areas will be used as greenspace upfront but serves as 

future street extensions if and when development occurs to the west. 

 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  10 of 13   

Western Property Line: 

1. The zoning text requires a buffering area to be located 50’ from the property line along 

the western perimeter boundary. Along with the landscaping plan, the applicant is 

required to and has submitted a report from a certified arborist. The report details the 

conditions of existing trees within the minimum required 50-foot rear yard setbacks on 

lots of homes that back to the western perimeter boundary line. 

a. The plan identifies which trees are to be preserved based on the report and 

provides for the planting of replacement trees, landscaping, and/or other 

improvements to provide buffering between new homes and adjacent property to 

the west which is outside of this zoning district. 

b. New trees and landscaping may be planted on the adjacent parcel to achieve the 

buffering objective if permission is obtained from the owners of such parcel. 

c. The applicant has indicated to staff that they had shared the arborist’s report with 

the adjacent property owners before the date when the final development plan 

was filed with the City, and has scheduled a meeting with the property owners 

that will happen prior to the Planning Commission’s hearing scheduled for 

October 16, 2023. 

d. As part of the city staff’s review of the tree study and west buffer landscape plan, 

the city arborist walked the site and examined the trees the applicant is proposing 

to remove within the 30’ tree preservation area along the western property line. 

As a result, there were three trees the city arborist asked the applicant to consider 

preservation (trees 219, 303, and 351). The applicant has since updated the trees 

on the tree survey as trees to be preserved. 

2. The plan proposes a retaining wall between the 30’ tree preservation zone and the 50’ 

rear yard setback. The applicant indicates that the retaining wall is due to the proposed 

grading for the purpose of saving trees. The applicant also indicates that in order to 

accommodate the same amount of grading within a smaller footprint of only 20’, it is 

necessary to introduce a wall along the rear of the lots to make up for the elevation 

difference. They further indicate that to minimize the impacts to the existing trees, they 

designed the wall to be 8.5 feet away from the tree preservation zone to allow for as 

much room as possible for the roots to remain untouched. Therefore, the face of the wall 

will be setback 38.5 +/- feet to the rear property line. The wall then steps back towards 

the buildings to make up an elevation difference of 6-7 feet. 

e. The city’s landscape architect issued the following comments related to the wall: 

i. If the proposed wall is deemed necessary after a thorough review of the 

grading plan, the developer should provide a minimum of three to five 

site condition sections for review. This should include a plan and details 

for the proposed site condition at the terminus of the wall along ‘Reserve 

J’.  

ii. If the proposed wall is deemed necessary, the use of natural stone is 

recommended. The developer should provide samples for review by the 

Landscape Architect. 

iii. If the proposed wall is deemed necessary, update the planting plan to 

include a seed mix of native grasses for disturbed areas. 

iv. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the city’s design 

consultant comments be addressed, subject to staff approval.  

5. AC unit screening is required along the western perimeter and lots 63-72 along the 

eastern perimeter of the subdivision to obscure their view to adjacent properties. The 

applicant proposes to screen each AC unit with eight (8) Karl Forester tall grass plants. S 

6. The city landscape architect has reviewed the application and provided a comprehensive 

comment memo and diagram that are also enclosed in the packets as a separate memo. 

Staff recommends a condition of approval that the city landscape architect comments be 

addressed, subject to staff approval.  

 

 

 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  11 of 13   

F. Lighting & Signage 

1. The text states signage shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission with the final 

development plan. The applicant has provided this information. The city’s landscape 

architect, has reviewed the signage and provided the following comments that are also 

attached in the packets as a memo: 

a. Revise location and position of entry sign at Central College Road. Signs should 

match the typical residential placement within the horse fence, see image in 

separate comment memo. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the city 

landscape architect's comments be addressed, subject to staff approval.  

10. Each home must have coach lights on the garage. This appears to be met and will be 

reviewed and approved as part of each new residential building permit. In addition, 

uplighting of the exterior of a home shall be prohibited. Security lighting, when used, 

shall be of a motion sensor type.  

2. Light poles within parking lot areas near the clubhouse shall not exceed 18 feet in height, 

shall be cut-off type fixtures and be down cast. Parking lot lighting shall be from a 

controlled source in order to minimize light spilling beyond the boundaries of the site. 

These details were not provided as part of this application and will be reviewed at the 

time of permitting. The city recommends a condition of approval that all final lighting 

details be subject to staff approval. 

 

IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 

requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and provided the following comments. Staff 

recommends a condition of approval that these comments be addressed, subject to staff approval.  

1. Refer to Exhibit A.  Please modify the Cover Sheet to show all signature blocks and notes 

shown on this Exhibit. 

2. Please add a sheet to the Index of Drawings entitled Street Typical Sections. 

3. Refer to Exhibit B.  Add a sheet to the Index of Drawings entitled Turn Lane 

Improvements.  Verify that the turn lane is in fact to be built “By Others”. 

4. Sheet 2 of 16.  Notes indicate that the City of New Albany shall have some maintenance 

responsibility relative to the Reserves.  This is consistent with the plat. The HOA 

maintains all reserves and only owns the reserve with the private club house. 

5. Sheet 3 of 16.  Delineate all Reserves that will be utilized for stormwater management as 

lying within Drainage Easements.  Clearly show this on all sheets. 

6. Sheet 3 of 16.  Label the width of the Tree Preservation Zone at the north parcel 

boundary. 

7. Sheet 5 of 16.  Show the northern swale as lying within a Drainage Easement. 

8. Sheet 7 of 16.  Add site distance triangles at the curb cuts off of Central College Road 

and Jug Street.  Remove landscaping and fencing that may impede motorist view. 

9. Provide Fire Truck turning radius analysis. 

10.  “No Parking Signs” be added along curved sections of streets. 

11. In accordance with code sections 1159.07 (b)(3) Z and AA, the applicant provide 

documentation indicating that all OEPA and ACOE permitting requirements have been 

obtained. 

12. We will evaluate storm water management, sanitary sewer collection and roadway 

construction related details once construction plans become available. 

V. SUMMARY 

The city staff determined the applicant cannot request a deviation from the procedural 

requirements of the codified ordinances.  Therefore, the applicant must complete and submit an 

appraisal as required by chapter 1165.10(d) prior to the Planning Commission taking final 

action on the application. The city staff recommends this application have a full hearing so 

neighbors can provide public comments and the applicant can receive feedback from the 

Planning Commission.  

 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  12 of 13   

The final development plan is in conformity with the residential land use density 

recommendations of the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan and is consistent with the 

preliminary development plan design standards approved as part of the rezoning application.  

 

The application includes many of the same community amenities that have been successfully 

implemented in Epcon’s Courtyards at New Albany subdivision. Overall, the Courtyards at 

New Albany has been successful and this proposal builds on that by providing a historical color 

palette that adds more character to the subdivision. The street network, landscaping, and layout 

are desirable from a site planning perspective; however, the Planning Commission should 

evaluate the amount of on-site parkland and open space that is appropriate for this type of 

development.  

 

VI. ACTION 

Suggested Motion for FDP-87-2023:  

 

Move to table FDP-87-2023 until the regularly schedule meeting. 

 

Based upon the current submittal, staff recommends the following conditions for the future 

hearing or that they are addressed prior to the next hearing date: 

 

1. That lots on the plats match the lots on the final development plan; 

2. Revise location and position of entry sign at Central College Road. Signs to match 

preexisting residential examples, see image in memo; 

3. Signage is to be installed at the end of the 10-foot stubs which indicates that these streets 

may be extended in the future as a through street. The signage is to be shown on the plans 

at the time of permitted, subject to staff approval; 

4. The installation of the leisure path along Central College Road be subject to staff 

approval; 

5. The architectural plans be updated at the time of permitting to meet the city architect’s 

recommendation of the following: 

a. Eliminate the horizontally proportioned grids; and 

b. Revise the dormers to reflect suggestions in the sketch provided. 

6. The plans be revised at the time of permitting as needed to meet the garage door color 

requirements, subject to staff approval; 

7. The final shutter hardware design be subject to staff approval; 

8. The city floodplain regulations (C.O. Section 1154.02 and 1154.04) do not allow for any 

modifications to this area. The basin and grading plans shall be revised to meet code 

requirements or a variance can be requested; 

9. The city landscape architect/design consultant comments outlined in the memo dated 

October 6, 2023 are addressed, subject to staff approval: 

a. Review entire development grading plan, focusing on the improvement of the 

following items... 

i. Storm Water Basins - revise basins to increase undulation in grade and 

create a more naturalized form. Basins should not exceed 6:1 slopes. 

ii. Proposed Wall (west edge of site) - If deemed necessary after thorough 

review of grading plan, provide a minimum of three to five site condition 

sections for review. Include plan and details for proposed site condition 

at break in wall along ‘Reserve J’. See diagram. 

iii. If proposed wall is deemed necessary, the use of natural stone is 

recommended. Developer to provide samples for review by Landscape 

Architect. 

b. Center the four relocated parcels within Haines Creek and Lourdes Drive, 

providing access to a leisure path on either side for increased public green space. 

See diagram. 

c. Provide a site plan that shows how the reserve green space will be used as an 

amenity for the community (i.e. seating, paths, etc.). See diagram. 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Final Development Plan FDP-87-2023  13 of 13   

d. Revise entry sign at Central College Road to match precedents in the 

neighborhood, see images for reference. 

e. Review and submit proposed removal of existing tree stands to landscape 

architect. Provide clear plan boundary for tree removal limits. Preserve the 

maximum number of established groupings of trees present on the site. Submit 

tree protection plan. Utilize fencing around tree drip lines for proper protection. 

f. Increase planting adjacent storm water basins. Trees should be planted in 

randomized spacing and species in groups of 3 to 9 trees. See diagram. 

g. If proposed wall is deemed necessary, update planting plan to include a seed mix 

of native grasses for disturbed areas. 

h. Densely plant trees along swale. Trees should be planted in randomized spacing 

and species in groups of 3 to 9 trees. See diagram. 

10. The final lighting details are subject to staff approval; and 

11. All of the city engineer comments be addressed, subject to staff approval.  

 

 

Approximate Site Location: 
 

 
Source: ArcGIS 



123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear Aaron Underhill,

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New 
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records. 

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make 
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can 
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community 
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to 
issuance of any zoning or building permits. 

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions.

Thank you.



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Tuesday, October 17, 2023

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 10/16/2023 .

Final Development Plan

Location: FDP-87-2023 

Applicant: EC New Vision Ohio LLC, c/o Aaron L. Underhill, Esq.

Application: FDP-87-2023

Request: Final development plan review and approval of 151 lot, age-restricted residential housing 
development on 63.5+/- acres for the subdivision known as the Courtyards at Haines Creek located at 
8390 and 8306 Central College Road in Franklin County.
Motion: To table FDP-87-2023 

Commission Vote: Motion Table, 5-0

Result: FDP-87-2023 was Tabled to the December 4th Informal meeting, by a vote of 5-0.

Recorded in the Official Journal this October 16, 2023

Condition(s) of Approval:

N/A 

Staff Certification:

Chelsea Nichols 
Planner



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 1 Final Plat FPL-88-2023  1 of 4   

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

October 16, 2023 Meeting 

  

 

COURTYARDS AT HAINES CREEK SUBDIVISION 

PHASE 1 PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT 

 

LOCATION:  Generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection at Central 

College Road and Jug Street Rd NW (PIDs: 222-005156, 222-005157, 

222-005158, 222-005159). 

APPLICANT:   EC New Vision Ohio LLC, c/o Aaron L. Underhill, Esq. 

REQUEST: Preliminary and Final Plat 

ZONING:   Courtyards at Haines Creek I-PUD Zoning District 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 

APPLICATION: FPL-88-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received September 15, 2023 and October 2, 2023.   

Staff report completed by Chelsea Nichols, Planner. 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

This final plat application is for phase 1 of the Courtyards at Haines Creek subdivision. This 

phase includes 46 residential lots, six reserves (A, B, F1, G, H, I), and seven new public streets 

on 29.111acres. 

 

The Planning Commission reviewed the zoning change and preliminary development plan for 

the property on June 20, 2023 (ZC-07-2023) and the zoning change was adopted by city council 

on July 18, 2023 (O-84-2023).  

 

There is a related final development plan application on the October 16th Planning Commission 

agenda. This application is reviewed under a separate staff report (FDP-87-2023).  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 63.5+/- acre subdivision is located in Franklin County. The site is generally located at the 

northwest corner of the intersection at Central College Road and Jug Street Rd NW. The site is 

located immediately west of the Licking County line and immediately, north of Agricultural 

zoned and residentially used properties, and there are unincorporated residentially zoned and used 

properties to the west and north of the site.  

 

III. PLAN REVIEW 

The Planning Commission’s review authority of the final plat is found under C.O. Section 1187. 

Upon review of the final plat, the Commission is to make a recommendation to the City Council. 

The staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations.  

 

Residential Lots 

• The final plat is consistent with the proposed Courtyards at Haines Creek final development 

plan. The plat shows 46 residential lots. The proposed lot layout and dimensions match what 

is shown on the final development plan and meet the requirements of the zoning text.  

o The final plat appropriately shows the lot widths to be at least 52 feet, as required by 

zoning text section VI(D). 

o The final plat appropriately shows the lot depths to be at least 115 feet, as required by 

zoning text section VI(E). 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 1 Final Plat FPL-88-2023  2 of 4   

o The final plat appropriately shows the following front yard setbacks, as required by the 

zoning text section VI(F)(2): 

▪ A 15-foot setback for Lane Homes (lots 100 and 101). 

▪ A 20-foot setback for all other lots on the final plat.  

o Zoning text section VI(F)(1) states that there shall be a minimum building and pavement 

setback of 100 feet from the Central College Road and Jug Street right-of-way. However, 

the text states that homes and other improvements located on lots 71 and 72 may 

encroach into this setback. This setback is shown on the final plat.  

 

Streets 

• The plat creates seven (7) new publicly dedicated streets totaling 6.339+/- acres. All of the 

new streets meet the right-of-way requirements in the zoning text:  

o Haines Creek Drive provides access to the subdivision from Central College Road, with 

60 feet of right-of-way.  

o Cedarville Drive, provides access to the subdivision from Jug Street, with 50 feet of 

right-of-way. 

o McClellan Drive East, is stubbed from this development to the west property line to 

provide for a future connection with the existing portion of McClellan Drive located in 

the Tidewater subdivision, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

o The city police chief has reviewed the street name and recommends this be 

changes in order to distinguish it from the existing McClellan Drive in the 

existing Tidewater subdivision located generally to the west of this site. The city 

staff recommends a condition of approval that the street name be changed to a 

unique name.  

o Wooster Drive, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

o Hiram Lane, a publicly dedicated alley, with 20 feet of right-of-way. 

o Findlay Drive, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

• The utility easements are shown on the plat. 

• Per the city’s subdivision regulations, C.O. 1187.04, all new streets shall be named and shall 

be subject to the approval of the Planning Commission. The applicant proposes to utilize the 

names of private Ohio colleges as street names within the subdivision. Haines Creek Drive 

shares the same name as the subdivision.  

 

Parkland, Open Space and Tree Preservation Areas 

• This phase of the plat contains six (6) reserve areas shown as Reserves “A”, “B”, “F1”, “G”, 

“H”, “I” on the plat with a total acreage of 14.589 +/- acres.  

o According to the plat notes, Reserves “A”, “B”, “F1”, and “G” shall be owned by the 

City of New Albany and maintained by the homeowner’s association in perpetuity for the 

purpose of open space and/or stormwater retention.  

o The plat states that Reserve “H” will also be owned and maintained by the homeowner’s 

association for the purpose of a Community Amenity Area.  

o The plat states that Reserve “I” shall be owned by the City of New Albany and 

maintained by the homeowner’s association until a public road is constructed within the 

reserve and is dedicated to the city as public right-of-way. The city staff recommends a 

condition of approval that the plat note be updated to clarify that the city will maintain 

just the street, which is everything between and including the concrete curbs. Everything 

else outside of the curbs must be maintained by the HOA in perpetuity. 

• Various tree preservation zones are shown on the final plat and comply with the tree 

preservation zone requirements of zoning text section VI(G).  

• Typically, subdivision plats that include tree preservation zones, will have a note that requires 

special markers be placed at each lot corner marking the edge of the Tree Preservation Area. 

The design of the markers shall be provided by the applicant and must be approved by the 

city. These markers must be installed prior to any infrastructure acceptance by the city. 

Historically, the signs are installed on every-other lot line so that there is one sign for each lot. 

Staff recommends a condition of approval that this note be added to the plat, that the 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 1 Final Plat FPL-88-2023  3 of 4   

developer supply the signs, the design be subject to staff approval and the markers are 

installed by the developer prior to any infrastructure acceptance by the city. 

• C.O. 1187.04(d)(4) and (5) requires verification that an application, if required, has been 

submitted to the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency in compliance with Section 401 of 

the Clean Water Act and to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in compliance with Section 404 

of the Clean Water Act. The applicant states that a delineation report is currently under review 

with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; however, the permits have not yet been issued. Staff 

requests evidence of any permits received from the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency as 

a condition of approval.  

• The city codified ordinance 1159.11 states when a final plat is approved by Council, the owner 

shall file and record the same in the Office of the County Recorder within twelve (12) months 

unless such time is, for good cause shown, extended by resolution of Council. If not recorded 

within this time, the approval of Council shall become null and void. 

 

IV. ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 

requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and provided the following comments. Staff 

recommends a condition of approval that these comments be addressed by the applicant, subject 

to staff approval.  

1. Sheet 2 of 3: Label the width as measured from the Jug Street road centerline to the r/w 

line. 

2. Sheet 3 of 3.  Label the 100-year flood plain boundary and floodway in Reserve A.   

3. Sheet 3 of 3.  Refer to Note M.  Delete Preliminary Development plan and add Final 

Development Plan. 

4. Label all proposed developer easements such as water, storm and sanitary.  

5. Provide more information regarding private utility easements.   

6. Refer to Code Section 1187.06 (c) (1) and (2).  Provide hard copy documentation 

indicating that all environmental permit requirements have been addressed. 

 

V. ACTION 

Basis for Approval: 

The final plat is generally consistent with the final development plan and meets code 

requirements. Should the Planning Commission approve the application, the following motion 

would be appropriate. 

 

Suggested Motion for FPL-88-2023:  

 

Move to approve final plat application FPL-88-2023 with the following conditions:  

1. The plat note for Reserve “I” be updated to clarify that when the public road is 

constructed within the reserve and is dedicated to the city as public right-of-way, the city 

will maintain just the street, which is everything between and including the concrete 

curbs. Everything else outside of the curbs must be maintained by the HOA in perpetuity. 

2. The plat be updated to include a note for the tree preservation zone signs. The developer 

shall supply the signs, the design be subject to staff approval, the signs are installed on 

every-other lot line so that there is one sign for each lot, and the markers are installed by 

the developer prior to any infrastructure acceptance by the city. 

3. The applicant provides evidence of any applications filed with the U.S. Army Corps of 

Engineers or Ohio Environmental Protection Agency, as well as any associated permits 

that are issued. 

4. The city engineer comments are addressed, subject to staff approval. 

5. Approval of the final plat is contingent upon the approval of the final development plan 

for this development. 

 

 

 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 1 Final Plat FPL-88-2023  4 of 4   

Approximate Site Location: 
 

 
Source: ArcGIS 



123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear Aaron Underhill,

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New 
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records. 

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make 
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can 
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community 
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to 
issuance of any zoning or building permits. 

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions.

Thank you.



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Tuesday, October 17, 2023

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 10/16/2023 .

Final Development Plan

Location: FPL-88-2023 

Applicant: EC New Vision Ohio LLC, c/o Aaron L. Underhill, Esq.

Application: FDP-88-2023

Request: Preliminary and final plat for phase one of Courtyards at Haines Creek located at 8390 and 
8306 Central College Road in Franklin County.
Motion: To table FPL-88-2023 

Commission Vote: Motion Table, 5-0

Result: FPL-88-2023 was Tabled to the December 4th Informal meeting, by a vote of 5-0.

Recorded in the Official Journal this October 16, 2023

Condition(s) of Approval:

N/A 

Staff Certification:

Chelsea Nichols 
Planner



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 2 Final Plat FPL-91-2023  1 of 4   

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

October 16, 2023 Meeting 

  

 

COURTYARDS AT HAINES CREEK SUBDIVISION 

PHASE 2 PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT 

 

LOCATION:  Generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection at Central 

College Road and Jug Street Rd NW (PIDs: 222-005156, 222-005157, 

222-005158, 222-005159). 

APPLICANT:   EC New Vision Ohio LLC, c/o Aaron L. Underhill, Esq. 

REQUEST: Preliminary and Final Plat 

ZONING:   Courtyards at Haines Creek I-PUD Zoning District 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 

APPLICATION: FPL-91-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received September 15, 2023 and October 2, 2023.   

Staff report completed by Chelsea Nichols, Planner. 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

This final plat application is for phase 2 of the Courtyards at Haines Creek subdivision. This 

phase includes 56 residential lots, four reserves (C1, F2, J, and K), and six new public streets on 

18.990 acres. 

 

The Planning Commission reviewed the zoning change and preliminary development plan for 

the property on June 20, 2023 (ZC-07-2023) and the zoning change was adopted by city council 

on July 18, 2023 (O-84-2023).  

 

There is a related final development plan application on the October 16th Planning Commission 

agenda. This application is reviewed under a separate staff report (FDP-87-2023).  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 63.5+/- acre subdivision is located in Franklin County. The site is generally located at the 

northwest corner of the intersection at Central College Road and Jug Street Rd NW. The site is 

located immediately west of the Licking County line and immediately, north of Agricultural 

zoned and residentially used properties, and there are unincorporated residentially zoned and used 

properties to the west and north of the site.  

 

III. PLAN REVIEW 

The Planning Commission’s review authority of the final plat is found under C.O. Section 1187. 

Upon review of the final plat, the Commission is to make a recommendation to the City Council. 

The staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations.  

 

Residential Lots 

• The final plat is consistent with the proposed Courtyards at Haines Creek final development 

plan. The plat shows 56 residential lots. The proposed lot layout and dimensions match what 

is shown on the final development plan and meet the requirements of the zoning text.  

o The final plat appropriately shows the lot widths to be at least 52 feet, as required by 

zoning text section VI(D). 

o The final plat appropriately shows the lot depths to be at least 115 feet, as required by 

zoning text section VI(E). 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 2 Final Plat FPL-91-2023  2 of 4   

o The final plat appropriately shows the following front yard setbacks, as required by the 

zoning text section VI(F)(2): 

▪ A 15-foot setback for Lane Homes (lots 88-99). 

▪ A 20-foot setback for all other lots on the final plat.  

 

Streets 

• The plat creates six (6) new publicly dedicated streets totaling 3.504+/- acres. All of the new 

streets meet the right-of-way requirements in the zoning text:  

o Haines Creek Drive provides north-south access through the subdivision, with 60 feet of 

right-of-way.  

o Heidelberg Drive, is stubbed from this development to the west property line to provide 

for a future connection, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

o Wooster Drive, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

o Hiram Lane, a publicly dedicated alley, with 20 feet of right-of-way. 

o Marietta Drive, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

o Lourdes Drive, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

• The utility easements are shown on the plat. 

• Per the city’s subdivision regulations, C.O. 1187.04, all new streets shall be named and shall 

be subject to the approval of the Planning Commission. The applicant proposes to utilize the 

names of private Ohio colleges as street names within the subdivision. Haines Creek Drive 

shares the same name as the subdivision.  

 

Parkland, Open Space and Tree Preservation Areas 

• This phase of the plat contains four (4) reserve areas shown as Reserves “C1”, “F2”, “J”, and 

“K” on the plat with a total acreage of 5.848+/- acres.  

o According to the plat notes, Reserves “C1” and “F2”, shall be owned by the City of New 

Albany and maintained by the homeowner’s association in perpetuity for the purpose of 

open space and/or stormwater retention. 

o The zoning text states that in the area consisting of Reserve C1, the application of 

fertilizer or other lawn treatment chemicals shall be prohibited. Within this area, prairie 

grass shall be planted and maintained and the landscape plan shall provide for the 

planting of additional trees to increase buffering of the site from the properties to the 

north. The city staff recommends a condition of approval that the plat note includes these 

restrictions for this area.  

o The plat states Reserve “J” shall be owned by the City of New Albany and maintained by 

the homeowner’s association in perpetuity for the purpose of open space and/or 

stormwater retention.  

o The plat states trees as shown on the Final Development Plan within Reserve “J” 

shall be preserved and subject to staff approval. Within this reserve, only the 

construction of paths/trails/sidewalks, underground utility lines and underground 

storm water management infrastructure shall be permitted.  

o The plat includes a 14-foot-wide general utility easement along Wooster Drive. A 

plat note requires healthy mature trees and understory vegetation to be preserved 

unless they conflict with the installation of permitted utility or storm water 

infrastructure. And, when trees are removed from the reserve due to utility 

installation, reasonable efforts shall be made to plant new trees in areas within 

the reserve. Trees shall not be required to be planted in easements and/or 

locations that may harm the health of preserved trees or unreasonably encroach 

into the rear yards of lots. 

o Trees and understory vegetation within the reserve may be trimmed, cut, or 

removed if they are diseased, dead, or of a noxious species or if they present a 

threat of danger to persons or property.  

• The plat states Reserve “K” shall be owned by the City of New Albany and maintained by the 

homeowner’s association until a public road is constructed within the reserve and is dedicated 

to the city as public right-of-way. The city staff recommends a condition of approval that the 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 2 Final Plat FPL-91-2023  3 of 4   

plat note be updated to clarify that the city will maintain just the street, which is everything 

between and including the concrete curbs. Everything else outside of the curbs must be 

maintained by the HOA in perpetuity.  

• Various tree preservation zones are shown on the final plat and comply with the tree 

preservation zone requirements of zoning text section VI(G).  

• Typically, subdivision plats that include tree preservation zones, have a note that requires 

special markers be placed at each lot corner marking the edge of the Tree Preservation Area. 

The design of the markers shall be provided by the applicant and must be approved by the 

city. These markers must be installed prior to any infrastructure acceptance by the city. 

Historically, the signs are installed on every-other lot line so that there is one sign for each lot. 

Staff recommends a condition of approval that this note be added to the plat, that the 

developer supply the signs, the design be subject to staff approval and the markers are 

installed by the developer prior to any infrastructure acceptance by the city. 

• C.O. 1187.04(d)(4) and (5) requires verification that an application, if required, has been 

submitted to the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency in compliance with Section 401 of 

the Clean Water Act and to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in compliance with Section 404 

of the Clean Water Act. The applicant states that a delineation report is currently under review 

with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; however, the permits have not yet been issued. Staff 

requests evidence of any permits received from the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency as 

a condition of approval.  

• The city codified ordinance 1159.11 states when a final plat is approved by Council, the owner 

shall file and record the same in the Office of the County Recorder within twelve (12) months 

unless such time is, for good cause shown, extended by resolution of Council. If not recorded 

within this time, the approval of Council shall become null and void. 

 

IV. ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 

requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and provided the following comments. Staff 

recommends a condition of approval that these comments be addressed by the applicant, subject 

to staff approval.  

1. Label all proposed developer easements such as water, storm and sanitary.  

2. Provide more information regarding private utility easements.   

3. Refer to Code Section 1187.06 (c) (1) and (2).  Provide hard copy documentation 

indicating that all environmental permit requirements have been addressed. 

4. Refer to Note J.  Delete Preliminary Development plan and add Final Development Plan. 

V. ACTION 

Basis for Approval: 

The final plat is generally consistent with the final development plan and meets code 

requirements. Should the Planning Commission approve the application, the following motion 

would be appropriate. 

 

Suggested Motion for FPL-91-2023:  

 

Move to approve final plat application FPL-91-2023 with the following conditions:  

1. The zoning text states that in the area consisting of Reserve C1, the application of 

fertilizer or other lawn treatment chemicals shall be prohibited. Within this area, prairie 

grass shall be planted and maintained and the landscape plan shall provide for the 

planting of additional trees to increase buffering of the site from the properties to the 

north. The plat note shall be updated to include these restrictions for this area. 

2. The plat note for Reserve “K” be updated to clarify that when the public road is 

constructed within the reserve and is dedicated to the city as public right-of-way, the city 

will maintain just the street, which is everything between and including the concrete 

curbs. Everything else outside of the curbs must be maintained by the HOA in perpetuity. 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 2 Final Plat FPL-91-2023  4 of 4   

3. The plat be updated to include a note for the tree preservation zone signs. The developer 

shall supply the signs, the design be subject to staff approval, the signs are installed on 

every-other lot line so that there is one sign for each lot, and the markers are installed by 

the developer prior to any infrastructure acceptance by the city. 

4. The applicant provides evidence of any applications filed with the U.S. Army Corps of 

Engineers or Ohio Environmental Protection Agency, as well as any associated permits 

that are issued. 

5. The city engineer comments are addressed, subject to staff approval. 

6. Approval of the final plat is contingent upon the approval of the final development plan 

for this development.   

 

 

Approximate Site Location: 
 

 
Source: ArcGIS 



123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear Aaron Underill,

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New 
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records. 

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make 
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can 
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community 
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to 
issuance of any zoning or building permits. 

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions.

Thank you.



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Tuesday, October 17, 2023

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 10/16/2023 .

Final Development Plan

Location: FPL-91-2023 

Applicant: EC New Vision Ohio LLC, c/o Aaron L. Underhill, Esq.

Application: FDP-91-2023

Request: Preliminary and final plat for phase two of Courtyards at Haines Creek located at 8390 
and 8306 Central College Road in Franklin County.
Motion: To table FPL-91-2023 

Commission Vote: Motion Table, 5-0

Result: FPL-91-2023 was Tabled to the December 4th Informal meeting, by a vote of 5-0.

Recorded in the Official Journal this October 16, 2023

Condition(s) of Approval:

N/A 

Staff Certification:

Chelsea Nichols 
Planner



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 3 Final Plat FPL-92-2023  1 of 4   

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

October 16, 2023 Meeting 

  

 

COURTYARDS AT HAINES CREEK SUBDIVISION 

PHASE 3 PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT 

 

LOCATION:  Generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection at Central 

College Road and Jug Street Rd NW (PIDs: 222-005156, 222-005157, 

222-005158, 222-005159). 

APPLICANT:   EC New Vision Ohio LLC, c/o Aaron L. Underhill, Esq. 

REQUEST: Preliminary and Final Plat 

ZONING:   Courtyards at Haines Creek I-PUD Zoning District 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 

APPLICATION: FPL-92-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received September 15, 2023 and October 2, 2023.   

Staff report completed by Chelsea Nichols, Planner. 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

This final plat application is for phase 3 of the Courtyards at Haines Creek subdivision. This 

phase includes 49 residential lots, three reserves (C2, D, and E), and four new public streets on 

15.428 acres. 

 

The Planning Commission reviewed the zoning change and preliminary development plan for 

the property on June 20, 2023 (ZC-07-2023) and the zoning change was adopted by city council 

on July 18, 2023 (O-84-2023).  

 

There is a related final development plan application on the October 16th Planning Commission 

agenda. This application is reviewed under a separate staff report (FDP-87-2023).  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 63.5+/- acre subdivision is located in Franklin County. The site is generally located at the 

northwest corner of the intersection at Central College Road and Jug Street Rd NW. The site is 

located immediately west of the Licking County line and immediately, north of Agricultural 

zoned and residentially used properties, and there are unincorporated residentially zoned and used 

properties to the west and north of the site.  

 

III. PLAN REVIEW 

The Planning Commission’s review authority of the final plat is found under C.O. Section 1187. 

Upon review of the final plat, the Commission is to make a recommendation to the City Council. 

The staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations.  

 

Residential Lots 

• At the Parks and Trails Advisory Board meeting on Monday, October 2, 2023, the applicant 

verbally committed to sliding lots 152-155 west to allow access at the northeast corner. The 

Planning Commission will evaluate the lot location as part of the Final Development Plan 

application. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the lots on this plat match the lots 

on the final development plan.  



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 3 Final Plat FPL-92-2023  2 of 4   

• The final plat is consistent with the proposed Courtyards at Haines Creek final development 

plan. The plat shows 49 residential lots. The proposed lot layout and dimensions match what 

is shown on the final development plan and meet the requirements of the zoning text.  

o The final plat appropriately shows the lot widths to be at least 52 feet, as required by 

zoning text section VI(D). 

o The final plat appropriately shows the lot depths to be at least 115 feet, as required by 

zoning text section VI(E). 

o The final plat appropriately shows the front yard setbacks to be 20 feet, as required by the 

zoning text section VI(F)(2): 

 

Streets 

• The plat creates four (4) new publicly dedicated streets totaling 1.298+/- acres. All of the new 

streets meet the right-of-way requirements in the zoning text:  

o Haines Creek Drive, with 60 feet of right-of-way.  

o Heidelberg Drive, is stubbed from this development to the west property line to provide 

for a future connection, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

o Lourdes Drive, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

o Defiance Drive, with 50 feet of right-of-way. 

• The utility easements are shown on the plat. 

• Per the city’s subdivision regulations, C.O. 1187.04, all new streets shall be named and shall 

be subject to the approval of the Planning Commission. The applicant proposes to utilize the 

names of private Ohio colleges as street names within the subdivision. Haines Creek Drive 

shares the same name as the subdivision.  

 

Parkland, Open Space and Tree Preservation Areas 

• This phase of the plat contains three (3) reserve areas shown as Reserves “C2”, “D”, and “E” 

on the plat with a total acreage of 8.801+/- acres.  

o According to the plat notes, the reserves shall be owned by the City of New Albany and 

maintained by the homeowner’s association in perpetuity for the purpose of open space 

and/or stormwater retention.  

o The zoning text states that in the area consisting of Reserve C2, the application of 

fertilizer or other lawn treatment chemicals shall be prohibited. Within this area, prairie 

grass shall be planted and maintained and the landscape plan shall provide for the 

planting of additional trees to increase buffering of the site from the properties to the 

north. The city staff recommends a condition of approval that the plat note includes these 

restrictions for this area.  

• Various tree preservation zones are shown on the final plat and comply with the tree 

preservation zone requirements of zoning text section VI(G).  

• Typically, subdivision plats that include tree preservation zones, have a note that requires 

special markers be placed at each lot corner marking the edge of the Tree Preservation Area. 

The design of the markers shall be provided by the applicant and must be approved by the 

city. These markers must be installed prior to any infrastructure acceptance by the city. 

Historically, the signs are installed on every-other lot line so that there is one sign for each lot. 

Staff recommends a condition of approval that this note be added to the plat, that the 

developer supply the signs, the design be subject to staff approval and the markers are 

installed by the developer prior to any infrastructure acceptance by the city. 

• C.O. 1187.04(d)(4) and (5) requires verification that an application, if required, has been 

submitted to the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency in compliance with Section 401 of 

the Clean Water Act and to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in compliance with Section 404 

of the Clean Water Act. The applicant states that a delineation report is currently under review 

with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; however, the permits have not yet been issued. Staff 

requests evidence of any permits received from the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency as 

a condition of approval.  

• The city codified ordinance 1159.11 states when a final plat is approved by Council, the owner 

shall file and record the same in the Office of the County Recorder within twelve (12) months 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 3 Final Plat FPL-92-2023  3 of 4   

unless such time is, for good cause shown, extended by resolution of Council. If not recorded 

within this time, the approval of Council shall become null and void. 

 

IV. ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 

requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and provided the following comments. Staff 

recommends a condition of approval that these comments be addressed by the applicant, subject 

to staff approval.  

1. Label all proposed developer easements such as water, storm and sanitary.  

2. Provide more information regarding private utility easements.   

3. Refer to Code Section 1187.06 (c) (1) and (2).  Provide hard copy documentation 

indicating that all environmental permit requirements have been addressed. 

4. Refer to Note I.  Delete Preliminary Development plan and add Final Development Plan. 

V. ACTION 

Basis for Approval: 

The final plat is generally consistent with the final development plan and meets code 

requirements. Should the Planning Commission approve the application, the following motion 

would be appropriate. 

 

Suggested Motion for FPL-92-2023:  

 

Move to approve final plat application FPL-92-2023 with the following conditions:  

1. That the lots on this plat match the lots on the final development plan.  

2. The zoning text states that in the area consisting of Reserve C1, the application of 

fertilizer or other lawn treatment chemicals shall be prohibited. Within this area, prairie 

grass shall be planted and maintained and the landscape plan shall provide for the 

planting of additional trees to increase buffering of the site from the properties to the 

north. The plat note shall be updated to include these restrictions for this area. 

3. The plat be updated to include a note for the tree preservation zone signs. The developer 

shall supply the signs, the design be subject to staff approval, the signs are installed on 

every-other lot line so that there is one sign for each lot, and the markers are installed by 

the developer prior to any infrastructure acceptance by the city. 

4. The applicant provides evidence of any applications filed with the U.S. Army Corps of 

Engineers or Ohio Environmental Protection Agency, as well as any associated permits 

that are issued. 

5. The city engineer comments are addressed, subject to staff approval. 

6. Approval of the final plat is contingent upon the approval of the final development plan 

for this development.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PC 23 1016 Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 3 Final Plat FPL-92-2023  4 of 4   

 

Approximate Site Location: 
 

 
Source: ArcGIS 



123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear Aaron Underhill,

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New 
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records. 

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make 
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can 
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community 
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to 
issuance of any zoning or building permits. 

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions.

Thank you.



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Tuesday, October 17, 2023

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 10/16/2023 .

Final Development Plan

Location: FPL-92-2023 

Applicant: EC New Vision Ohio LLC, c/o Aaron L. Underhill, Esq.

Application: FDP-92-2023

Request: Preliminary and final plat for phase three of Courtyards at Haines Creek located at 
8390 and 8306 Central College Road in Franklin County.
Motion: To table FPL-92-2023 

Commission Vote: Motion Table, 5-0

Result: FPL-92-2023 was Tabled to the December 4th Informal meeting, by a vote of 5-0.

Recorded in the Official Journal this October 16, 2023

Condition(s) of Approval:

N/A 

Staff Certification:

Chelsea Nichols 
Planner



PC 23 1016 Jug Street South Expansion Rezoning ZC-90-2023  1 of 6   

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

October 16, 2023 Meeting 

  

 

JUG STREET SOUTH EXPANSION ZONING DISTRICT 

ZONING AMENDMENT 

 

 

LOCATION:  2650 Harrison Road (PIDs: 037-112110-00.000, 037-111930-00.000, 

037-112044-00.001, 037-112044-00.003, 037-112044-01.000, 

037-112044-03.000, 037-112044-02.000, 037-112044-00.002, 

037-112044-00.009, 037-112044-00.004, 037-112044-00.005, 

037-112044-00.000, 037-112044-00.008, 037-112044-00.007, 

037-112044-00.005, 037-112050-00.001) 

APPLICANT:   Jackson B. Reynolds, III 

REQUEST: Zoning Amendment   

ZONING:   AG Agricultural to L-GE Limited General Employment  

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Employment Center 

APPLICATION: ZC-90-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received September 15, 2023 and October 6, 2023.   

Staff report completed by Chelsea Nichols, Planner. 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests a review and recommendation to rezone approximately 84.736 acres.  

The request creates a new limitation text for the area known as the “Jug Street South Expansion 

Zoning District” by zoning the area to Limited General Employment (L-GE). The proposed 

rezoning expands the New Albany International Business Park. 

 

The zoning district meets the recommended use and development standards found in the Engage 

New Albany strategic plan Northeast Area addendum Employment Center land use category. The 

text contains the same list of permitted, conditional, and prohibited uses as other similar zoning 

districts that are also zoned Limited General Employment (L-GE). This rezoning extends the 

same or similar zoning and development standards to this property as currently apply to its 

neighboring commercially zoned property in the general vicinity.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The overall site consists of 16 parcels and is located within Licking County. The site is located at 

the southwest corner of Jug Street St Rd SW and Harrison Rd NW. The subject parcels are 

currently being annexed into the city.  The annexation petitions were submitted on June 23, 2023 

and was heard for first and record readings at city council on September 5, 2023 and September 

19, 2023. The 30-day referendum period expires on October 19, 2023.  

 

There are no residentially zoned or used properties adjacent to this zoning district. The site is 

comprised of residential homes. The neighboring uses and zoning districts include L-GE and 

Technology Manufacturing District. The immediate neighboring zoning districts include the 

Harrison East L-GE zoning district to the east, the Harrison West and Business Park East 

Innovation L-GE zoning districts to the south, the Jug Street South L-GE zoning district to the 

west, the Jug Street North L-GE zoning district to the north, and the Technology Manufacturing 

zoning district to the northeast. 

 



PC 23 1016 Jug Street South Expansion Rezoning ZC-90-2023  2 of 6   

III. PLAN REVIEW 

Planning Commission’s review authority of the zoning amendment application is found under 

C.O. Chapters 1107.02 and 1159.09. Upon review of the proposed amendment to the zoning map, 

the Commission is to make recommendation to City Council. The property owners within 200 

feet of the property in question have been notified. 

 

Staff’s review is based on city plans and studies, proposed zoning text, and the codified 

ordinances. Primary concerns and issues have been indicated below, with needed action or 

recommended action in underlined text.  

 

Per Codified Ordinance Chapter 1111.06 in deciding on the change, the Planning Commission 

shall consider, among other things, the following elements of the case: 

(a) Adjacent land use. 

(b) The relationship of topography to the use intended or to its implications. 

(c) Access, traffic flow. 

(d) Adjacent zoning. 

(e) The correctness of the application for the type of change requested. 

(f) The relationship of the use requested to the public health, safety, or general welfare. 

(g) The relationship of the area requested to the area to be used. 

(h) The impact of the proposed use on the local school district(s). 

 

A. New Albany Strategic Plan  

The zoning district is located within the 2018 Western Licking County Accord’s 

Office/Warehouse future land use district. The subject parcels are also located within the New 

Albany Planning Area. The 2022 Engage New Albany strategic plan lists the following 

development standards for the Employment Center future land use district: 

1. No freeway / pole signs are allowed.  

2. Heavy landscaping is necessary to buffer these uses from adjacent residential areas.  

3. Plan office buildings within context of the area, not just the site, including building 

heights within development parcels. 

4. Sites with multiple buildings should be well organized and clustered if possible. 

5. All office developments are encouraged to employ shared parking or be designed to 

accommodate it. 

6. All office developments should plan for regional stormwater management. 

7. All associated mechanical operations should be concealed from the public right-of-way 

and screened architecturally or with landscape in an appealing manner. 

8. Any periphery security should integrate with the existing landscape and maintain and 

enhance the character of road corridor. 

9. Combined curb cuts and cross-access easements are encouraged. 

10. The use of materials, colors, and texture to break up large-scale facades is required. 

 

B. Use, Site and Layout 

1. The proposed zoning text is a limitation text. A limitation text can only establish more 

restrictive requirements than the zoning code.  

2. The applicant proposes the same development standards from nearby L-GE zoning 

districts within the New Albany International Business Park. Due to the proximity of 

this site to the State Route 161 interchange and its location adjacent to commercially 

zoned and used land in the existing Licking County business park, the site appears to be 

most appropriate for commercial development.   

3. This district has the same list of permitted, conditional, and prohibited General 

Employment uses as the neighboring L-GE zoning districts.  

o The limitation text allows for general office activities, data centers, warehouse 

& distribution, and research & production uses. Personal service and retail 

product sales and services are only allowed as accessory uses to a permitted use 

in this zoning district.    



PC 23 1016 Jug Street South Expansion Rezoning ZC-90-2023  3 of 6   

o Conditional uses industrial manufacturing and assembly, car fleet/truck fleet 

parking, and limited educational institutions. 

o Prohibited uses include industrial product sales and services, mini-warehouses, 

off-premises signs, vehicle services, radio/television broadcast facilities, and 

sexually oriented business.   

4. The text establishes the following setbacks which are consistent with surrounding 

zoning districts where L-GE uses are also permitted: 

Perimeter Boundary Pavement Setback Building Setback 

Jug Street (Northern) 50 feet 100 feet 

Harrison Road (Eastern) 50 feet 50 feet 

Perimeter Boundaries 

(Western and Southern) 

25 feet 25 feet 

Southern Boundary 25 feet 25 feet 

Other Public Rights-of-Way  25 feet 50 feet 

There are no residentially owned and used properties along the boundaries of this 

zoning district.  

5. The text contains the same provision for elimination of setbacks for building and 

pavement when this zoning district and any adjacent parcel located outside of this 

zoning district come under common ownership, are zoned to allow compatible non-

residential uses, and are combined into a single parcel.  

 

C. Access, Loading, Parking  

1. The zoning text states that the number, locations and spacing of curb cuts along public 

rights-of-way shall be determined and approved at the time that a certificate of 

appropriateness is issued for a project in this zoning district.  

2. The proposed text requires 30 feet of right-of-way to be dedicated along Jug Street and 

40 feet of right-of-way to be dedicated along Harrison Road, which is consistent with the 

surrounding zoning districts.  

3. In addition to right-of-way amounts, the city staff is recommending a condition of 

approval that the text be revised to require the property owner to grant easements 

adjacent to the right-of-way in order to install and maintain streetscape improvements 

and/or utilities. The proposed right-of-way widths and easement requirements are 

sufficient to accommodate the city street capital improvement projects.  

4. Parking is required be provided per code requirements (Chapter 1167) and will be 

evaluated at the time of development of the site.   

5. The text requires an 8-foot-wide leisure trail to be installed along Jug Street and Harrison 

Road frontage of the site. 

 

D. Architectural Standards 

1. The proposed rezoning implements many of the same standards and limitations set forth 

in the New Albany Architectural Design Guidelines and Requirements (Chapter 1157).   

2. The zoning text section IV.A. permits 85-foot-tall buildings, subject to Section 1165.03 

of the Codified Ordinances. The General Employment district does not typically have a 

height limitation. However, there are other L-GE districts that do implement a height 

restriction usually allowing up to 85-foot tall buildings. There are some L-GE districts 

that require a height maximum of 65 feet when adjacent to residential uses. In this case, 

there are no residentially owned and used properties along the boundaries of this zoning 

district.  

3. The City’s Design Guidelines and Requirements do not provide architectural standards 

for warehouse and distribution type facilities. Due to the inherent size and nature of these 

facilities careful attention must be paid to their design to ensure they are appropriately 

integrated into the rest of the business park. This limitation text contains specific design 

requirements for uses not governed by the DGRs as those in other subareas of the Licking 

County business park, which ensures the quality design of these buildings throughout this 

portion of the business park. 



PC 23 1016 Jug Street South Expansion Rezoning ZC-90-2023  4 of 6   

4. Section IV.E.6 of the zoning text requires complete screening of all roof-mounted 

equipment on all four sides of the building using materials that are consistent and 

harmonious with the building’s façade and character. The text indicates that the screening 

is provided to screen equipment from off-site view but also to buffer sound generated by 

the equipment.  

5. The city staff recommends a condition of approval that the zoning text be updated to 

require building color palettes be as simple and unobtrusive as possible and that buildings 

shall avoid overly bright or jarring colors. The addition of this language will ensure 

constancy within the business park as this language has been established for surrounding 

zoning districts where L-GE uses are also permitted.  

 

E. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  

1. Maximum lot coverage for this zoning district is 75%.  This matches the surrounding 

zoning districts.  

2. The proposed zoning text contains the same tree preservation language as the neighboring 

approved L-GE zoning texts. The text states that the developer of the property shall make 

a reasonable effort to preserve existing trees to provide a buffer from the public streets. 

Additionally, the text states that if reasonable efforts cannot be made to preserve existing 

trees, an additional 1 tree per 25 feet of road frontage must be provided in addition to the 

required street trees.  

3. Beech Road North Landscape Plan: Landscaping for the Jug Street right of way shall 

adhere the guidelines found in the Beech Road North Landscape Plan as adopted by the 

City of New Albany.  The city staff recommends a condition of approval that the text be 

updated to require the landscape standards in the plan to apply to both Jug Street and 

Harrison Road. 

4. A street tree row shall be established along Jug Street and Harrison Road and shall 

contain one (1) tree for every thirty (30) feet of road frontage. Trees may be grouped or 

regularly spaced.  Street trees shall be located within the right-of-way. Minimum street 

tree size at installation shall be three (3) caliper inches. This requirement may be waived 

in areas where existing vegetation occurs, subject to approval of the City Landscape 

Architect. 

5. Minimum On-Site Tree Sizes: Unless otherwise set forth herein, minimum tree size at 

installation shall be no less than two and one half (2 ½) inches in caliper for shade trees, 

six (6) feet in height for evergreen trees, two (2) inches in caliper for ornamental trees, 

and thirty (30) inches in height for shrubs. Caliper shall be measured six (6) inches above 

grade. 

6. The zoning text states the standard New Albany white four-board horse fence may (but 

shall not be required to) be provided within the public right-of-way. However, all of the 

neighboring site have the white horse fence. The city staff recommends a condition of 

approval that the text be revised to require the white four-board horse fence. 

7. The zoning text states all security fencing shall be coordinated and consistent between 

sites. All security fencing shall be black decorative Ameristar fencing or black vinyl 

coated chain link fencing. The city staff recommends a condition of approval that the 

zoning text be revised to include “or similar subject to review and approval of the city 

landscape architect.” The addition of this language will ensure constancy within the 

business park as this language has been established for surrounding zoning districts 

where L-GE uses are also permitted. 

8. Utilities: The zoning text states that all new utilities installed solely to serve this zoning 

district shall be installed underground. The city staff recommends a condition of approval 

that the zoning text be updated to require an exception for transmission lines for electric.  

The addition of this language will ensure constancy within the business park as this 

language has been established for surrounding zoning districts where L-GE uses are also 

permitted. 

 

F. Lighting & Signage 



PC 23 1016 Jug Street South Expansion Rezoning ZC-90-2023  5 of 6   

1. All signage shall conform to the standards set forth in Codified Ordinance Section 1169. 

2. All lighting shall be cut-off type fixtures and down cast to minimize light spilling beyond 

the boundaries of the site. The maximum height is 30 feet. 

3. The zoning text requires landscape lighting details to be included in the landscape plan 

which is subject to review and approval by the City Landscape Architect. 

 

IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 

requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and have no comments.  

 

V. SUMMARY 

The limitation text provides for stricter limitations in use and design than the straight General 

Employment zoning districts and retains many of the requirements found in adjacent existing 

zoning texts. Due to the proximity of this site to the State Route 161 interchange and its 

location adjacent to commercially zoned land in the existing New Albany Business Park, the 

site appears to be most appropriate for commercial development.  

 

It appears that the proposed zoning text meets or exceeds a majority of the development 

standards found in both the Western Licking County Accord Plan and the Engage New Albany 

Strategic Plan.  

 

1. The rezoning results in a more comprehensive planned redevelopment of the area and 

will ensure compatibility between uses (1111.06(a)).  

2. The L-GE rezoning application is an appropriate application for the request (1111.06(e)).  

3. The overall effect of the development advances and benefits the general welfare of the 

community (1111.06(f)).  

4. The proposed rezoning allows for the development of businesses that generate revenue 

for the school district while eliminating residential units having a positive impact on the 

school district (1111.06(h)).  

 

VI. ACTION 

Suggested Motion for ZC-90-2023:  

 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate:  

 

Move to recommend approval to city council of application ZC-90-2023, based on the 

findings in the staff report, with the following conditions: 

1. The zoning text be revised to require the property owner to grant easements adjacent to 

the right-of-way in order to install and maintain streetscape improvements and/or utilities. 

The proposed right-of-way widths and easement requirements are to be sufficient to 

accommodate the city street capital improvement projects; 

2. The zoning text be revised to require building color palettes be as simple and unobtrusive 

as possible and that buildings shall avoid overly bright or jarring colors; 

3. The zoning text be revised to require the Beech Road North Landscape Plan apply to both 

Jug Street and Harrison Road; 

4. The zoning text be revised to state that a standard New Albany white four-board horse 

fence shall be required to be provided within the public right-of-way; 

5. The zoning text be revised to state all security fencing shall be black decorative 

Ameristar fencing or black vinyl coated chain link fencing, or similar subject to review 

and approval of the city landscape architect; and  

6. The zoning text be revised to state all new utilities, with the exception of transmission 

line for electric, installed solely to serve this zoning district shall be installed 

underground. 

 

 



PC 23 1016 Jug Street South Expansion Rezoning ZC-90-2023  6 of 6   

Approximate Site Location: 
 

 
 

Source: Nearmap 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear Jackson B. Reynolds,

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New 
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records. 

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make 
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can 
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community 
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to 
issuance of any zoning or building permits. 

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions.

Thank you.



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Tuesday, October 17, 2023

The New Albany  Planning Commission took the following action on Monday, October 16, 2023 .

Final Development Plan Modification
Location: 2650 Harrison Road
 Applicant: Jackson B. Reynolds

Application: ZC-90-2023
Request: To rezone approximately 84.736 acres
Motion: To approve with conditions

Commission Vote: Motion to approve with conditions, 5-0 

Result: Rezoning, ZC-90-2023, was approved with conditions, by a vote of 5-0.

Recorded in the Official Journal this Tuesday, October 17, 2023.

Condition(s) of Approval:
See attached page three 
of three.

Staff Certification:

Chelsea Nichols
Planner



1. The zoning text be revised to require the property owner to grant easements adjacent to the right-

of-way in order to install and maintain streetscape improvements and/or utilities. 

2. The proposed right-of-way widths and easement requirements are to be sufficient to 

accommodate the city street capital improvement projects;

3. The zoning text be revised to require building color palettes be simple and unobtrusive and that 
buildings shall avoid overly bright or jarring colors;

4. The zoning text be revised to require the Beech Road North Landscape Plan apply to both Jug 
Street and Harrison Road;

5. The zoning text be revised to state that a standard New Albany white four-board horse fence shall 
be required to be provided within the public right-of-way;

6. The zoning text be revised to state all security fencing shall be black decorative Ameristar fencing 
or black vinyl coated chain link fencing, or similar subject to review and approval of the city 
landscape architect; and

7. The zoning text be revised to state all new utilities, with the exception of transmission line for 
electric, installed solely to serve this zoning district shall be installed underground.

Community Development Department
Conditions of Approval



23 1016 Briscoe Parkway Phase 1 Final Plat FPL-94-2023  1 of 2   

 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
October 16, 2023 Meeting 

  
 

BRISCOE PARKWAY PHASE 1 
FINAL PLAT 

 
 
LOCATION:  Generally located between Horizon Court and Harrison Road  (PIDs: 

095-111756-00.010, 095-111756-00.011, 095-111756-00.013, and 095-
111756-00.000) 

APPLICANT:   City of New Albany 
REQUEST: Final Plat   
ZONING:   Limited General Employment (L-GE) and Technology Manufacturing 

District (TMD) 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Employment Center 
APPLICATION: FPL-94-2023 
 
Review based on: Application materials received October 2, 2023.   
Staff report completed by Stephen Mayer, Planning Manager 
 
I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The application is for a final plat for Briscoe Parkway public street dedication and easements 
phase 1 located between Horizon Court and Harrison Road in Licking County. This new street 
provides additional connections within the New Albany International Business Park for existing 
and future development sites. 
 
The Planning Commission approved a preliminary plat (PP-43-2023) for this public street on 
April 17, 2023, with a condition that the road alignment be such that the 25-foot easement be 
50 feet from the centerline of Blacklick Creek. The final plats meet the condition by providing 
a minimum of 50 feet of separation from the easement to the creek’s centerline.  
 
II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 
The proposed right-of-way dedication connects Horizon Court to Harrison Road and ultimately 
Clover Valley Road. The property being dedicated and all of the adjacent property to the street is 
zoned L-GE permitting commercial uses such as office, distribution, manufacturing and 
production, and warehousing uses.  
  
III. PLAN REVIEW 
The Planning Commission’s review authority of the final plat is found under C.O. Section 1187. 
Upon review of the final plat, the Commission is to make a recommendation to City Council. The 
staff’s review is based on city plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations.  
 
1. This plat dedicates right-of-way to the City of New Albany for phase 1 of a new public street 

named Briscoe Parkway. The dedication extension consists of approximately 3,033 +/- linear 
feet of a new public street totaling approximately 4.152+/- acres. There are no reserves being 
platted or lots being created within this new right-of-way extension.   

2. This is the first of two phases for a new 6,042 linear foot long east/west public street 
connecting Horizon Court, Harrison Road and Clover Valley Road in Licking County. The 
phase 2 final plat is also on the October 16, 2023 Planning Commission agenda.  

3. The plat dedicates 60 feet of right-of-way. The plat includes a 25 foot wide utility and 
streetscape easement on both sides of the street.   



23 1016 Briscoe Parkway Phase 1 Final Plat FPL-94-2023  2 of 2   

4. The street extends through the Jug Street North zoning district, the proposed Harrison Road 
Triangle zoning district, and Technology Manufacturing zoning district. 

5. Based on the roadway typologies in the immediate area, this proposed roadway is best 
classified as a Business Park road character classification as described in the Engage New 
Albany Strategic Plan. The new street is designed to accommodate heavier traffic traveling 
into the business park. The 60 feet of right-of-way, coupled with the proposed 25 foot wide 
easements on each side is consistent with a 67-foot to 115-foot range recommendation in the 
Engage New Albany Strategic Plan.  

 
IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 
The city Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 
requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and has no comments.  
 
V. RECOMMENDATION 
Basis for Approval: 
The proposed street plat is consistent with the approved preliminary plat alignment and 
condition of approval. It meets the goals and objectives found in the Engage New Albany 
strategic plan for this area. One of the mobility goals within the Engage New Albany strategic 
plan is to maximize the connectivity and safety of New Albany’s network. One of the plan's 
priorities is to distribute traffic throughout the roadway network. This street serves as an 
additional connection within the New Albany Business Park and provides access to existing 
and future development sites. This connection results in Horizon Court no longer being a cul-
de-sac and connects that portion of the business park to the supplier park.  
 
VI. ACTION 
Suggested Motion for FPL-94-2023 (additional conditions may be added):   
 
Move to recommend approval of application FPL-94-2023.  
 
 
Approximate Street Location Shown in Red and Phase 1 Limits Outlined in Yellow: 

 



  

99 West Main Street • P.O. Box 188 • New Albany, Ohio 43054 • 614.855.3913 • Fax 614.939.2234 • newalbanyohio.org 

 

 
 

 

 

Community Development Department 

 

RE:  City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action 

 

Dear Director Chrysler, 

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by the New Albany Planning 

Commission.  Please retain this document for your records. 

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy, or make 

alterations to any land area or building.  A building permit and/or zoning permit is required before any 

work can be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community 

Development Department. 

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval, these conditions must be met prior to 

issuance of any zoning or building permits. 

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions. 

Thank you.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

99 West Main Street • P.O. Box 188 • New Albany, Ohio 43054 • 614.855.3913 • Fax 614.939.2234 • newalbanyohio.org 

 

 
 

 

 

Community Development Department 

Decision and Record of Action 

Tuesday, November 7, 2023 

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 10/16/2023. 

Final Plat 

Location:  FPL-94-2023 

Applicant: City of New Albany 

Application: FPL-94-2023 

Request:  Final Plat for Briscoe Parkway public street dedication and easements phase I located 

between Horizon Court and Harrison Road in Licking County. 

Motion: To approve. 

Commission Vote:  Motion Granted 5-0. 

Result: Final Plat, FPL-94-2023, was granted by a vote of 5-0. 

 

Recorded in the Official Journal this November 7, 2023. 

 

Staff Certification: 

 

 

Chris Christian 

Planner II 

  



23 1016 Briscoe Parkway Phase 2 Final Plat FPL-95-2023   1 of 2   

 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
October 16, 2023 Meeting 

  
 

BRISCOE PARKWAY PHASE 2 
FINAL PLAT 

 
 
LOCATION:  Generally located between Horizon Court and Harrison Road  (PIDs: 

095-111756-00.010, 095-111756-00.011, 095-111756-00.013, and 095-
111756-00.000) 

APPLICANT:   City of New Albany 
REQUEST: Final Plat   
ZONING:   Limited General Employment (L-GE) and Technology Manufacturing 

District (TMD) 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Employment Center 
APPLICATION: FPL-94-2023 
 
Review based on: Application materials received October 2, 2023.   
Staff report completed by Stephen Mayer, Planning Manager 
 
I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The application is for a final plat for Briscoe Parkway public street dedication and easements 
phase 2 located between Harrison Road and Clover Valley Road in Licking County. This new 
street provides additional connections within the New Albany International Business Park for 
existing and future development sites. 
 
The Planning Commission approved a preliminary plat (PP-43-2023) for this public street on 
April 17, 2023, with a condition that the road alignment be such that the 25-foot easement be 
50 feet from the centerline of Blacklick Creek. The final plats meet the condition by providing 
a minimum of 50 feet of separation from the easement to the creek’s centerline.  
 
II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 
The proposed right-of-way dedication connects Harrison Road to Clover Valley Road. The 
property being dedicated and all of the adjacent property to the street is zoned L-GE and TMD 
permitting commercial uses such as office, distribution, manufacturing and production, and 
warehousing uses.  
  
III. PLAN REVIEW 
The Planning Commission’s review authority of the final plat is found under C.O. Section 1187. 
Upon review of the final plat, the Commission is to make a recommendation to the City Council. 
The staff’s review is based on city plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations.  
 
1. This plat dedicates right-of-way to the City of New Albany for phase 2 of a new public street 

named Briscoe Parkway. The dedication extension consists of approximately 3,009 +/- linear 
feet of a new public street totaling approximately 4.259+/- acres. There are no reserves being 
platted or lots being created within this new right-of-way extension.   

2. This is the second of two phases for a new 6,042 linearly foot long east/west public street 
connecting Horizon Court, Harrison Road and Clover Valley Road in Licking County. The 
phase 1 final plat is also on the October 16, 2023 Planning Commission agenda.  

3. The plat dedicates 60 feet of right-of-way. The plat includes a 25 foot wide utility and 
streetscape easement on both sides of the street.   



23 1016 Briscoe Parkway Phase 2 Final Plat FPL-95-2023   2 of 2   

4. The street extends through the Jug Street North zoning district, the proposed Harrison Road 
Triangle zoning district, and Technology Manufacturing zoning district. 

5. Based on the roadway typologies in the immediate area, this proposed roadway is best 
classified as a Business Park road character classification as described in the Engage New 
Albany Strategic Plan. The new street is designed to accommodate heavier traffic traveling 
into the business park. The 60 feet of right-of-way, coupled with the proposed 25 foot wide 
easements on each side is consistent with a 67-foot to 115-foot range recommendation in the 
Engage New Albany Strategic Plan.  

 
IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 
The city Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 
requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and has no comments.  
 
V. RECOMMENDATION 
Basis for Approval: 
The proposed street plat is consistent with the approved preliminary plat alignment and 
condition of approval. It meets the goals and objectives found in the Engage New Albany 
strategic plan for this area. One of the mobility goals within the Engage New Albany strategic 
plan is to maximize the connectivity and safety of New Albany’s network. One of the plan's 
priorities is to distribute traffic throughout the roadway network. This street serves as an 
additional connection within the New Albany Business Park and provides access to existing 
and future development sites. This connection results in Horizon Court no longer being a cul-
de-sac and connects that portion of the business park to the supplier park.  
 
VI. ACTION 
Suggested Motion for FPL-95-2023 (additional conditions may be added):   
 
Move to recommend approval of application FPL-95-2023.  
 
 
Approximate Street Location Shown in Red and Phase 2 Limits Outlined in Yellow: 

 



  

99 West Main Street • P.O. Box 188 • New Albany, Ohio 43054 • 614.855.3913 • Fax 614.939.2234 • newalbanyohio.org 

 

 
 

 

 

Community Development Department 

 

RE:  City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action 

 

Dear Director Chrysler, 

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by the New Albany Planning 

Commission.  Please retain this document for your records. 

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy, or make 

alterations to any land area or building.  A building permit and/or zoning permit is required before any 

work can be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community 

Development Department. 

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval, these conditions must be met prior to 

issuance of any zoning or building permits. 

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions. 

Thank you.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

99 West Main Street • P.O. Box 188 • New Albany, Ohio 43054 • 614.855.3913 • Fax 614.939.2234 • newalbanyohio.org 

 

 
 

 

 

Community Development Department 

Decision and Record of Action 

Tuesday, November 7, 2023 

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 10/16/2023. 

Final Plat 

Location:  FPL-95-2023 

Applicant: City of New Albany 

Application: FPL-95-2023 

Request:  Final Plat for Briscoe Parkway public street dedication and easements phase II located 

between Harrison Road and Clover Valley Road in Licking County. 

Motion: To approve. 

Commission Vote:  Motion Granted 5-0. 

Result: Final Plat, FPL-95-2023, was granted by a vote of 5-0. 

 

Recorded in the Official Journal this November 7, 2023. 

 

Staff Certification: 

 

 

Chris Christian 

Planner II 

  



PC 23 1120 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan FDP-77-2023  1 of 11 

 

  
 

 

 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

November 20, 2023 Meeting 

 

 

CME CREDIT UNION AND CRIMPSON CUP COFFEE SHOP 

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

 

LOCATION:  Located at the southwest corner of Beech Road and Smith’s Mill Road 

(PID: 093-106512-00.00) 

APPLICANT:   Brian Wellert 

REQUEST: Final Development Plan   

ZONING:   Beech Crossing I-PUD 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Retail 

APPLICATION: FDP-77-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received October 31, 2023. 

Staff report prepared by Chelsea Nichols, Planner 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The application is a final development plan for a proposed CME credit union and Crimson Cup 

coffee shop with drive-throughs located at the southwest corner of Beech Road and Smith’s Mill 

Road.  

 

The Planning Commission reviewed and tabled this application at the September 2023 meeting. 

The Planning Commission advised the applicant to re-evaluate the proposed site plan and 

consider revising it to reduce the number of variances that would be needed. Since that meeting, 

the applicant has revised the site plan to align with New Albany standards and to reduce the 

number of variance requests from three to one.  

 
The applicant is applying for one variance related to this final development plan under application 

VAR-79-2023. Information and evaluation of the variance request is under a separate staff report. 

 

The property in question is zoned I-PUD and is located within the Beech Crossing Zoning 

District which was reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on January 22, 2020 

(ZC-102-2019).  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The site is generally located north of State Route 161, south of Smith’s Mill Road and west of 

Beech Road. The site is 2.03 acres and is currently undeveloped. This is the fourth proposed 

development for this zoning district. The Planning Commission approved final development plan 

applications for Duke and Ditches on October 20, 2020, Holiday Inn Express on February 19, 

2020, and Taco Bell on August 21, 2023.  

 

III. EVALUATION 

Staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations. 

Primary concerns and issues have been indicated below, with needed action or recommended 

action in underlined text. Planning Commission’s review authority is found under Chapter 1159. 

 

The Commission should consider, at a minimum, the following (per Section 1159.08): 



PC 23 1120 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan FDP-77-2023  2 of 11 

a. That the proposed development is consistent in all respects with the purpose, intent and 

applicable standards of the Zoning Code; 

b. That the proposed development is in general conformity with the Strategic Plan/Rocky 

Fork-Blacklick Accord or portion thereof as it may apply; 

c. That the proposed development advances the general welfare of the Municipality; 

d. That the benefits, improved arrangement and design of the proposed development justify 

the deviation from standard development requirements included in the Zoning 

Ordinance; 

e. Various types of land or building proposed in the project; 

f. Where applicable, the relationship of buildings and structures to each other and to such 

other facilities as are appropriate with regard to land area; proposed density may not 

violate any contractual agreement contained in any utility contract then in effect; 

g. Traffic and circulation systems within the proposed project as well as its appropriateness 

to existing facilities in the surrounding area; 

h. Building heights of all structures with regard to their visual impact on adjacent facilities; 

i. Front, side and rear yard definitions and uses where they occur at the development 

periphery; 

j. Gross commercial building area; 

k. Area ratios and designation of the land surfaces to which they apply; 

l. Spaces between buildings and open areas; 

m. Width of streets in the project; 

n. Setbacks from streets; 

o. Off-street parking and loading standards; 

p. The order in which development will likely proceed in complex, multi-use, multi-phase 

developments; 

q. The potential impact of the proposed plan on the student population of the local school 

district(s); 

r. The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency’s 401 permit, and/or isolated wetland permit 

(if required);  

s. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 404 permit, or nationwide permit (if required). 
 
It is also important to evaluate the PUD portion based on the purpose and intent. Per Section 
1159.02, PUD’s are intended to: 

a. Ensure that future growth and development occurs in general accordance with the 

Strategic Plan; 

b. Minimize adverse impacts of development on the environment by preserving native 

vegetation, wetlands and protected animal species to the greatest extent possible 

c. Increase and promote the use of pedestrian paths, bicycle routes and other non-vehicular 

modes of transportation; 

d. Result in a desirable environment with more amenities than would be possible through 

the strict application of the minimum commitment to standards of a standard zoning 

district; 

e. Provide for an efficient use of land, and public resources, resulting in co-location of 

harmonious uses to share facilities and services and a logical network of utilities and 

streets, thereby lowering public and private development costs; 

f. Foster the safe, efficient and economic use of land, transportation, public facilities and 

services; 

g. Encourage concentrated land use patterns which decrease the length of automobile 

travel, encourage public transportation, allow trip consolidation and encourage 

pedestrian circulation between land uses; 

h. Enhance the appearance of the land through preservation of natural features, the 

provision of underground utilities, where possible, and the provision of recreation areas 

and open space in excess of existing standards; 

i. Avoid the inappropriate development of lands and provide for adequate drainage and 

reduction of flood damage; 

j. Ensure a more rational and compatible relationship between residential and non-

residential uses for the mutual benefit of all; 



PC 23 1120 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan FDP-77-2023  3 of 11 

k. Provide an environment of stable character compatible with surrounding areas; and 

l. Provide for innovations in land development, especially for affordable housing and infill 

development. 

 

Engage New Albany Strategic Plan Recommendations 

The Engage New Albany strategic plan recommends the following development standards for the 

Retail future land use category: 

1. Parking areas should promote pedestrians by including walkways and landscaping to 

enhance visual aspects of the development.  

2. Combined curb cuts and cross access easements are encouraged.  

3. Curb cuts on primary streets should be minimized and well-organized connections should 

be created within and between all retail establishments.  

4. Combined curb cuts and cross-access easements between parking areas are preferred 

between individual buildings. 

5. Retail building entrances should connect with the pedestrian network and promote 

connectivity through the site.  

6. Integrate outdoor spaces for food related businesses.  

 

A. Use, Site and Layout 

1. The proposed coffee shop with drive-through is a permitted use as a “carry-out food and 

beverage establishment with drive-through facility”. The proposed bank is permitted as a 

personal service. The drive-through associated with the bank is also a permitted use.  

2. The applicant proposes to develop a 4,419 sq. ft. CME credit union and Crimson Cup 

coffee shop with drive-throughs.  

a. The credit union floor area is be 1,309 sq ft,  

b. The coffee shop is be 894 sq ft, and  

c. 2,216 sq ft for shared space. 

3. The PUD zoning text requires the following setbacks from these perimeter boundaries: 

a. Beech Road: 

i. Required minimum: 40-foot pavement and 75-foot building 

ii. Proposed: 41.74+/- foot pavement and 112.24+/- foot building setback 

[requirement met] 

b. Smith’s Mill Road: 

i. Required minimum: 55-foot pavement and 75-foot building  

ii. Proposed: 65+/- foot pavement and 135.5+/- foot building setback 

[requirement met] 

c. Internal Parcel Boundaries (southern and western property lines):     

i. Required minimum: 10-foot pavement and building setback  

ii. Proposed (western property line): 11.9-foot pavement and 118.9-foot 

building setback [requirement met] 

iii. Proposed (southern property line): 8.5+/- feet pavement and 65-foot 

building setback [The building setback requirement is met but the 

pavement setback requirement is not met. A variance has not been 

requested. Staff recommends a condition of approval that this be revised 

to meet code standards at the time of permitting (condition #1)] 

d. Outparcel Access Road (Beech Crossing):   

i. Required minimum: 15-foot building and pavement setback  

ii. Proposed:  50+/- foot pavement (not counting drive aisle to enter the site) 

and 133+/- foot building setback [requirement met] 

4. The development site is accessed by a private road which was reviewed and approved by 

the Planning Commission on October 21, 2019 (FDP-72-2019). This private road, Beech 

Crossing, was constructed by another private developer and includes street trees and a 

sidewalk along the road.  

5. According to zoning text section C(1), the applicant is required to install leisure trail 

along Smith’s Mill Road. The site plan meets this standard by providing an 8’ wide 

leisure trail within the front yard of the lot along Smith’s Mill Road 



PC 23 1120 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan FDP-77-2023  4 of 11 

6. Per zoning text section C(4), the applicant is required to connect into the existing 

pedestrian circulation system. The applicant is meeting this requirement by providing a 

direct connection into the future leisure trail along Smith’s Mill Road, in addition to the 

existing leisure trail along Beech Road and the existing sidewalk along Beech Crossing. 

7.  The zoning text requires that the total lot coverage, which includes all areas of pavement 

and building, not to exceed 80% of the total area. The proposed development is at 54% 

lot coverage thereby meeting this requirement.  

8. The Beech Crossing I-PUD zoning text places a limitation on total acreage that can be 

utilized for retail uses in the Beech Road / Smith’s Mill Road area. The intent is to limit 

retail development to a maximum of 92 acres in this general area. Once 92 acres have 

been developed with retail uses found in the C-3 and GE zoning districts, the remainder 

of the land from all of these subareas can only allow non-retail General Employment 

(GE) zoning district uses listed in their respective zoning texts. This 2.03-acre 

development is subject to this overall 92-acre retail limitation.  

 

B. Access, Loading, Parking 

1. The site is accessed from one full access curb cut along Beech Crossing, which is near 

the southwest corner of the property. 

2. Since the September 2023 Planning Commission meeting, the applicant has made the 

following revisions: 

i. Site layout consists of two-way vehicular traffic traveling around three of the 

four sides of the building. 

ii. The building has been rotated so the drive-through is located on the south side of 

the building. 

iii. The dumpster, enclosure, and loading area have been relocated to the interior of 

the site, and out of view from traffic on Beech and Smith’s Mill Roads. 

iv. A second doorway to the two-story architecture feature has been added so that 

there are entrances along Smith’s Mill Road and Beech Road. 

 

3. The city engineer comments that the one-way lanes could potentially conflict with 

southbound circulation and for cars backing out of the first parking space. To remedy this 

comment, the city staff recommends a condition of approval that a private traffic circle be 

added to the site as suggested in the engineering comments and exhibit below. The 

curbed should be 6-inch mountable curbs so as to not negatively affect fire truck turning 

(condition #6). 

4. The city staff also recommends a condition of approval that signage is installed to avoid 

improper vehicular circulation (i.e. right turns across entry drives in an effort to exit the 

site onto Beech Crossing). This shall be addressed at the time of permitting, subject to 

staff approval (condition #7).  

5. The city parking code contains the following parking standards for coffee shops 

associated with a bank use.  

a. Parking requirements for the bank, per Chapter 1167, is 1 parking space per 200 

square feet of gross floor area. Drive-through for the bank; the number of stacking 

spaces are based on 80% of the required parking.  

b. Parking requirements for the coffee shop, per Chapter 1167, is 1 parking space per 75 

sq ft of gross floor area. Drive-through stacking spaces are based on 25% of the 

required parking. 

c. The credit union floor area is 1,309 sq ft, the coffee shop is 894 sq ft, and 2,216 for 

shared space. The applicant divided the 2,216 sq ft in half to calculate 2,417 square 

feet for the credit union and 2002 sq ft for the coffee shop. Based on these 

calculations, 13 spaces are required for the credit union and 27 spaces for the coffee 

shop; for a total of 40 spaces required. The applicant is providing 43 parking spaces. 

d. As for the required drive-through stacking spaces, 11 spaces are required for the 

credit union and 7 spaces are required for the coffee shop. It appears as though a 

minimum of 11 spaces are provided for the credit union between the drive through 

lanes and 10 spaces are provided for the coffee shop.  



PC 23 1120 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan FDP-77-2023  5 of 11 

6. Per C.O. 1167.03(a), the minimum parking space dimensions required are 9 feet wide and 

19 feet long. The applicant is meeting this requirement. 

7. Per C.O. 1167.03(a), the minimum maneuvering lane width size is 22 feet for this 

development type. The applicant is exceeding this requirement at 24 feet. 

 

C. Architectural Standards  

1. The purpose of the New Albany Design Guidelines and Requirements is to help ensure 

that the New Albany community enjoys the highest possible quality of architectural 

design. The zoning text contains architectural standards and the site also falls under the 

Section 6 of the Design Guidelines and Requirements: Commercial Outside Village 

Center.  

2. The zoning text states that retail buildings shall be a minimum of one story and a 

maximum of two stories in height. This requirement is being met as the building is a one-

story building.  

3. The primary building material is brick, which is a permitted building material in the 

zoning text.    

4. Zoning text section E.4(b) states that all rooftop mechanical units must be screened to 

limit off site visibility and sound. The applicant meets this requirement. 

5. DGR Section 6(I)(A)(4) states that the number, location, spacing and shapes of window 

openings shall be carefully considered, particularly for buildings in retail use and shall 

impart a sense of human scale. The applicant meets this requirement by designing the 

windows with consistent spacing and shapes. The number and location of the windows 

are also appropriate.  

6. DGR Section 6(I)(A)(6) states that all visible elevations of a building must receive 

similar treatments in style, materials and design so that no visible side is of a lesser 

character than any other. The applicant is meeting this requirement by using the same 

materials on all building elevations. 

7. C.O. 1149.04 states dumpsters are to be located as to effectively be screened from view. 

The applicant has revised the plan since the September meeting to meet this standard. 

8. DGR Section 6(I)(A)(12) states that buildings shall have active and operable front doors 

along all public and private streets. The building fronts onto Smith’s Mill Road to the 

north, Beech Road to the east, and Beech Crossing to the southwest. The building design 

has been updated since the September meeting with an active and operable front door 

facing Beech Road and facing Smith’s Mill. However, there is still no door facing Beech 

Crossing. The applicant requests a variance, under application VAR-79-23, to eliminate 

this requirement for southwest elevations of the building. This variance request is 

evaluated under a separate staff report.  

 

D. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  

1. Per Beech Crossing zoning text requirements G(a) and G(3)(a), a four-board horse fence 

is required to be installed along Smith’s Mill Road. This requirement is met.  

2. Per zoning text requirement G(8), a master landscape plan shall be completed as part of 

the first final development plan that is submitted for a property located west of the 

previously approved “Outparcel Access Road”/the existing Beech Crossing. This 

landscape plan is subject to the review and approval of the city landscape architect. The 

current property owner, the New Albany Company (NACO), had submitted the plan and 

it had been approved by the city landscape architect ahead of the future Taco Bell site to 

the west. The landscape standards established along Smiths Mill and Beech Road 

surround the proposed site to the north and east.   

3. Per zoning text requirement (G)(3)(b)(i), a minimum of 6 trees per 100 lineal feet must be 

installed within the required setback area along Smith’s Mill and along Beech Road. This 

requirement is being met. 

4. Per zoning text requirement G(3)(c), a minimum 3.5-foot-tall landscape buffer must be 

provided to screen parking areas along all public rights of way. The proposed landscape 

plan shows that a 3.5-foot-tall landscape buffer installed along the parking areas that are 

along public rights of way, therefore this requirement is being met. 



PC 23 1120 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan FDP-77-2023  6 of 11 

5. Per zoning text requirement G(3)(d), a landscape buffer is required to be installed within 

the required setback of any interior side parcel line and shall consist of a ten-foot 

landscape buffer with grass and landscaping and deciduous trees planted at a rate of 4 

trees for every 100 feet of side property line and deciduous shrubs must be planted under 

the trees. The applicant proposes to install these 10 trees and shrubs along the west side 

within the 10-foot setback. Therefore, this requirement is being met. 

6. Per zoning text requirement G(5), street trees shall be planted at a rate of one (1) tree for 

every thirty (30) feet of street frontage. Trees shall be regularly spaced along Beech Road 

and Smith’s Mill Road. The proposed landscape plan shows the existing street trees along 

Beech Road and the proposed 9 trees along Smith’s Mill Road, therefore this requirement 

is being met. 

7. Per zoning text requirement G(7), a minimum of one tree for every 10 parking spaces is 

required and at least 5 percent of the vehicular use area shall be landscaped. The 

applicant is providing 43 parking spaces, and meeting this requirement by providing 5 

trees. In addition, over 5% of the total parking area is landscaped. This requirement is 

being met. 

 

E. Lighting & Signage 

1. Section II(H)(1) of the zoning text requires all parking lot light poles to be downcast and 

use cut-off type fixtures in order to minimize light spilling beyond the boundaries of the 

site. The proposed light fixtures for the site lighting match the existing Duke and Duchess 

site with the development and meets the requirements. In addition, a detailed photometric 

plan was submitted showing that there is no light spillage from this site. 

2. Section II(H)(3) states that all parking lot poles within the entire zoning district shall be 

black or New Albany Green, be constructed of metal and not exceed 30 feet in height. to 

the city staff recommends this site uses the same black metal poles that are installed at the 

existing Duke and Duchess site so there is consistent and cohesive lighting within the 

development. However, the applicant has not submitted this information. Staff 

recommends a condition of approval that all parking lot light poles are black metal, are to 

not exceed 30 feet in height, and are subject to staff approval at the time of permitting 

(condition #2). 

3. The applicant requests to install a drive-through menu board sign for the coffee shop. 

Drive-through menu board signs are allowed and code states drive-through menu board 

signs shall not be visible from the public right-of-way. The plan has been updated to 

include the drive-through menu board sign on the western side of site. With the menu 

board sign being located behind the building, the sign location meets code. 

4. Details, including location, for the proposed monument sign are not provided, in addition 

to other sign details still needed for a full evaluation. Staff recommends a condition of 

approval that all other sign details be subject to staff approval and must meet code 

requirements (condition #3). Any additional variances needed, other than what is 

included in application VAR-79-2023, must be heard by the Planning Commission at a 

later date in the future.  

 

Wall Signs  

1. The zoning text and C.O. 1169.15(d) permit one wall sign per tenant on each of the 

building frontages, either on a public or private road, with 1 square foot in area per linear 

square foot of building frontage, not to exceed 50 square feet. 

2. This building has two tenants and three building frontages. This permits the building to 

have one wall sign per tenant on each of the three building frontages. Based on the 

architectural elevations, the applicant proposes one wall sign on the north elevation, four 

on the west elevation, and two signs on the east elevation. The west elevation currently 

shows one sign for the credit union and three for the coffee shop. There are two extra 

signs on the west elevation not permitted by code. Staff recommends a condition of 

approval that the western elevation be revised so that there is no more than one sign per 

tenant as permitted by code (condition #3). 

3. As shown on the architectural elevation sheets, the wall signs are proposed: 



PC 23 1120 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan FDP-77-2023  7 of 11 

 

Smith’s Mill Northern Elevation Wall Sign for CME: 

The wall sign reads “CME Federal Credit Union” and featuring the company logo. 

 

a. Lettering Height: information not provided [must meet code, 24-inch 

maximum] 

b. Area: information not provided [must meet code] 

c. Location: facing northern elevation along Smith’s Mill Road [meets code] 

d. Lighting: external lighting [meets code] 

e. Relief: information not provided [must meet code minimum of 1-inch   

relief] 

f. Colors: red, grey, blue, black, and tan (total of 5 colors) [4 color maximum, 

a variance was not requested. Staff recommends a condition of approval that 

all signage is revised to meet code requirements, subject to staff approval 

(condition #3).] 

g. Material: information not provided [must meet requirements of C.O. 1169] 

 

Beech Road Eastern Elevation Wall Sign for CME: 

The wall sign reads “CME Federal Credit Union” and featuring the company logo. 

 

a. Lettering Height: information not provided [must meet code, 24-inch 

maximum] 

b. Area: information not provided [must meet code] 

c. Location: facing eastern elevation along Beech Road [meets code] 

d. Lighting: external lighting [meets code] 

e. Relief: information not provided [must meet code minimum of 1-inch   

relief] 

f. Colors: red, grey, blue, black, and tan (total of 5 colors) [4 color maximum, 

a variance was not requested. Staff recommends a condition of approval that 

all signage is revised to meet code requirements, subject to staff approval 

(condition #3).] 

g. Material: information not provided [must meet requirements of C.O. 1169] 

 

Beech Road Eastern Elevation Wall Sign for Crimson Cup: 

The wall sign reads “Crimson Cup coffee & tea”  

 

a. Lettering Height: information not provided [must meet code, 24-inch 

maximum] 

b. Area: information not provided [must meet code] 

c. Location: facing eastern elevation along Beech Crossing [meets code] 

d. Lighting: external lighting [meets code] 

e. Relief: information not provided [must meets code] 

f. Colors: red and black (total of 2 color) [meets code] 

g. Material: information not provided [must meet requirements of C.O. 1169] 

 

Beech Crossing Western Elevation Wall Sign for CME: 

The wall sign reads “CME Federal Credit Union” and featuring the company 

logo. 

 

a. Lettering Height: information not provided [must meet code, 24-inch 

maximum] 

b. Area: information not provided [must meet code] 

c. Location: facing northern elevation along Smith’s Mill Road [meets code] 

d. Lighting: external lighting [meets code] 

e. Relief: information not provided [must meet code minimum of 1-inch   

relief] 



PC 23 1120 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan FDP-77-2023  8 of 11 

f. Colors: red, grey, blue, black, and tan (total of 5 colors) [4 color maximum, 

a variance was not requested. Staff recommends a condition of approval that 

all signage is revised to meet code requirements, subject to staff approval 

(condition #3). ] 

g. Material: information not provided [must meet requirements of C.O. 1169] 

 

Beech Crossing Western Elevation Wall Sign for Crimson Cup: 

The wall sign reads “Crimson Cup coffee & tea”  

 

a. Lettering Height: information not provided [must meet code, 24-inch 

maximum] 

b. Area: information not provided [must meet code] 

c. Location: facing eastern elevation along Beech Crossing [meets code] 

d. Lighting: external lighting [meets code] 

e. Relief: information not provided [must meets code] 

f. Colors: red and black (total of 2 color) [meets code] 

g. Material: information not provided [must meet requirements of C.O. 1169] 

 

Beech Crossing Western Elevation Wall Sign for Crimson Cup: 

The wall sign is not legible. Staff believes it says something about “coffee”. 

 

a. Lettering Height: information not provided [must meet code, 24-inch 

maximum] 

b. Area: information not provided [must meet code] 

c. Location: facing eastern elevation along Beech Crossing [does not meet 

code, two signs permitted, one sign per tenant on each frontage, a variance 

was not requested. Staff recommends a condition of approval that all signage 

is revised to meet code requirements, subject to staff approval (condition #3).] 

d. Lighting: information not provided [must meet code] 

e. Relief: information not provided [must meets code] 

f. Colors: red (total of 1 color) [meets code] 

g. Material: information not provided [must meet requirements of C.O. 1169] 

 

Beech Crossing Western Elevation Wall Sign for Crimson Cup: 

The wall sign reads “COFFEE”. 

 

a. Lettering Height: information not provided [must meet code, 24-inch 

maximum] 

b. Area: information not provided [must meet code] 

c. Location: facing eastern elevation along Beech Crossing [does not meet 

code, two signs permitted, one sign per tenant on each frontage, a variance 

was not requested. Staff recommends a condition of approval that all signage 

is revised to meet code requirements, subject to staff approval (condition #3).] 

d. Lighting: information not provided [must meet code] 

e. Relief: information not provided [must meets code] 

f. Colors: black (total of 1 color) [meets code] 

g. Material: information not provided [must meet requirements of C.O. 1169] 

 

IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the application and provided the following comments. These 

comments can also be found in a separate memo attached to this staff report. Staff recommends a 

condition of approval that the comments of the city engineer are addressed, subject to staff 

approval (condition #4). 

1. Refer to Exhibit A, note block 1.1.1.  Delete the 2023 Specifications note block shown on 

sheet G.S. and add note 1.1.1 in its place. 



PC 23 1120 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan FDP-77-2023  9 of 11 

2. Refer to sheet C1.01.  Show the location of the stop bar and stop sign at the curb cut and 

provide a cross walk and signage that meets ADA requirements. 

3. Refer to Exhibit B.  Revise sheet C1.01 in accordance with this Exhibit.  Consider 

mountable curb where concrete curb is proposed. 

4. Refer to sheet L1.00.  Provide a site distance triangle at the Beech Crossing curb cut and 

evaluate site distance relative to existing and proposed landscaping.  Remove landscaping 

that may impede motorist view. 

5. Provide parking lot lighting photometric analysis for staff review and approval. 

6. Provide fire truck turning radius analysis. 

7. In accordance with code sections 1159.07 (b)(3) sections Z. and AA. provide 

documentation indicating that all OPEA or ACOE issues have been addressed. 

8. We will evaluate storm water management, water distribution, sanitary sewer collection 

and roadway construction related details once construction plans become available. 

 
 

V. SUMMARY 

The proposed use is appropriate for this site given its proximity to State Route 161 and the New 

Albany International Business Park. This site, and the Beech Crossing development, is auto-

oriented but still incorporates strong pedestrian connectivity. The use appears to be appropriate 

and with the revisions the applicant has made to the site plan, the building is appropriately 

oriented to the public streets.  

The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan recommends retail sites have a strong street presence and 

include architectural and landscaping features that respond to the existing New Albany character. 

Ensuring a strong street presence that appropriately addresses the intersection is important since 

the site is located at a prominent gateway into the city and business park. The building orientation 

has been updated in the current plan to better align with New Albany’s principle planning 

standards found in the city codes and plans. 

 



PC 23 1120 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan FDP-77-2023  10 of 11 

The building is surrounded by the parking lot, a drive-thru lane and internal drive aisles. With the 

addition of the traffic circle, vehicles will be able to safely traverse throughout the site, and 

results in a strong circulation plan. The drive-through appears to be appropriately positioned on 

the site where it does not interfere with traffic on the rest of the site and will not cause traffic to 

back up onto the private road. By having a one-way drive aisle on just one side of the building, 

the site layout provides desirable and convenient circulation.  

 

The updated site plan also provides a strong landscape plan that exceeds code standards. The plan 

also provides space for a future gateway feature at the corner of this prominent corner of the city.  

 

V.  ACTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate:  

 

Move to approve final development plan application FDP-77-2023, subject to the following 

conditions: 

1. The site plan shall be revised so that the pavement is at least 10 feet away from the 

southern property line at the time of permitting; 

2. All parking lot light poles shall match the neighboring Duke and Duchess, are colored 

black, and shall not exceed 30 feet in height, and are subject to staff approval at the time 

of permitting; 

3. All sign details are subject to staff approval at the time of permitting and all signage shall 

be revised to meet code requirements, subject to staff approval; 

4. The city engineer comments must be addressed, subject to staff approval; and 

5. Any additional variances needed, other than what is included in application VAR-70-2023, 

must be heard by the Planning Commission at a later date in the future. 

6. A private traffic circle shall be added to the site as suggested in the engineering 

comments and exhibit. The curbed should be 6-inch mountable curbs as to not negatively 

affect fire truck turning. 

7. Signage shall be installed to avoid improper vehicular circulation (i.e. right turns across 

entry drives in an effort to exit the site onto Beech Crossing). This shall be addressed at 

the time of permitting, subject to staff approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PC 23 1120 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan FDP-77-2023  11 of 11 

Approximate Site Location 

 

 
 

Source: ArcGIS 



Ci 
 

 

 

City of New Albany 
99 West  Main Street 
New Albany, Ohio 43054 

MEMO 

 

         404.651-01 
         October 30, 2023 
To:  Chelsea Nichols                           (Revised 11/6/23) 
 City Planner 
  
From:  Matt Ferris, P.E., P.S.          Re: Credit Union Crimson  
By: Jay M. Herskowitz, P.E., BCEE                      Coffee - FDP (October)                                      

 
 
  
We reviewed the referenced submittal in accordance with Code Section 1159.07 (b)(3) FDP.  

Our review comments are as follows: 

1. Refer to Exhibit A, note block 1.1.1.  Delete the 2023 Specifications note block shown on 

sheet G.S. and add note 1.1.1 in its place. 

2. Refer to sheet C1.01.  Show the location of the stop bar and stop sign at the curb cut 

and provide a cross walk and signage that meets ADA requirements. 

3. Refer to Exhibit B.  Revise sheet C1.01 in accordance with this Exhibit.  Consider 

mountable curb where concrete curb is proposed. 

4. Refer to sheet L1.00.  Provide a site distance triangle at the Beech Crossing curb cut 

and evaluate site distance relative to existing and proposed landscaping.  Remove 

landscaping that may impede motorist view. 

5. Provide parking lot lighting photometric analysis for staff review and approval. 

6. Provide fire truck turning radius analysis. 

7. In accordance with code sections 1159.07 (b)(3) sections Z. and AA. provide 

documentation indicating that all OPEA or ACOE issues have been addressed. 

8. We will evaluate storm water management, water distribution, sanitary sewer collection 

and roadway construction related details once construction plans become available. 

 

 
MEF/JMH 
 
(attachments) 
 
 
 
 
cc:  Cara Denny, Engineering Manager 
       Joshua Albright, Development Engineer  
         
 
 
 





B

E

E

C

H

 

C

R

O

S

S

I

N

G

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

B
E

E
C

H
 
R

O
A

D

B

E

E

C

H

 

C

R

O

S

S

I

N

G

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

B
E

E
C

H
 
R

O
A

D

PROP. BUILDING

RTU

RTU

RTU

C

O

F

F

E

E

D

R

I

V

E

-

T

H

R

U

C

R

E

D

I

T

U

N

I

O

N

D

R

I

V

E

-

T

H

R

U

C
R

E
D

I
T

U
N

I
O

N

D
R

I
V

E
-
T

H
R

U

A
T

M

D
R

I
V

E
-
T

H
R

U

B
Y

-
P

A
S

S

L
A

N
E

COFFEE

DRIVE-THRU

RTU

RTU

RTU

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SITE LAYOUT PLAN LEGEND

E
:
\
N

E
W

G
R
O

U
N

D
\
2
3
-
0
0
1
7
2
-
0
1
0
 
C
M

E
 
F
E
D

E
R
A
L
 
C
R
E
D

I
T
 
U

N
I
O

N
-
N

E
W

 
A
L
B
A
N

Y
\
C
A
D

D
\
D

E
L
I
V
E
R
A
B
L
E
\
Z
L
A
Y
T
 
-
 
2
3
-
0
0
1
7
2
-
0
1
0
 
-
 
1
0
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
9
:
4
0
:
1
1
 
A
M

SHEET

C
M

E
 
C

r
e

d
i
t
 
U

n
i
o

n

N
e
w

 
A

l
b

a
n

y
,
 
O

H

JOB NO.

29580-0002

DATE

10/19/2023

N
e

w
G

r
o

u
n

d
 
I
n

t
e

r
n

a
t
i
o

n
a

l
,
 
I
n

c
.

1
5

4
5

0
 
S

o
u

t
h

 
O

u
t
e

r
 
F

o
r
t
y
 
D

r
i
v
e

S
u

i
t
e

 
3

0
0

C
h

e
s
t
e

r
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
M

O
 
6

3
0

1
7

A
r
e

a
 
C

o
d

e
 
6

3
6

 
8

9
8

-
 
8

1
0

0

C
O

N
S

U
L
T

A
N

T

FINAL DEVELOPMENT

PLAN

C1.01

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

MONUMENTATION

SITE DATA TABLE

NOTES

APPROVALS:

→

→

jalbright
Ellipse

jalbright
Arc

jalbright
Arc

jalbright
Arc

jalbright
Arc

jalbright
Arrow

jalbright
Arrow

jalbright
Arrow

jalbright
Line

jalbright
Callout
Pavement marking

jalbright
Callout
Concrete Curb

jalbright
Callout
Concrete Curb





Exhibit A

Please see below for our responses to the provided planning
review comments.

Submittal Requirements for a Final Development Plan
application:

 Submit 12 paper copies (in the size of 11” x 17”) of your
complete submittal packet.

Paper Copies have been provided.

 Please submit an updated application form that does
not include the mention of a conditional use in the
“Description of Request” section of the form.

An Updated Application has been provided.

 Per C.O. 1159(b)(3)(K), a detailed narrative regarding
the proposal is required to be submitted. Staff
suggests that you submit an updated narrative that
outlines the changes made to the plan since the last
PC hearing.

An updated narrative has been provided.

Submittal Requirements for a Variance application:
 One variance request still needs to be submitted for

the following standard:
o Variance to DGR Section 6(I)(A)(12) to

eliminate the requirement that there be active
and operable doors on the private drive, Beech
Crossing

New Variance Application has been provided.

 Submit 12 paper copies (in the size of 11” x 17”) of your
complete submittal packet.

Paper Copies have been provided

 Please revise your recently submitted variance
application so that only the one variance request is on
application form.

New Variance Application has been provided.

 Per C.O 1113.03, the following is required to be
submitted for a complete application:



New Albany Planning Commission
10/31/2023
Page | 2

o An updated narrative statement explaining the
following:
 Each application for a variance shall refer

to the specific provisions of the
ordinance which apply.

 The narrative should explain the
following: the use for which variance is
sought, details of the variance that is
applied for and the grounds on which it is
claimed that the variance or appeal
should be granted as the case may be,
the specific reasons why the variance is
justified.

 The narrative should state the nature of
the special conditions or circumstances
giving rise to the application for
approval.

 The narrative should state the
relationship of the requested variance to
the development standards and explain
the use of the land and location of
structures on adjacent properties.

A New Variance Narrative has been provided.

 If there are any items described below in the next
section (Additional Information Needed) that you wish
to request a variance for, submit that the updated
variance application and associated materials includes
necessary info for any additional variance/variances.

Additional Information Needed (and necessary for city staff
to fully evaluate the project to ensure code requirements are
met):

 Connectivity:
o City staff encourages bike racks. While there is not

a standard type or design that is required, if you
provide bike racks, NACO will want to approve the
design of the racks.

A Bike Rack has been added to the final development plan.

 Signage:
o The following comments were provided as part

of the last submittal and are still outstanding:
 While conceptual wall signage is shown

on the building elevation sheets, signage
details were not provided.

 Wall signs; one per business frontage.
Signage permitted on 3 building sides.
This is how it I shown.



New Albany Planning Commission
10/31/2023
Page | 3

 1 sq ft per linear sq ft of the
building face (not to exec 50
square feet), maximum 18”
projection from building,
maximum lettering height 24”,
minimum 1” sign relief

 Monument sign: No information was
provided. See code section 1169.17. In
addition, the monument sign shall match
those shown in the sign plan previously
sent to applicant.

 All other signage shall also comply with
code section 1169.

 Please note, per the zoning text, ground
signs/monument signs are not permitted
along Beech Road.

o It is not clear as to whether the drive-thru menu
board sign is digital. Please clarify the intent.
Also, please provide a spec on the drive-
through menu board sign. And please clarify the
height. This will ensure that it will not be visible
from Beech Road.

A sheet providing additional information on the digital menu
board sign has been provided as Exhibit D. No additional
signage has been provided as part of this submittal. The
applicant is looking for conditional approval based on
signage being provided at a later date.

 Landscaping:
o Street Trees should be all the way in the tree

lawn. All street trees should be on the front side
of the bike path. Buffer trees can hop the fence
and be on both sides of the fence. Most buffer
trees should be on the back side of the fence
but a few on the front side.

Landscaping plan has been updated and Street Trees have
been relocated.

 Lighting:
o The following comments were provided as part of

the process before and are still outstanding:
 A photometrics plan was not provided.

Provide this information as part of your
submittal.

 Please comply with Section H of the zoning
text for lighting standards.

 Poles and fixtures shall match those used at
the New Albany Duke & Duchess located at



New Albany Planning Commission
10/31/2023
Page | 4

2135 Beech Road – in Style, height, and
color.

An updated photometric plan has been provided as part of
this application.

Regards,

Brian Wellert



“Exhibit B”

CME Credit Union is applying for Planning Commission approval to
develop the 2.038 acre parcel (PN 093-106512-00.000) located at the south
west corner of Smith’s Mill rd and Beech rd. This parcel is a part of the New
Albany Corporation’s Beech Crossing development and will be a part of the
New Albany Business Park Association. It is located within the Beech
Crossing I-PUD Zoning district. The parcel will host a new shared 4,419 sq.
ft building consisting of a CME Credit Union and a Crimson Coffee location.
The proposed facility will have a drive-thru for Crimson Coffee and 3
additional lanes provided for Credit Union customer service. The current
application has been previously reviewed and approved by the New Albany
Corporation.

There will be 43 parking spaces, including two van accessible ADA
parking locations, sufficient stacking in the drive thru lanes for up to 18
vehicles and one offloading space. The dumpster will reside within a
masonry enclosure with brick veneer and have sufficient landscaping
screening around the exterior of the enclosure. Three pedestrian accessible
routes going to the adjoining roads will be provided. One route will be to the
existing right of way along Beech rd, one to Smith’s Mill and the other to the
interior of the development along Beech Crossing.

This design focused on providing a functional and safe layout to
serve the people of New Albany. Once this design was established,
significant effort was made to improve the form of the location to provide a
positive addition within the local community and adhere to the local zoning
requirements. When code could not be strictly adhered to, the design
attempts to fulfill the intent of the code. Significant additional landscaping
has been provided along the parking areas to eliminate viewing of the menu
board, stacking and headlights throughout the paved areas. Considerable
changes were made to the architectural design to accommodate NACO and
New Albany’s requirements and produce a look that was within the
framework of CME and Crimson Coffee while providing an aesthetic that
lies within the future vision of this intersection.

The layout provides primary entrance access facing Beech rd and
Smith’s Mill rd. The dumpster enclosure and menu board have both been
screened and placed on the back of house in relation to the primary right of
ways. Additional parking has been added and queue length provided.



New Albany Planning Commission
8/16/2023
Page | 2

Change log since the initial application:

 The building has added additional primary doors to face
both Smith’s Mill rd and Beech rd.

 The orientation of the building has been turned 90 degrees
moving the drive through menu board to the southern part
of the site.

 The floor plan has been adjusted considerably to make this
change possible.

 Materials have been updated on the building elevation
according to the recommendation of planning.

 The dumpster enclosure has also been relocated south.

 The pick up windows for the drive through lanes are now
located on the southern side of the building.

 Three additional parking spots have been provided.

 An internal landscaped island has been added to provide
additional queue length and improve site circulation based
on the new rotation.

 The drive entrance width has increased to allow for
additional lanes.

 An additional accessible route to Smith’s Mill rd. has been
added.



Exhibit D

Parcel Description

Parcel I

Situated in the State of Ohio, County of Licking, City of New
Albany, located in Half Section 15, Quarter Township 3, Township 2,
Range 15, United States Military District, being part of the remainder
of that 49.534 acre tract conveyed to MBJ Holdings, LLC by deed of
record in Instrument Number 20101-0060020026, (all references
refer to the records of the Recorder's Office, Licking County, Ohio)
and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning, for reference, at a magnetic nail set at the centerline
intersection Beech Road (width varies) with Smiths Mill Road (width
varies), of record in Instrument Numbers 200505130014263 and
201108120014948;

Thence North 86° 38' 10” West, with the centerline of said Smiths
Mill Road (LN. 200505130014263), a distance of 414.73 feet to a
point:

Thence South 03° 21' 50” West, across the right-of—way of said
Smiths Mill Road, a distance of 45.00 feet to an iron pin set in the
southerly right-of-way line thereof, the northerly line of said 49.534
acre tract, being the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;

Thence South 86° 38' 10" East, with said southerly right-of-way, the
northerly line of said 49.534 acre tract, a distance of 319.08 feet to
an iron pin set in the westerly line of that tract conveyed as Parcel
No. 7-WDV4 to Board of Commissioners of Licking County, Ohio, at
the intersection of the southerly right-of-way line of Smiths Mill Road
with the westerly right-of-way line of said Beech Road, being the
northeasterly corner of said 49.534 acre tract;

Thence South 01° 49' 28" West, with said westerly right-of-way line
and the line common to said 49.534 acre tract and said Parcel No. 7-
WDV4, a distance of 229.72 feet to an iron pin set;

Thence South 02° 39' 12" West, continuing with said right-of-way
line and said common line, a distance of 32.64 feet to an iron pin set
at the easterly common corner of a remainder of said 49.534 acre



New Albany Planning Commission
8/16/2023
Page | 2

tract and that 2.107 acre tract conveyed to New Albany Duchess,
LLC by deed of record in Instrument Number 202001030000267;

Thence with this line common to a remainder of said 49.534 acre
tract and said 2.107 acre tract, the following Course and distances:

North 87° 20' 48" West, a distance of 214.22 feet to an iron pin set;

South 64° 26' 01" West, a distance of 57.23 feet to an iron pin set;

and South 39° 42' 07" West, a distance of 58.12 feet-to an iron pin
set on the arc of a curve, being the northwesterly comer of said
2.107 acre tract;

Thence across said 49.534 acre tract, the following courses and
distances:

With the arc of a curve to the left, having a central angle of 37° 55'
56", a radius of 102.00 feet, an arc length of 67.53 feet, a chord
bearing of North 25° 06' 54" West and chord distance of 66.30 feet to
an iron pin set at a point of non-tangency;

North 39° 42' 07" East, a distance of 7.91 feet to an iron pin set;

and  North 03° 21' 50" East, a distance of 274.79 feet to the TRUE
POINT  OF BEGINNING, containing 2.038 acres, more or less.

Subject, however, to all legal rights-of-way and/or easements, if any,
of previous record. Iron pins set, where indicated, are iron pipes,
thirteen sixteenths (13/16) inch inside diameter, thirty (30) inches
long with a plastic plug placed in the top bearing the initials EMHT
INC.

The bearings shown hereon are based on the Ohio State Plane
Coordinate System, South Zone, NAD83 (1986 Adjustment). Said
bearings originated from a field traverse which was tied (referenced)
to said  coordinate system by GPS observations and observations of
selected Franklin County Engineering Department monuments Frank
80 and Frank 180. The portion of the centerline of Beech Road,
having a bearing of North 03°25'04" East, is designated the "basis of
bearing' for this survey.

This description was prepared using documents of record, prior plats
of survey and observed evidence located by an actual field survey.



2023 SPECIFICATIONS

CME FEDERAL CREDIT UNION
CITY OF NEW ALBANY

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SMITHS MILL & BEECH ROAD
LICKING & FRANKLIN COUNTY, OHIO

 ISSUED:  10/31/2023SITE PLAN LEGEND
EXISTING PROPOSED

E:
\N

EW
G

RO
U

N
D\

23
-0

01
72

-0
10

 C
M

E 
FE

DE
RA

L 
CR

ED
IT

 U
N

IO
N

-N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y\

CA
DD

\D
EL

IV
ER

AB
LE

\Z
CO

VR
 -

 2
3-

00
17

2-
01

0 
- 

10
/3

1/
20

23
 2

:4
1:

50
 P

M

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

COVER SHEET

G.S.

PROJECT LOCATION

LOCATION  MAP

PLANS PREPARED AND RECOMMENDED BY:

SCALE: NTS

INDEX OF SHEETS





B

E

E

C

H

 

C

R

O

S

S

I

N

G

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

B
E

E
C

H
 
R

O
A

D

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN NOTES

E
:
\
N

E
W

G
R
O

U
N

D
\
2
3
-
0
0
1
7
2
-
0
1
0
 
C
M

E
 
F
E
D

E
R
A
L
 
C
R
E
D

I
T
 
U

N
I
O

N
-
N

E
W

 
A
L
B
A
N

Y
\
C
A
D

D
\
D

E
L
I
V
E
R
A
B
L
E
\
Z
X
C
O

N
 
-
 
2
3
-
0
0
1
7
2
-
0
1
0
 
-
 
8
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
:
3
3
:
3
6
 
P
M

SHEET

C
M

E
 
C

r
e

d
i
t
 
U

n
i
o

n

N
e
w

 
A

l
b

a
n

y
,
 
O

H

JOB NO.

29580-0002

DATE

08/18/2023

N
e

w
G

r
o

u
n

d
 
I
n

t
e

r
n

a
t
i
o

n
a

l
,
 
I
n

c
.

1
5

4
5

0
 
S

o
u

t
h

 
O

u
t
e

r
 
F

o
r
t
y
 
D

r
i
v
e

S
u

i
t
e

 
3

0
0

C
h

e
s
t
e

r
f
i
e

l
d

,
 
M

O
 
6

3
0

1
7

A
r
e

a
 
C

o
d

e
 
6

3
6

 
8

9
8

-
 
8

1
0

0

C
O

N
S

U
L
T

A
N

T

EXISTING CONDITIONS

PLAN

V1.00

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN LEGEND



PROP. BUILDING

COFFEE

DRIVE-THRU
CREDIT

UNION
DRIVE-THRU

CREDIT
UNIO

N
DRIVE-THRU

ATM
DRIVE-THRU

BY-PASS
LANE

COFFEE
DRIVE-THRU

BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

B
E

E
C

H
 R

O
A

D

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SITE LAYOUT PLAN LEGEND
E:

\N
EW

G
RO

U
N

D
\2

3-
00

17
2-

01
0 

CM
E 

FE
D

ER
AL

 C
RE

D
IT

 U
N

IO
N

-N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y\

CA
D

D
\D

EL
IV

ER
AB

LE
\Z

LA
YT

 -
 2

3-
00

17
2-

01
0 

- 
10

/3
1/

20
23

 3
:1

0:
51

 P
M

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

S
ou

th
 O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

S
ui

te
 3

00
C

he
st

er
fie

ld
, M

O
 6

30
17

A
re

a 
C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T

FINAL DEVELOPMENT
PLAN

C1.01

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

MONUMENTATION

SITE DATA TABLE

NOTES

APPROVALS:

→

→



PROP. BUILDING

COFFEE

DRIVE-THRU
CREDIT

UNION
DRIVE-THRU

CREDIT
UNIO

N
DRIVE-THRU

ATM
DRIVE-THRU

BY-PASS
LANE

COFFEE
DRIVE-THRU

BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SITE LAYOUT PLAN LEGEND
E:

\N
EW

G
RO

U
N

D\
23

-0
01

72
-0

10
 C

M
E 

FE
DE

RA
L 

CR
ED

IT
 U

N
IO

N
-N

EW
 A

LB
AN

Y\
CA

DD
\D

EL
IV

ER
AB

LE
\Z

LA
YT

 -
 2

3-
00

17
2-

01
0 

- 
10

/3
1/

20
23

 2
:4

2:
44

 P
M

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

FIRE TRUCK TURNING
PLAN

C1.02

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

MONUMENTATION

SITE DATA TABLE

NOTES

APPROVALS:

FIRE TRUCK DETAIL



PROP. BUILDING
FINISHED FLOOR: 1136.00

COFFEE

DRIVE-THRU
CREDIT

UNION
DRIVE-THRU

CREDIT
UNIO

N
DRIVE-THRU

ATM
DRIVE-THRU

BY-PASS
LANE

COFFEE
DRIVE-THRU

BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

SITE GRADING PLAN NOTES

SITE GRADING PLAN LEGEND

E:
\N

EW
G

RO
U

N
D\

23
-0

01
72

-0
10

 C
M

E 
FE

DE
RA

L 
CR

ED
IT

 U
N

IO
N

-N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y\

CA
DD

\D
EL

IV
ER

AB
LE

\Z
G

RA
D 

- 
23

-0
01

72
-0

10
 -

 1
0/

31
/2

02
3 

2:
42

:5
6 

PM

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

SITE GRADING PLAN

C2.00



BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

PROP. BUILDING
FINISHED FLOOR: 1136.00

RTURTU RTU

COFFEE

DRIVE-THRU
CREDIT

UNION
DRIVE-THRU

CREDIT
UNIO

N
DRIVE-THRU

ATM
DRIVE-THRU

BY-PASS
LANE

COFFEE
DRIVE-THRU

SITE UTILITY PLAN NOTES

SITE UTILITY PLAN LEGEND

E:
\N

EW
G

RO
U

N
D\

23
-0

01
72

-0
10

 C
M

E 
FE

DE
RA

L 
CR

ED
IT

 U
N

IO
N

-N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y\

CA
DD

\D
EL

IV
ER

AB
LE

\Z
U

TI
L 

- 
23

-0
01

72
-0

10
 -

 1
0/

31
/2

02
3 

2:
43

:1
1 

PM

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

SITE UTILITY PLAN

C3.00



BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

E:
\N

EW
G

RO
U

N
D\

23
-0

01
72

-0
10

 C
M

E 
FE

DE
RA

L 
CR

ED
IT

 U
N

IO
N

-N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y\

CA
DD

\D
EL

IV
ER

AB
LE

\Z
LS

CP
 -

 2
3-

00
17

2-
01

0 
- 

10
/3

1/
20

23
 2

:4
4:

03
 P

M

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN

L1.00

SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN NOTES

SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN LEGEND



PERENNIAL PLANTING PERENNIAL PATTERNSHRUB PLANTINGDECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING

PLANTING BED SPADE CUT EDGING

BUILDING EDGE - ROCK MULCH

PLANT LIST

E:
\N

EW
G

RO
U

N
D\

23
-0

01
72

-0
10

 C
M

E 
FE

DE
RA

L 
CR

ED
IT

 U
N

IO
N

-N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y\

CA
DD

\D
EL

IV
ER

AB
LE

\Z
LS

CP
 -

 2
3-

00
17

2-
01

0 
- 

10
/3

1/
20

23
 2

:4
4:

07
 P

M

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

SITE LANDSCAPE DETAILS

L1.01

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS
NEW ALBANY MUNICIPAL CODE

BEECH CROSSING I-PUD REQUIREMENTS











LIGHTING CUT SHEETS

E1.1
SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

(3
14

) 4
69

-3
73

7
13

8 
W

el
d

o
n

 P
a

r
k

w
a

y Pr
o

je
ct

 N
u

m
be

r
:

St
. L

o
u

is
, M

O
 6

30
43

w
w

w
.G

a
n

d
W

en
g

in
ee

r
in

g
.c

o
m

EN
G
IN
EE
R
IN
G

20
23

-0
30

5.0
0

10/25/2023



PC 23 1120 CME Variances VAR-79-2023  1 of 4 

 

  
 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

November 20, 2023 Meeting 

 

 

CME CREDIT UNION AND CRIMSON CUP COFFEE SHOP 

VARIANCES 

 

 

LOCATION:  Located at the southwest corner of Beech Road and Smith’s Mill Road 

(PID: 093-106512-00.00) 

APPLICANT:   Brian Wellert 

REQUEST:  

(A) Variance to DGR Section 6(I)(A)(12) to eliminate the requirement 

that there be active and operable doors on the Beech Crossing 

building elevations.  

 

ZONING:   Beech Crossing I-PUD 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Retail 

APPLICATION: VAR-79-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received October 31, 2023 

Staff report prepared by Chelsea Nichols, Planner 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

This application is for a variance related to a final development plan for a proposed CME credit 

union with a drive-through and Crimson Cup coffee shop located at the southwest corner of 

Beech Road and Smith’s Mill Road within the Beech Crossing development.  

 

The applicant requests the following variance: 

 

(A) Variance to DGR Section 6(I)(A)(12) to eliminate the requirement that there be active and 

operable doors on the Beech Crossing building elevation.  

 

The Planning Commission reviewed and tabled this application at the September 2023 meeting. 

The application previously contained three variance requests. The Planning Commission advised 

the applicant to re-evaluate the proposed site plan and consider revising it to reduce the number of 

variances that would be needed. Since that meeting, the applicant has revised the site plan and 

building orientation to reduce the number of variance requests from three to one.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The site is generally located north of State Route 161, south of Smith’s Mill Road and west of 

Beech Road. The site is 2.03 acres and is currently undeveloped. This is the fourth proposed 

development for this zoning district. The Planning Commission approved final development plan 

applications for Duke and Duchess on October 20, 2020 Holiday Inn Express on February 19, 

2020, and Taco Bell on August 21, 2022. 

 

III. EVALUATION 

The application complies with the submittal requirements in C.O. 1113.03, and is considered 

complete. The property owners within 200 feet of the property in question have been notified. 

 



PC 23 1120 CME Variances VAR-79-2023  2 of 4 

Criteria 

The standard for granting of an area variance is set forth in the case of Duncan v. Village of 

Middlefield, 23 Ohio St.3d 83 (1986). The Board must examine the following factors when 

deciding whether to grant a landowner an area variance: 

 

All of the factors should be considered and no single factor is dispositive.  The key to whether an 

area variance should be granted to a property owner under the “practical difficulties” standard is 

whether the area zoning requirement, as applied to the property owner in question, is reasonable 

and practical. 

 

1. Whether the property will yield a reasonable return or whether there can be a beneficial 

use of the property without the variance. 

2. Whether the variance is substantial. 

3. Whether the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered or 

adjoining properties suffer a “substantial detriment.” 

4. Whether the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government services. 

5. Whether the property owner purchased the property with knowledge of the zoning 

restriction. 

6. Whether the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a 

variance. 

7. Whether the variance preserves the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement and 

whether “substantial justice” would be done by granting the variance. 

 

Plus, the following criteria as established in the zoning code (Section 1113.06):  

 

8. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or 

structure involved and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

9. That a literal interpretation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the 

applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district 

under the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

10. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the 

applicant.  

11. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 

privilege that is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

12. That granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons 

residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially 

detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements 

in the vicinity. 

III.  RECOMMENDATION 

Considerations and Basis for Decision 

 

(A) Variance to DGR Section 6(I)(A)(12) to eliminate the requirement that buildings 

have operable and active front doors along all public and private roads.  

The following should be considered in the Commission’s decision:  

1. The applicant is requesting a variance to eliminate the requirement that buildings have 

operable and active front doors along all public and private roads. The building has three 

frontages: Smith’s Mill Road (public street), Beech Road (public street), and Beech 

Crossing (private road).  

a. The commercial building has active doors for the public streets facing Beech 

Road and Smith’s Mill Road (two of the three elevations meet the 

requirement). These doors are located within a two-story architectural feature 

on the north elevation of the building that includes an 8.5 concrete walk. 

There are no active doors along Beech Crossing, which is a private road. 



PC 23 1120 CME Variances VAR-79-2023  3 of 4 

2. As required by the zoning text, the building is designed with the same caliber of finish on 

all sides of the building using the same building materials.  

3. The variance appears to preserve the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement. The 

intent of this requirement is to ensure that buildings maintain a presence on the street and 

not contain blank or “empty” building elevations so their architectural vibrancy and 

interest on all sides of a building. This site and the overall Beech Crossing developments 

are auto-oriented by design therefore it does not appear that maintaining an entrance on 

every street is as important in this development scenario. All sides of the building are 

designed with the same caliber of finish using the same building materials so none of the 

elevations appear as a “lesser” side of the building. 

4. While there is not an active and operable door along the private road elevation (Beech 

Crossing), the applicant is providing strong architectural features and materials so the 

building adequately addresses the primary streets (Beech Road and Smith’s Mill Road) 

architecturally. The building is designed so the front door architectural elements and 

retail storefront windows front Beech Road and Smith’s Mill Road.   

5. It does not appear that the essential character of the neighborhood will be altered if the 

variance request is granted. This same variance request has been granted for other 

developments within the nearby Canini Trust Corp.  In addition, the Duke and Duchess 

immediately south of the subject CME site received the same variance and was approved 

by the Planning Commission at their October 20th, 2020 meeting. 

6. It does not appear that the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government 

services, affect the health and safety of persons residing or working in the vicinity of the 

proposed development, be materially detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to 

private property or public improvements in the vicinity. 

 

II. SUMMARY 

The proposed use appears to be appropriate for the site based on the current zoning and the site is 

strategically located to provide auto oriented services/retail uses due to its proximity to the 

interchange and to serve this end of the business park.  

 

The purpose of the New Albany Design Guidelines and Requirements (DGR) is to help ensure 

that the New Albany community enjoys the highest possible quality of architectural design. The 

building architecture meets the city DGR requirements, and the building’s two-story architectural 

feature is appropriately positioned on the site facing Smith’s Mill Road Beech Road. This is 

desirable from a site layout perspective since it faces the building’s primary and active elevations 

to the city’s primary public streets.  

 

V. ACTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate (The Planning Commission can make one motion for all 

variances or separate motions for each variance request):  

 

Move to approve application VAR-79-2023 (conditions may be added). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PC 23 1120 CME Variances VAR-79-2023  4 of 4 

Approximate Site Location: 

 

 
 
Source: ArcGIS 





Exhibit C

Variance Narrative

1. Per New Albany Design Guidelines section 6

b. Section 6(I)(A)(12) Buildings shall have operable and active
front doors along all public and private roads. As proposed,
the northern elevation that faces Smiths Mill does not have
an operable and active front door.

A variance is being requested for the aforementioned section of the New
Albany Design Guidelines. Per the instruction of the New Albany Planning
Department, the building was rotated and additional doors were added to
provide the primary entrances along both Smith’s Mill Rd and Beech Rd.

The shape of this lot creates a hardship for the intended use as a bank with
drive thru facilities. The lot has frontage on three different sides, with one
being at an angle in relation to the primary roads. This makes adding a door
that is technically fulfilling code to be an architectural hardship. It would
require a building of peculiar shape to strictly adhere to the guidelines.

Providing an additional door facing the interior private road would create
traffic/pedestrian interactions through the portion of the site that is retained
primarily for vehicular traffic in the drive through locations.

A pedestrian accessible route has been provided from the interior private
drive to the primary entrance on the building to help reduce safety
concerns.

This variance, if granted, will provide relief to the client and its intended use
while requiring the least modification possible of any additional regulation at
hand. This variance will not alter the character or negatively impact the
surrounding community or the adjacent lots in any way nor will it impact the
value or public welfare of the area.



“Exhibit B”

CME Credit Union is applying for Planning Commission approval to
develop the 2.038 acre parcel (PN 093-106512-00.000) located at the south
west corner of Smith’s Mill rd and Beech rd. This parcel is a part of the New
Albany Corporation’s Beech Crossing development and will be a part of the
New Albany Business Park Association. It is located within the Beech
Crossing I-PUD Zoning district. The parcel will host a new shared 4,419 sq.
ft building consisting of a CME Credit Union and a Crimson Coffee location.
The proposed facility will have a drive-thru for Crimson Coffee and 3
additional lanes provided for Credit Union customer service. The current
application has been previously reviewed and approved by the New Albany
Corporation.

There will be 43 parking spaces, including two van accessible ADA
parking locations, sufficient stacking in the drive thru lanes for up to 18
vehicles and one offloading space. The dumpster will reside within a
masonry enclosure with brick veneer and have sufficient landscaping
screening around the exterior of the enclosure. Three pedestrian accessible
routes going to the adjoining roads will be provided. One route will be to the
existing right of way along Beech rd, one to Smith’s Mill and the other to the
interior of the development along Beech Crossing.

This design focused on providing a functional and safe layout to
serve the people of New Albany. Once this design was established,
significant effort was made to improve the form of the location to provide a
positive addition within the local community and adhere to the local zoning
requirements. When code could not be strictly adhered to, the design
attempts to fulfill the intent of the code. Significant additional landscaping
has been provided along the parking areas to eliminate viewing of the menu
board, stacking and headlights throughout the paved areas. Considerable
changes were made to the architectural design to accommodate NACO and
New Albany’s requirements and produce a look that was within the
framework of CME and Crimson Coffee while providing an aesthetic that
lies within the future vision of this intersection.

The layout provides primary entrance access facing Beech rd and
Smith’s Mill rd. The dumpster enclosure and menu board have both been
screened and placed on the back of house in relation to the primary right of
ways. Additional parking has been added and queue length provided.



New Albany Planning Commission
8/16/2023
Page | 2

Change log since the initial application:

 The building has added additional primary doors to face
both Smith’s Mill rd and Beech rd.

 The orientation of the building has been turned 90 degrees
moving the drive through menu board to the southern part
of the site.

 The floor plan has been adjusted considerably to make this
change possible.

 Materials have been updated on the building elevation
according to the recommendation of planning.

 The dumpster enclosure has also been relocated south.

 The pick up windows for the drive through lanes are now
located on the southern side of the building.

 Three additional parking spots have been provided.

 An internal landscaped island has been added to provide
additional queue length and improve site circulation based
on the new rotation.

 The drive entrance width has increased to allow for
additional lanes.

 An additional accessible route to Smith’s Mill rd. has been
added.



PC 23 1120 Rinchem Hazardous Storage Setback Variance V-89-2023  1 of 4 

 

 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

November 20, 2023 Meeting 

 

 

RINCHEM 

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL SETBACK VARIANCE 

 

 

LOCATION:  3195 Harrison Road (PID: 095-111732-00.000, 095-111564-00.000) 

APPLICANT: Tuan Q. Luu with MDG Architecture Interiors on behalf of Rinchem 

Company LLC 

REQUEST: Variances to C.O. 1154.12(b)(3) to allow both outdoor storage and 

indoor storage of hazardous materials to encroach into the setback where 

code requires such material to be at least 200 feet from all property lines  

ZONING:   Technology Manufacturing District (TMD) 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Employment Center 

APPLICATION: VAR-89-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received on September 15, October 20 and November 1, 

2023. 

Staff report prepared by Chelsea Nichols, Planner. 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests a variance to allow the storage of hazardous material to be setback less 

than the required 200 feet minimum for the current and future phases of the development. The 

current phase (phase one) includes the indoor storage of hazardous material setback 88’ from 

the eastern property line and outdoor storage setback 35’ from the northern property line and 

30’ feet from the eastern property line. 

 

The proposed project would support chemical storage and distribution for Intel's semiconductor 

manufacturing campus in New Albany. 

 

ISO tank containers comply with the International Standard Organization (ISO) standards. They 

are suitable for transporting both hazardous and non-hazardous bulk liquids. ISO containers are 

made with stainless steel and housed inside a protective layer. 

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 29.8-acre property is located on the north side of Harrison Road NW; which is generally west 

of the intersection at Harrison Road NW and Clover Valley Road NW, within Licking County. 

The property is surrounded by vacant TMD zoned land to the north, south and east. The site is 

also adjacent to vacant L-GE zoned property to the southwest and residential properties to the 

west.   

 

III. ASSESSMENT 

The application complies with application submittal requirements in C.O. 1113.03, and is 

considered complete. The property owners within 200 feet of the property in question have been 

notified. 

 

Criteria 

The standard for granting of an area variance is set forth in the case of Duncan v. Village of 

Middlefield, 23 Ohio St.3d 83 (1986). The Board must examine the following factors when 

deciding whether to grant a landowner an area variance: 



PC 23 1120 Rinchem Hazardous Storage Setback Variance V-89-2023  2 of 4 

 

All of the factors should be considered and no single factor is dispositive.  The key to whether an 

area variance should be granted to a property owner under the “practical difficulties” standard is 

whether the area zoning requirement, as applied to the property owner in question, is reasonable 

and practical. 

 

1. Whether the property will yield a reasonable return or whether there can be a beneficial 

use of the property without the variance. 

2. Whether the variance is substantial. 

3. Whether the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered or 

adjoining properties suffer a “substantial detriment.” 

4. Whether the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government services. 

5. Whether the property owner purchased the property with knowledge of the zoning 

restriction. 

6. Whether the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a 

variance. 

7. Whether the variance preserves the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement and 

whether “substantial justice” would be done by granting the variance. 

 

Plus, the following criteria as established in the zoning code (Section 1113.06):  

 

8. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or 

structure involved and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

9. That a literal interpretation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the 

applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district 

under the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

10. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the 

applicant.  

11. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 

privilege that is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

12. That granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons 

residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially 

detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements 

in the vicinity. 

III. EVALUATION 

Variances to C.O. 1154.12(b)(3) to allow both outdoor storage and indoor storage of 

hazardous materials to encroach into the setback where code requires such material 

to be at least 200 feet from all property lines. 

The following should be considered in the board’s decision: 

 

1. The city’s Technology Manufacturing District (TMD) acknowledges that due to the 

nature of the permitted uses in the TMD, hazardous waste and materials storage and 

processing is anticipated. When such storage and/or processing are desired the following 

code requirements apply (chapter 1154.12(b)):  

a. The nature of the storage and processing shall be described in a detailed written 

statement that shall be submitted as part of an application for a Planning and 

Design Permit. This statement also shall provide details regarding the safety 

measures and protocols that are proposed to prevent the migration of any 

hazardous materials outside of designated containment areas and procedures that 

will be implemented upon the occurrence of an event that does or has the 

potential to damage the environment, persons, or property. This information shall 

be provided so that relevant City departments and public safety providers will 

have notice of the presence of these storage and processing operations. 



PC 23 1120 Rinchem Hazardous Storage Setback Variance V-89-2023  3 of 4 

▪ The applicant states the phase one ISO yard containing hazardous 

materials is proposed 30’ from the east property line and 35’ from the 

north property line, screened by a 10’ CMU wall at those property lines. 

An 8’ tall chain link fence meets the CMU wall at both ends, wrapping 

the rest of the project area for phase one, ensuring the entirety of the 

development is screened.  

▪ The ISO yard is separated into six individual, fully contained spill 

containment basins with sensors. The ISO yard does not meet the 

hazardous storage setback of 200’ from the north or east property lines, 

but provides screening and protection in-lieu of separation. 

b. All such storage and/or processing shall comply in all respects with state and 

federal law and regulations, and shall not be undertaken until such time as all 

necessary state and federal permits are received and copies of the same are 

provided to the City. 

▪ The materials being stored are received in multiple containers approved 

by the US Department of Transportation. 

▪ The interior storage of hazardous materials is to be compliant with the 

current local, state and federal building and fire codes. This project will 

utilize H-3 occupancy for the flammable storage area and H-4 for the 

corrosive storage material. The construction type for the building is IA, 

the exterior walls will be 3-hour rated. The building will be fully 

equipped with building and in-rack sprinkler system compliant with 

current fire code and per NFPA13. 

c. No such storage and/or processing shall occur within the greater of (A) two 

hundred (200) feet of any perimeter boundary of a parcel that is not under 

common ownership and (B) an otherwise applicable minimum building setback. 

The applicant proposes the following setbacks: 

▪ Northern proposed setback for the outdoor storage: 35 feet [does not 

meet code, variance requested] 

▪ Eastern proposed setback for the outdoor storage: 30 feet [does not meet 

code, variance requested] 

▪ Eastern proposed setback for the building containing indoor storage: 88 

feet [does not meet code, variance requested] 

▪ Southern proposed setback for building containing indoor storage: 235+/- 

feet [meets code] 

▪ Western proposed setback for building (phase two) containing indoor 

storage: 593+/- feet [meets code] 

▪ Western proposed setback for outdoor storage (phase two): 397+/- feet 

[meets code] 

d. If such storage or processing is undertaken outside of a structure, then all exterior 

areas where these activities are occurring shall be surrounded by a masonry wall 

that is at least ten (10) feet in height, but only if they are wholly or partially 

visible in whole or in part from a public street right-of-way. Building facades 

may be used to meet this requirement. Any gates or doors shall include enhanced 

security features to ensure that unauthorized individuals cannot gain access to the 

area. 

▪ The applicant proposes to surround the outdoor storage a 10’ CMU wall 

at those property lines. 

2. The variance request may be substantial. The large setbacks are due to the potentially 

significant impact on life, property, and the environment. The Planning Commission 

should take into consideration the safety precautions the company is installing onsite and 

the distances to neighboring properties. The adjacent properties include residential to the 

west, and undeveloped properties to the north, east, and south that is also zoned TMD. 

Setback requirements are met to the west and south. The setback requirements are not 

met to the north and east. 



PC 23 1120 Rinchem Hazardous Storage Setback Variance V-89-2023  4 of 4 

3. The “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement is to create separation between the 

hazardous material stored on-site and neighboring uses. The applicant proposes to 

construct a 10-foot-tall concrete masonry wall around the portions of the site where the 

setback encroachment is proposed in order to create a physical and visual separation.  

4. There does not appear to be special conditions or circumstances that exist which are 

peculiar to the land or structure involved which are not also applicable to other lands or 

structures in the same zoning district.  

5. It appears that the problem could be solved in some other manner other than the granting 

of a variance request. There are undeveloped properties to the north and east where 

additional land may be purchased and phases could be altered to initially store the 

hazardous material 200 feet away from the property lines.  

6. The Planning Commission should consider if granting the variances will adversely affect 

the health and safety of persons residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed 

development, be materially detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private 

property or public improvements in the vicinity.  

7. Granting the variance would not adversely affect the delivery of government services.  

 

IV. RECOMMENDATION 

The TMD zoning code contemplates and permits hazardous material to be stored outside within 

this portion of the business park. Due to the potential hazards of chemical storage, the codified 

ordinances require a minimum 200-foot setback from property lines regardless of the neighboring 

use. The large setback is intended to reduce the risks and protect neighboring properties from 

adverse health effects and physical hazards such as spills that can harm people and property.   

 

V. ACTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate (conditions may be added):  

 

Move to approve application VAR-89-2023 (conditions of approval may be added). 

 

 

Approximate Site Location:  

 

 



99 West Main Street  ●   P.O. Box 188   ●   New Albany, Ohio  43054    ●   Phone 614.939.2254    ●   Fax 614.939.2234 

 
 

Community Development Planning Application 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Site Address              

Parcel Numbers            

Acres      # of lots created       

Choose Application Type Circle all Details that Apply 
��Appeal     
��Certificate of Appropriateness     
��Conditional Use     
��Development Plan  Preliminary Final Comprehensive Amendment 
��Plat  Preliminary Final   
��Lot Changes  Combination Split Adjustment  
��Minor Commercial Subdivision      
��Vacation  Easement  Street 
��Variance      
��Extension Request      
��Zoning  Amendment (rezoning) Text Modification 
   
 
Description of Request:  
  
  
  
 
 

P
ro

je
ct

 I
n

fo
rm

at
io

n 

Site visits to the property by City of New Albany representatives are essential to process this application. 
The Owner/Applicant, as signed below, hereby authorizes Village of New Albany representatives, 
employees and appointed and elected officials to visit, photograph and post a notice on the property 
described in this application. I certify that the information here within and attached to this application is 
true, correct and complete.  
 
 
Signature of Owner  Date:  
Signature of Applicant  Date:  

Property Owner’s Name:    
Address:      
City, State, Zip:     
Phone number:   Fax:  
Email:      
      
      
Applicant’s Name:    
Address:      
City, State, Zip:     
Phone number:   Fax:  
Email:      
 

C
on

ta
ct

s 
S

ig
n

at
u

re
 

 Permit # ________ 
Board ________ 

Mtg. Date ________ 

095-111732-00.000, 095-111564-00.000
Harrison Road, New Albany, OH

29.8 1

1154.12 (Storage; Hazardous Materials). Outdoor storage of hazardous
materials shall not occur within 200 feet of any perimeter boundary of all
parcels that is not under common ownership. Permission is requested for
outdoor storage within this 200’ setback along the northern property line and
eastern property line. The applicant proposes a 10’-0” tall CMU wall in lieu of
the 200’ setback.

Gary Huffman, Rinchem Company LLC
5131 Masthead Street NE
Albuquerque, NM 87109

ghuffman@rinchem.com

Tuan Q. Luu, MDG Architecture | Interiors
4875 SW Griffith Drive Suite 300
Beaverton, OR 97005
503-244-0552

tuan@mdgpc.com

09/06/2023

ghuffman
Text Box
9-7-2023



Project Narrative – Variance – Rinchem – October 26, 2023  1 

New Albany, Ohio 

Variance Application – 
Technology Manufacturing District  
Rinchem - MISC-GRADE-23-000015 – Storage; Hazardous Materials Variance 
 
Rinchem Company, LLC 
Date: October 26th, 2023 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Project Narrative – Variance – Rinchem – October 26, 2023  2 

APPLICANT 
Rinchem Company, LLC 
5131 Masthead Street NE 
Albuquerque, NM 87109 
Gary Huffman, ghuffman@rinchem.com  
 
PREPARED FOR 
City of New Albany 
Community Development Department 
99 West Main Street 
P.O. Box 188  
New Albany, Ohio 43054  
Phone – 614-939-2254 
 
PREPARED BY 
First Forty Feet  
412 NW Couch Street, Suite 405 
Portland, Oregon 97209 
Will Grimm, will@firstfortyfeet.com 
Phone – 802-595-9448 
 
ARCHITECT 
MDG Architecture/Interiors 
4875 SW Griffith Drive, Suite 300 
Beaverton, Oregon 97005 
Tuan Q. Luu – tuan@mdgpc.com 
Phone – 503-244-0552 
 
DEVELOPMENT LOCATION 
Harrison Road, New Albany, OH 
 
PARCEL 
095-111732-00.000, 095-111564-00.000 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
29.829 AC LOT 12 & 13 R15 T2 Q2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:ghuffman@rinchem.com
mailto:will@firstfortyfeet.com
mailto:tuan@mdgpc.com


Project Narrative – Variance – Rinchem – October 26, 2023  3 

Explanation of Intent 

 
First Forty Feet, in collaboration with MDG, will be submitting for the following:  
 

1) Variance application to 1154.12(b)(3) - STORAGE; HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS. 
No such storage and/or processing shall occur within the greater of (A) two 
hundred (200) feet of any perimeter boundary of a parcel that is not under 
common ownership and (B) an otherwise applicable minimum building setback. 
 
Phase one – Outdoor storage of hazardous materials (ISO YARD); Indoor 
storage of hazardous materials (WAREHOUSE). 
Phase two – Outdoor storage of hazardous materials (ISO YARD EXPANSION).  

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The proposed development of Rinchem Company, LLC, will provide employment in 
chemical management solutions. Rinchem has proven expertise in creating and 
managing safe workplaces with high purity, pre-packaged chemicals and gases. This 
proposed development is approximately 30 acres of land for a chemical storage 
warehouse and storage yard. The entire development is divided into two separate 
phases. Phase one proposes an office, storage warehouses, and ISO yard (outdoor 
storage pad). For phase two, the ISO yard and warehouse will each almost double in 
size. A variance is requested to 1154.12(b)(3) as both the outdoor storage (phase one 
and two) and indoor storage (phase one) of hazardous materials does not meet the 
required setbacks, but provides screening and protection in-lieu of separation. 
 
The phase one warehouse building will contain indoor storage of hazardous materials, 
but will be fully contained, with sprinklers, and meets all HMIS code regulations. The 
exterior walls (painted concrete tilt panels) will be fire-rated for three hours. The 
building does not meet the hazardous storage setback of 200’ from the east property 
line. At 88’ from the east property line, a variance is requested for indoor storage of 
hazardous materials for phase one, providing protection through robust building 
structure and containment curbs in-lieu of separation. The future phase two warehouse 
expansion will meet the hazardous materials setback and will not need to be considered 
as part of this variance application.  
 
The phase one ISO yard containing hazardous materials is proposed 30’ from the east 
property line and 35’ from the north property line, screened by a 10’ CMU wall at those 
property lines. An 8’ tall chain link fence meets the CMU wall at both ends, wrapping 
the rest of the project area for phase one, ensuring the entirety of the development is 
screened. The ISO yard is separated into six individual fully contained spill containment 
basins with sensors. The ISO yard does not meet the hazardous storage setback of 200’ 
from the north or east property line, but provides screening and protection in-lieu of 
separation. The phase two ISO yard expansion included in this variance application will 



Project Narrative – Variance – Rinchem – October 26, 2023  4 

also not meet the 200’ setback from the north property line, but will use the same 
strategies of protection and screening as the phase one ISO yard. 
 
 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
  
(a) Name, address and phone number of the applicant. (pg. 2) 

(b) Legal description of property as recorded in Franklin County Recorder's office. (pg. 

2) 

(c) Each application for a variance or appeal shall refer to the specific provisions of this 

Ordinance which apply. (pg. 3, 6) 

(d) The names and addresses of all property owners within two hundred (200) feet, 

contiguous to, and directly across the street from the property, as appearing on the 

Franklin County Auditor's current tax list. (pg. 7 and attachment) 

(e) A narrative statement explaining the following: (pg. 3, 6-7) 

(1)  The use for which variance or appeal is sought. 

(2) Details of the variance or appeal that is applied for and the grounds on which 

it is claimed that the variance or appeal should be granted, as the case may be. 

(3) The specific reasons why the variance or appeal is justified according to this 

chapter. 

(4) Such other information regarding the application for appeal as may be 

pertinent or required for appropriate action by the Board of Zoning Appeals. 

(f) A plot plan drawn to an appropriate scale showing the following: (see plans 

attached) 

(1) The boundaries and dimensions of the lot. 

(2) The nature of the special conditions or circumstances giving rise to the 

application for approval. 

(3) The size and location of existing and proposed structures. 

(4) The proposed use of all parts of the lots and structures, including accesses, 

walks, off-street parking and loading spaces, and landscaping. 

(5) The relationship of the requested variance to the development standards. 

(6) The use of land and location of structures on adjacent property. 



Project Narrative – Variance – Rinchem – October 26, 2023  5 

 

Vicinity Map 

 

Site Aerial 

 



Project Narrative – Variance – Rinchem – October 26, 2023  6 

 
Detailed variance description: 1154.12(b)(3) (Storage; Hazardous Materials). 
Storage of hazardous materials shall not occur within 200 feet of any perimeter 
boundary of all parcels that is not under common ownership. Permission is requested 
for indoor and outdoor storage within this 200’ setback. The site plan was designed to 
locate the hazardous materials storage in the warehouse and ISO yard as far from and 
out of view of the residential neighborhood (to the west) and Harrison Road (to the 
south) as possible. The materials being stored are received in multiple containers 
approved by the US Department of Transportation. 
 
The ISO yard will be designed to be a fully contained slab isolated from the overall 
storm system. The yard can contain and accommodate 24-hours of an average 25 year 
rainfall plus the entire content of the ISO tanks. The rainfall data will be sourced from 
the NOAA Precipitation Frequency Data. Each ISO yard catch basin will be equipped 
with a sensor control mechanism installed before the connection with storm water 
discharge line to continuously monitor storm water and flow from the containment 
areas.  
 
The interior storage of hazardous materials is to be compliant with the current local, 
state and federal building and fire codes. This project will utilize H-3 occupancy for the 
flammable storage area and H-4 for the corrosive storage material. The construction 
type for the building is IA, the exterior walls will be 3-hour rated. The building will be 
fully equipped with building and in-rack sprinkler system compliant with current fire 
code and per NFPA13. The slab of the building is designed to be fully contained for spill 
containment by creating a bathtub at the storage areas. The spill control measures are 
to be designed to contain the entire volume of the largest container stored in the 
facility, as well as secondary containment for the warehouse is designed to exceed the 
minimum depth of containment required to contain 20-minutes of sprinkler flow plus 
the entire volume of the largest container stored at the facility. An HMIS report will be 
completed for Hazardous Materials classifications categories for the building.  
 
Granting the requested variance will not be contrary to the public interest, 
because: the public interest is to have hazardous materials away from residential and 
public right-of-ways. If the site layout were to comply with the 200’ setback, the 
warehouse and ISO yard would be brought closer to residents and/or public right-of-
ways. It would be in the best interest of the public to have the ISO yard screened in its 
proposed location.  
 
Substantial justice would be done to the property-owner by granting the 
variance, because: due to the size of the property, 200’ setbacks on the north, south, 
and east would reduce the site needed for operations by forcing the warehouse and 
ISO yard towards the center of the parcel, also making it inefficient for truck movement 
and site operations. Additionally, on the western side of the property there is a drainage 



Project Narrative – Variance – Rinchem – October 26, 2023  7 

easement that ranges from 391’ to 422’ inward from the property line, further limiting 
site availability for operations.  
 
Special conditions exist such that literal enforcement of the ordinance results 
in unnecessary hardship, because: relocating the warehouse and ISO yard to 
comply with the 200’ setback would disorder necessary site circulation, impacting the 
efficiency of services to Intel.  
 
The proposed use will observe the spirit of the ordinance, because: the spirit of 
the ordinance is to shield the public from hazardous material storage, which this 
variance request fulfills. Additionally, the proposed development follows all local, state, 
and federal laws and codes to ensure safe and proper storage of hazardous materials.  
 
The proposed use will not diminish the values of surrounding properties 
because: the surrounding properties to the north and east, which are adjacent to the 
proposed warehouse and ISO yard, are also part of the Technology Manufacturing 
District of New Albany. Additionally, there is a CMU wall, fencing, and vegetation to 
provide further screening.  

 
 



Parcel Number Engineer PIN OWNER1 OWNER2 Address City State Zip Code
 037-112008-00.009" "   02151284315392005000"" STANIFER, MARK D STANIFER, KRISTIN M 132  BERMUDA DR JOHNSTOWN OH 43031
 037-112008-00.008" "   02151284315392004000"" POLING, TIFFANY , 124  BERMUDA DR JOHNSTOWN OH 43031
 037-112008-00.010" "   02151284315392006000"" DEBELIUS, FRANK M DEBELIUS, MARILYN T 140  BERMUDA DR JOHNSTOWN OH 43031
 095-111756-00.000" "   02150000400000043000"" MBJ HOLDINGS LLC, , 8000  WALTON PKWY STE 120 NEW ALBANY OH 43054
 095-111732-00.002" "   02150000400000053000"" MBJ HOLDINGS LLC, , 8000  WALTON PKWY STE 120 NEW ALBANY OH 43054
 095-112200-00.000" "   02150000400000072000"" MBJ HOLDINGS LLC, , 8000  WALTON PKWY STE 120 NEW ALBANY OH 43054
 095-111978-00.000" "   02150000300000079000"" MBJ HOLDINGS LLC, , 8000  WALTON PKWY STE 120 NEW ALBANY OH 43054
 095-111732-00.003" "   02150000400000045200"" COI NEW ALBANY TECH PARK LAND LLC, , 4900  MAIN ST, STE 400 KANSAS CITY MO 64112
 095-111756-00.013" "   02150000400000043300"" PJP HOLDINGS LLC, , 9005  SMITH'S MILL RD NEW ALBANY OH 43054
 095-112062-00.000" "   02150000400000067000"" MBJ HOLDINGS LLC, , 8000  WALTON PKWY STE 120 NEW ALBANY OH 43054
 095-112062-00.003" "   02150000400000045400"" COI NEW ALBANY TECH PARK LAND LLC, , 4900  MAIN ST STE 400 KANSAS CITY MO 64112
 095-111732-00.022" "   02150000400000045300"" RINCHEM COMPANY LLC, , 5131  MASTHEAD ST ALBUQUERQUE NM 87109
 095-112062-00.002" "   02150000400000067100"" COI NEW ALBANY TECH PARK LAND LLC, , 4900  MAIN STREET   SUITE 400 KANSAS CITY MO 64112
 095-112620-00.000" "   02150000300000079200"" COI NEW ALBANY TECH PARK LAND LLC, , 4900  MAIN ST, STE 400 KANSAS CITY MO 64112
 037-112008-00.012" "   02151283815392002000"" DRISCOLL, SCOTT BECKNELL, KRISTIN 156  BERMUDA DR JOHNSTOWN OH 43031
 037-112008-00.019" "   02150000316146008000"" MBJ HOLDINGS LLC, , 8000  WALTON PKWY STE 120 NEW ALBANY OH 43054
 037-112008-00.011" "   02151283815392001000"" SHADWICK, JEFFREY A SHADWICK, DONNA M 148  BERMUDA DR JOHNSTOWN OH 43031
 095-111732-00.003" "   02150000400000045200"" COI NEW ALBANY TECH PARK LAND LLC, , 4900  MAIN ST, STE 400 KANSAS CITY MO 64112

Megan Doherty
Text Box
Property Owners within 200 Feet



These poles that are 1.6
 scale are bigger

because they show up better
 on the 40 Scale

HARRISON ROAD EXTENSION

(BSP)

PAVING & BUILDING SETBACK
BUILDING AND 
PAVEMENT 
SETBACK

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

BUILDING SETBACK

PAVING SETBACK

CORROSIVE 
8  AISLES

POSITIONS PER AISLE = 
(37 X 2 X 9 )*2 - 36 = 1,296

1,296 X 8 = 10,368 POSITIONS 
( + 1,181)

7 SPACES 
SULFURIC ACID 
PARKING AREA

SULFURIC ACID STORAGE AREA
(50 UNITS)

PHASE 2 
FUTURE

3
6

5
' -

 8
 3

/4
"

104' - 0 1/2" 121' - 9 3/4"

1
2

2
' -

 6
"

3
3

' 
- 

0
"

165' - 0"

7 SPACES NON 
REGULATED PARKING 

AREA

7 SPACES 
CYCLOHEXANONE 

PARKING AREA

2
7

' 
- 

0
"

5
8

' 
- 

8
"

4
4

' 
- 

0
"

12

33

165' - 0"

1
2

0
' -

 0
"

403' - 6"

180' - 6"

6
9

' 
- 

8
 1

/2
"

FLAMMABLE 
7  AISLES

POSITIONS PER AISLE = 
(37 X 2 X 6 )*2 - 36 = 852

852 X 7 = 5,964 POSITIONS 
( +916)

160' - 4" 182' - 4" 160' - 4"

36' - 0"
36' - 0"

CYCLOHEXANONE STORAGE AREA 
(50 UNITS)

CYCLOHEXANONE STORAGE AREA 
(50 UNITS)

NON REGULATED MATERIAL 
STORAGE AREA

(40 UNITS)

NON REGULATED MATERIAL 
STORAGE AREA

(40 UNITS)

SULFURIC ACID STORAGE AREA
(50 UNITS)

3
6

' 
- 

0
"

2
3

5
' -

 2
"

SIDE SETBACK

25' - 0"

R
E

A
R

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

2
5

' 
- 

0
"

F
R

O
N

T
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

5
0

' 
- 

0
"

SIDE RESIDENTIAL SETBACK FOR BUILDING<65'

100' - 0"

25' - 0"

1280' - 10 1/4"

HARRISON ROAD EXTENSION

COVERED 
OUTDOOR GAS 

PAD

88' - 0"

3
8

7
' -

 3
 1

/4
"

818' - 9 3/4"

A1.2

1

5' - 0"

VERIFY

537' - 10"

SETBACK FROM RESIDENTIAL 

200' - 0"

25' - 0"

1
9

' 
- 

8
 1

/2
"

FIRE

ELEC.

GATE FOR SNOW REMOVAL

8
' 
- 

6
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

3
5

' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

1
6

2
' -

 0
"

ISO YARD 4.5" HIGH 
CONTAINMENT CURB

PARKING AREA 4.5" HIGH 
CONTAINMENT CURB

9
' 
- 

0
"

27

21' - 0" 30' - 0"

1
9

' 
- 

0
"

13' - 5" 63' - 0" 23' - 0" 63' - 0" 9' - 0" 90' - 0" 9' - 0" 81' - 0" 19' - 8 1/2"

16' - 4" 59' - 1" 24' - 0" 63' - 0" 12' - 7"

7
5

' 
- 

0
"

84' - 0"

10' - 0" 252' - 0" 10' - 0"

25' - 0" 49' - 6" 70' - 6" 20' - 0"

40' - 0"

30' - 0"

40' - 0" SP-032
SP-051

SP-054

SP-053

SP-030

SP-055

SP-056

SP-056

V
E

R
IF

Y

1
9

1
' -

 8
 3

/4
"

5
' 
- 

0
"SP-057

SP-057

SP-049

SP-049

SP-049

SP-049

SP-059

SP-060

SP-041
SP-049

SP-032

SP-051

SP-052SP-052SP-052

DRIVE-IN DOOR

DOCK-HEIGHT DOOR

AREA OF WORK

FIRE LANE

PARKING COUNT SUBTOTAL

SLOPE DOWN, UNO

LEGEND                                      

0

GENERAL NOTES - SITE PLAN

1. GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, 
CONFLICTS ARE TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO THE START OF 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO SUCH.

2. REFER TO CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR GRADING AND UTILITY INFORMATION.
3. CONTRACTORS SHALL VERIFY ALL LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES, CARE SHOULD BE TAKE TO AVOID 

DAMAGE TO OR DISTURBANCE OF EXISTING UTILITIES.
4. REFER TO CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ALL PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY IMPROVEMENTS.
5. THE CONSTRUCTION SHALL NOT RESTRICT A FIVE-FOOT CLEAR UNOBSTRUCTED ACCESS TO ANY 

WATER OR POWER DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES (POWER POLES, PULL BOXES, TRANSFORMERS, VAULTS, 
PUMPS, VALVES, METERS, APPURTENANCES, ETC.) OR THE LOCATION OF THE HOOK-UP.

6. THE CONSTRUCTION SHALL NOT BE WITHIN 10' OF ANY POWER LINES - WHETHER OR NOT THE POWER 
LINES ARE LOCATED ON THE PROPERTY.  FAILURE TO COMPLY MAY CAUSE CONSTRUCTION DELAYS OR 
ADDITIONAL EXPENSES.

7. FIRE LANES SHALL BE DESIGNED TO SUPPORT A FIRE APPARATUS LOAD OF 75,000 LBS WITH A WHEEL 
LOAD OF 12,500 LBS.

8. DELEGATED DESIGN NFPA 13 FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM DESIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH OHIO FIRE 
CODE WILL BE A DEFERRED SUBMITTAL.

SITE AREA: 1298,443 SF = 29.8 ACRE

BUILDING AREA: WAREHOUSE/ STORAGE:         104,145 SF
OFFICE:            2,888 SF
COVERED OUTDOOR STORAGE    10,273 SF
TOTAL       117,306 SF

ISO YARD/ PARKING/ PAVING AREA:   301,026 SF

LOT COVERAGE FOR IMPERV AREA: (301,026 +117,306 SF) / 1298,443 SF = 32.2 % <75 OK

REQUIRED LANDSCAPING: REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN.

CHAPTER 1167.05E: VEHICLE PARKING:
INDUSTRIAL/ BUSINESS SUPPORT 1/400GSF 2888/400= 7.22 SPACES REQ'D
INDISTRIAL/ WAREHOUSING 2 PER 3 EMPLOYEE DURING WORK SHIFT HAVING GREATEST NUMBER OF 
EMPLOYEES MAXIMUM NUMBER OF EMPLOYEE ALLOWED : 50 (50X2/3) = 33.3 SPACES REQ'D
ONE FOR EACH VEHICLE MAINTAINED ON THE PREMISES: 4 MAX.

TOTAL: 7.22+ 33.3 + 4= 44.6 SPACES REQUIRED > 73 PROPOSED, OKAY
PER TABLE 1106.1, (2) ACCESSIBLE SPACES INCLUDING (1) VAN SPACE REQ'D

CHAPTER 1167.06: FOR 117,306 GSF BUILDING,
3 LOADING SPACES ARE REQUIRED (MIN: 12.0'W X 30.0'L X 15.0'H) 3 PROVIDED (OK)

Per OFC criteria:

5004.2.2.4 Outdoor Design:
Secondary containment for outdoor storage areas shall be designed to contain a spill from the largest vessel. If the area is 
open to rainfall, secondary containment shall be designed to include the volume of a 24-hour rainfall as determined by a 25 
year storm, and provisions shall be made to drain accumulations of groundwater and rainwater.

NORTH ISO YARD AREA CONTAINMENT:
24 HR RAINFALL = 4.44"
LARGEST CONTAINER = 2500 GALLONS = 335 CUBIC FEET

EACH DRAINAGE AREA 180' X 160' = 28,800 SQUARE FEET, 4.44" OF RAINFALL=10,656 CUBIC FEET
DRAINAGE AREA NEEDS TO BE ABLE TO HOLD= 110,656 CUBIC FEET+335 CUBIC FEET= 10,991 CUBIC FEET
GRADING CONFIGURATION CAN ACCOMMODATE 8,451 CUBIC FEET, 2,540 CUBIC FEET IS NEEDED.
2,540/28800= 0.088'= 1.06" BERM IS REQUIRED. (3" PROVIDED) SEE DETAIL #2/A1.2

WEST ISO LOADING CONTAINMENT:
24 HR RAINFALL = 4.44"
LARGEST CONTAINER = 2500 GALLONS = 335 CUBIC FEET

EACH DRAINAGE AREA 40' X 84' = 3,360 SQUARE FEET, 4.44" OF RAINFALL=1,243.2 CUBIC FEET
DRAINAGE AREA NEEDS TO BE ABLE TO HOLD= 1,243 CUBIC FEET+335 CUBIC FEET= 1,578 CUBIC FEET
GRADING CONFIGURATION CAN ACCOMMODATE 1313 CUBIC FEET, 265 CUBIC FEET IS NEEDED.
265/3360= 0.079'= 0.95" BERM IS REQUIRED. (3" PROVIDED) SEE DETAIL #3/A1.2

PROVIDE VALVE WITH A CONTROL MECHANISM AT DESIGNATED DRAINAGE CATCH BASIN PRIOR TO 
CONNECTION WITH STORM DRAINAGE LINE. SEE PLAN FOR VALVE LOCATION ON PLAN #1/A1.2. ALL VALVES 
SHALL BE IN CLOSED POSITIONS. RINCHEM YARD TEAM SHALL DO DAILY YARD CHECKS PER RINCHEM 
PROTOCOL CSC-16. THE VALVE SHALL BE OPENED WHEN NO SPILL IS DETECTED.

AT ISO YARD AND TANKER STORAGE LOCATION, FILL JOINTS WITH JOINT FILLER COMPATIBLE WITH 
CYCLOHEXANONE AND SULFURIC ACID.

Date:

Job Number:

Project:

Sheet Title:

Revisions:

Sheet

Client/ Owner:

MDG, P.C., 2023, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED ©

THESE DRAWINGS ARE THE PROPERTY OF 
MDG, P.C., AND ARE NOT TO BE USED OR 
REPRODUCED IN ANY MANNER, EXCEPT WITH 
THE PRIOR WRITTEN PERMISSION OF MDG, P.C.

FOR

REFERENCE 

ONLY

C
:\

U
s
e
rs

\s
m

h
\D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

\1
2
2
0
7
4
 -

 R
in

c
h
e
m

 O
h
io

 -
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
- 

2
0
2
2
_
s
im

o
n
e
G

9
4
M

R
.r

v
t

A1.0

SITE PLAN

122074

06/26/2023

PLANNING AND DESIGN REVIEW

HARRISON ROAD
OHIO

RINCHEM -
NEW ALBANY

RINCHEM
COMPANY,
LLC

5131 MASTHEAD
STREET NE
ALBUQUERQUE, NM
87109

1" = 50'-0"1 SITE LAYOUT

NORTH
PLAN

NORTH

KEYNOTES

SP-030 FENCE, CHAIN LINK, 8'-0"H, SIGHT OBSCURING

SP-032 GATE, CHAIN LINK, 40'W MIN CLR. ELECTRIC GATES SHALL BE EQUIPPED
WITH A MEANS FOR OPERATION BY FIRE DEPT PERSONNEL.

SP-041 ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING PARKING SPACES

SP-049 POLE MOUNTED SITE LIGHTING

SP-051 GATE ACCESS CONTROL

SP-052 12' X 30' X 15' H LOADING SPACE

SP-053 GENERATOR PAD - 5'-0" BUFFER

SP-054 KNOX BOX FOR FIRE PUMP LOCATION, COORDINATE FINAL LOCATION(S)
WITH FIRE MARSHAL

SP-055 PROVIDE ELECTRIC CHARGING STATION FOR ISO STORAGE LOADER,
COORDINATE EXACT LOCATION WITH CLIENT

SP-056 10'-0" TALL CMU SITE WALL ADJACENT TO OUTDOOR STORAGE, EXTEND
CMU WALL 5'-0" PAST EXTENT OF OUTDOOR STORAGE AREA

SP-057 DRAINAGE EASEMENT

SP-059 40 YARD DUMPSTER PAD, 6'-0" TALL CMU WALLS ON EITHER SIDE OF
DUMPSTER TO PROVIDE SCREENING

SP-060 EMPLOYEE OUTDOOR PATIO

#  Description Date



T he se pol es tha
t a re 1.6  sc ale  ar e b igg er

b eca use  th ey sho
w  u p b ett er on the  40  Sc ale

HARRISON ROAD EXTENSION

(BSP)

C
L

O
V

E
R

 V
A

L
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

( B
S

P
)

TO NEAREST STRUCTURE

+/- 438' - 0 5/8"

TO NEAREST STRUCTURE

836' - 7 1/8"

TO NEAREST STRUCTURE

867' - 11 1/4"

T
O

 N
E

A
R

E
S

T
 S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

+
/-

 2
,2

3
2

' 
- 

5
"

HOUSE

HOUSE

HOUSE

HOUSE

TO STRUCTURE

1,413' - 2 5/8"

TO NEAREST STRUCTURE1,721' - 4 3/4"

Project:

Client/ Owner:

MDG, P.C., 2023, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED ©

ZV0.0
VICINITY PLANRINCHEM - NEW ALBANY

RINCHEM COMPANY, LLC

1" = 400'-0"

VICINITY PLAN



These pole s that are
 1 .6 scale are b igger

bec ause they show up b
etter on th e 40 Scale

HARRISON ROAD EXTENSION

PHASE 2 
FUTURE

WAREHOUSE 
EXPANSION

B
L
D

G
 T

O
 P

R
O

P
 L

IN
E

2
3

5
' -

 2
"

SIDE SETBACK

25' - 0"

R
E

A
R

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

2
5

' 
- 

0
"

F
R

O
N

T
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

5
0

' 
- 

0
"

SIDE RESIDENTIAL SETBACK FOR BUILDING<65'

100' - 0"

BLDG TO PROP LINE

88' - 0"

B
L
D

G
 T

O
 P

R
O

P
 L

IN
E

3
8

7
' -

 3
 1

/4
"

818' - 9 3/4"

5' - 0"

VERIFY

537' - 10"

SETBACK FROM RESIDENTIAL 

200' - 0"

V
E

R
IF

Y

1
9

1
' -

 8
 3

/4
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

H
A

Z
A

R
D

O
U

S
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

2
0

0
' -

 0
"

HAZARDOUS STORAGE SETBACK

200' - 0"

3
5

' 
- 

6
 3

/4
"

30' - 0"

H
A

Z
A

R
D

O
U

S
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

2
0

0
' -

 0
"

HAZARDOUS STORAGE SETBACK

200' - 0"

340' - 10 3/4"

PHASE 2 FUTURE

ISO STORAGE YARD 

38.8% INCREASE

ISO STORAGE YARD

BLDG TO PROP LINE

974' - 4 21/128"

TO HAZ. MTL SETBACK

197' - 9 1/2"

1
7

2
' -

 0
"

10' CMU WALL AT PROPERTY 
LINE - EXTEND 5'-0" PAST 
EDGE OF ISO YARD NOTED 
BY GREEN LINE IN PHASE I 

WALL DETAIL PROVIDED ON 
ZV1.1

HAZARDOUS STORAGE SETBACK
INDICATED BY BLUE DASHED 
LINE

DRAINAGE 
EASEMENT

RED DASHED LINE INDICATES 3-
HOUR FIRE-RATED WALL

CONTAINMENT CURB 
SURROUNDS ISO STORAGE 
YARD. CURB DETAIL 
PROVIDED ON ZV1.2 

ISO YARD SEPARATED INTO 
SIX INDIVIDUALLY FULLY 
CONTAINED SPILL 
CONTAINMENT BASINS 

CATCH BAIN WITH SENSOR AT
EACH SPILL CONTAINMENT 
BASINS

BLACK CHAINLINK FENCE 
WITH VINYL 

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

+/- 413' - 10 3/4"

ISO 

TRAILER

CATCH BAIN WITH SENSOR AT
EACH SPILL CONTAINMENT 
BASINS

PHASE 2 CMU WALL 

+/- 340' - 6"

Project:

Client/ Owner:

MDG, P.C., 2023, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED ©

ZV1.0
OVERALL SITERINCHEM - NEW ALBANY

RINCHEM COMPANY, LLC

1" = 100'-0"

OVERALL SITE PLAN



HARRISON ROAD

PROP BLDG
FF=1166.00

12/30

2023-0513

June 26, 2023

R
IN

C
H

E
M

DATE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
M

A
R

K

SCALE

JOB NO.

SHEET

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
N

E
W

 A
L

B
A

N
Y

, L
IC

K
IN

G
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, O

H
IO

SI
T

E
 IM

PR
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

FO
R

R
IN

C
H

E
M

31
95

 H
A

R
R

IS
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 N

W
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 P

L
A

N

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 30 60 120

1 inch = 60 feet

1" = 60'

LEGEND
EXISTING

PROPOSED

NOTES:



FACE OF CMU WALL TO 
ALIGN WITH PROPERTY 
LINE

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

3' - 0"

1
' 
- 

0
"

8
"

8" SOLID GROUT CMU WALL : 
- #4 VERTICAL AT 4'-0" O/C MAX.    
PROVIDE STANDARD HOOK IN    
FOOTING 
- (2) #4 BOND BEAM AT 4'-0" O.C 
MAX. 
- (2) #4 HORIZONTAL AT TOP 
AND BOTTOM OF WALL 
- (2) #4 VERTICAL AT ENDS OF 
WALL

GRADE ON EITHER SIDE OF WALL -
WALL IS NOT RETAINING WALL

PROPERTY LINE

3
" 

C
L

R

CONTINUOUS FOOTING PER 
PLAN. EXTENT 1'-0" PAST END 
OF WALL, TYP. (f'c = 3000 PSI) 

#4 REBAR AT 1'-0" O/C 
TRANSVERSE

(4) #5 REBAR LONGITUDINAL 
(MIN LAP = 3'-0")

CHAIN LINK FENCE 
WITH VERTICAL 
PRIVACY SLATS. 
COLOR TBD

POST PER 
MANUFACTURER

12" DIA. CONCRETE POST 
FOOTING, 30" DEEP, OR 
PER MFR REQUIREMENT

2
' 
- 

6
"

2
' 
- 

0
"

S
E

E
 P

L
A

N
- 

M
IN

. 
8

'

1' - 0"

Project:

Client/ Owner:

MDG, P.C., 2023, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED ©

ZV1.1
FENCESRINCHEM - NEW ALBANY

RINCHEM COMPANY, LLC

3/4" = 1'-0"

CMU WALL

1/2" = 1'-0"

PERIMETER CHAINLINK FENCE



SLOPESLOPE

ASPHALTCATCH BASIN

7" THICK CONCRETE PAD FOR 
TRAILER SKIDS WITH #4 REBAR AT 24" 
O.C. WITH CHEMICAL RESISTANT 
JOINT FILLER AT SAWCUTS

3" TALL CONCRETE 
BERM

3
"

3' - 0" 3' - 0"

6' - 0"

TRAILER SKID

SLOPESLOPE

ASPHALT

CATCH BASIN

7" THICK CONCRETE PAVING 
WITH #4 REBAR AT 24" O.C. 
WITH CHEMICAL RESISTANT 
JOINT FILLER AT SAWCUTS 3" TALL CONCRETE 

BERM

3
"

5' - 0"

2' - 0" 1' - 0" 2' - 0"

Project:

Client/ Owner:

MDG, P.C., 2023, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED ©

ZV1.2
ISO YARDRINCHEM - NEW ALBANY

RINCHEM COMPANY, LLC

3/4" = 1'-0"

CONTAINMENT AT ISO PARKING

3/4" = 1'-0"

CONTAINMENT AT ISO YARD

Per OFC criteria:

5004.2.2.4 Outdoor Design:
Secondary containment for outdoor storage areas shall 
be designed to contain a spill from the largest vessel. If 
the area is open to rainfall, secondary containment 
shall be designed to include the volume of a 24-hour 
rainfall as determined by a 25 year storm, and 
provisions shall be made to drain accumulations of 
groundwater and rainwater.

WEST ISO PARKING CONTAINMENT:
24 HR RAINFALL = 4.44"
LARGEST CONTAINER = 2500 GALLONS = 335 
CUBIC FEET

EACH DRAINAGE AREA 40' X 84' = 3,360 SQUARE 
FEET, 4.44" OF RAINFALL=1,243.2 CUBIC FEET
DRAINAGE AREA NEEDS TO BE ABLE TO HOLD= 
1,243 CUBIC FEET+335 CUBIC FEET= 1,578 CUBIC 
FEET
GRADING CONFIGURATION CAN ACCOMMODATE 
1313 CUBIC FEET, 265 CUBIC FEET IS NEEDED.
265/3360= 0.079'= 0.95" BERM IS REQUIRED. (3" 

PROVIDED) SEE DETAIL CONTAINMENT AT ISO 

PARKING 

NORTH ISO YARD AREA CONTAINMENT:
24 HR RAINFALL = 4.44"
LARGEST CONTAINER = 2500 GALLONS = 335 
CUBIC FEET

EACH DRAINAGE AREA 180' X 160' = 28,800 
SQUARE FEET, 4.44" OF RAINFALL=10,656 CUBIC 
FEET
DRAINAGE AREA NEEDS TO BE ABLE TO HOLD= 
110,656 CUBIC FEET+335 CUBIC FEET= 10,991 
CUBIC FEET
GRADING CONFIGURATION CAN ACCOMMODATE 
8,451 CUBIC FEET, 2,540 CUBIC FEET IS NEEDED.
2,540/28800= 0.088'= 1.06" BERM IS REQUIRED. (3" 

PROVIDED) SEE DETAIL CONTAINMENT AT ISO 

YARD

PROVIDE VALVE WITH A CONTROL MECHANISM 
AT DESIGNATED DRAINAGE CATCH BASIN PRIOR 
TO CONNECTION WITH STORM DRAINAGE LINE. 
SEE PLAN FOR VALVE LOCATION ON PLAN #
1/A1.2. ALL VALVES SHALL BE IN CLOSED 
POSITIONS. RINCHEM YARD TEAM SHALL DO 
DAILY YARD CHECKS PER RINCHEM PROTOCOL 
CSC-16. THE VALVE SHALL BE OPENED WHEN NO 
SPILL IS DETECTED.

AT ISO YARD AND TANKER STORAGE LOCATION, 
FILL JOINTS WITH JOINT FILLER COMPATIBLE 
WITH CYCLOHEXANONE AND SULFURIC ACID.



Project:

Client/ Owner:

MDG, P.C., 2023, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED ©

ZV1.3
ISO YARDRINCHEM - NEW ALBANY

RINCHEM COMPANY, LLC

SMH
Image

SMH
Snapshot

SMH
Callout
SPILL CONTAINMENT CURB

SMH
Snapshot

SMH
Snapshot

SMH
Callout
SPILL CONTAINMENT CURB

SMH
Callout
INTERIOR SPILL CONTAINMENT CURB

SMH
Callout
SPILL CONTAINMENT CURB









PC 23 1120 7823 Calverton Square Variance V-104-2023  1 of 4 

 

 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

November 20, 2023 Meeting 

 

 

7823 CALVERTON SQUARE 

CONSERVATION AREA VARIANCE 

 

 

LOCATION:  7823 Calverton Square (PID: 222-001816) 

APPLICANT: The Columbus Architectural Studio c/o Thad and Susanne Perry 

REQUEST: (A) Variance to the Reserve at New Albany PUD section 26.04.01 and 

the subdivision plat to allow a screened porch home addition to encroach 

into the minimum rear yard setback and a platted conservation area by 4 

feet 

  (B) Variance to the subdivision plat to allow an open paver patio to 

encroach a platted conservation area by 9 feet 

ZONING:   Reserve at New Albany I-PUD 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential 

APPLICATION: VAR-104-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received on October 20 and November 1, 2023. 

Staff report prepared by Stephen Mayer, Planning Manager. 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests a variance to allow the construction of a home addition within the 

building setback and conservation area in the rear of the property.  The home addition is a 

screened-in porch located over an existing paver patio. During the city staff initial review of the 

application, it was discovered the paver patio is encroaching into a conservation area. The city 

staff couldn’t locate any historically issued variances or permits for the paver patio so the 

applicant has added a request to allow it to remain as constructed.   

 

Section 18 of the Reserve at New Albany PUD text states that variances may be requested of 

the Planning Commission but must be approved by the city council.  Accordingly, the Planning 

Commission is review and make a recommendation to city council regarding the variance 

requests.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 0.4-acre property is located in the Reserve at New Albany subdivision and contains a single-

family residential home that was built in 1997. The property is surrounded by single family 

residential homes on all sides of the property.   

 

III. ASSESSMENT 

The application complies with application submittal requirements in C.O. 1113.03, and is 

considered complete. The property owners within 200 feet of the property in question have been 

notified. 

 

Criteria 

The standard for granting of an area variance is set forth in the case of Duncan v. Village of 

Middlefield, 23 Ohio St.3d 83 (1986). The Board must examine the following factors when 

deciding whether to grant a landowner an area variance: 

 



PC 23 1120 7823 Calverton Square Variance V-104-2023  2 of 4 

All of the factors should be considered and no single factor is dispositive.  The key to whether an 

area variance should be granted to a property owner under the “practical difficulties” standard is 

whether the area zoning requirement, as applied to the property owner in question, is reasonable 

and practical. 

 

1. Whether the property will yield a reasonable return or whether there can be a beneficial 

use of the property without the variance. 

2. Whether the variance is substantial. 

3. Whether the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered or 

adjoining properties suffer a “substantial detriment.” 

4. Whether the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government services. 

5. Whether the property owner purchased the property with knowledge of the zoning 

restriction. 

6. Whether the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a 

variance. 

7. Whether the variance preserves the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement and 

whether “substantial justice” would be done by granting the variance. 

 

Plus, the following criteria as established in the zoning code (Section 1113.06):  

 

8. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or 

structure involved and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

9. That a literal interpretation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the 

applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district 

under the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

10. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the 

applicant.  

11. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 

privilege that is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

12. That granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons 

residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially 

detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements 

in the vicinity. 

III. EVALUATION 

(A) Variance to the Reserve at New Albany PUD section 26.04.01 and the subdivision 

plat to allow a screened porch home addition to encroach into the minimum rear 

yard setback and a platted conservation area by 4 feet  

The following should be considered in the board’s decision: 

1. There are two zoning regulatory restrictions located within the rear of the property: 

o The first is a minimum 30 foot rear yard building setback.  This is the standard 

building setback applicable to the entire residential subdivision.   

o The second is a 30 foot conservation area which prohibits any structure or 

building from being constructed within it established by a subdivision plat note. 

The conservation area is located on the rear of lots within the western half of the 

subdivision.  

2. The applicant is requesting a variance to allow a screened-in porch to encroach into both 

the minimum rear yard setback and a platted conservation area by 4 feet. The screened in 

porch is considered a home addition since it is attached to the primary home. 

3. The variance request does not appear to be substantial. The property is 0.4 acres (17,424 

square feet). The conservation area is 6,737 square feet, equating to 38.7% of the overall 

lot area.  The screened in porch is 457 square feet in size and 124 square feet of it is 

encroaching into the building setback and conservation areas.  The 124 square feet 



PC 23 1120 7823 Calverton Square Variance V-104-2023  3 of 4 

encroachment area is 1.8% of the conservation area on the lot.  

4. It appears the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a 

variance. The existing house is located 3.5 feet from the rear yard setback line and 

conservation area so there is buildable space behind the home. The applicant could 

reduce the size of the screened in porch by 4 feet, and utilize the 3.5 feet of buildable 

space, and not need a variance.  

5. There don’t appear to be special conditions and circumstances that exist which are 

peculiar to the land or structure involved and which are not applicable to other lands or 

structures in the same zoning district. Section 25.06 states “conservation areas will be 

designated in the rear of lots six (6) through thirteen (13) and sixteen (16) through 

twenty-four (24) in order to conserve the existing trees.  The care of these areas will fall 

to each owner of a lot containing a conservation area. The subject property is lot 21 so the 

properties on both sides of it have the same conservation area.  

6. Granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons residing 

or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially detrimental to the 

public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements in the vicinity.  

7. Granting the variance would not adversely affect the delivery of government services. 

There are no easements or public utilities located within the rear of the property. 

 

 

(B) Variance to the subdivision plat to allow an open paver patio to encroach a platted 

conservation area by 9 feet 

The following should be considered in the board’s decision: 

1. The applicant is requesting a variance to allow an open paver patio to encroach 9 feet into 

a conservation area located on the back of the property. There is a 30 foot conservation 

area which prohibits any structure or building from being constructed within it 

established by a subdivision plat note. 

2.  The codified ordinance section 1105.02(bbb) defines a structure as “anything constructed 

or erected, the use of which requires location on the ground or attachment to something 

having a fixed location on the ground, including, among other things, walls, buildings, 

and patios. ‘Structure’ does not include fences.” 

3. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the 

applicant. There is currently a paver patio constructed within the conservation easement.  

Based on aerial imagery, it appears the patio was constructed sometime between 1997 

and 2000. The city staff could not locate any permits or variances associated with the 

paver patio. Therefore, a variance is required to allow the paver patio to remain within 

the conservation easement. The current property owners and applicant, Thad and Susanne 

Perry, purchased the property in 2023. 

4. The variance does not appear to be substantial. This is a long-standing existing condition. 

The patio encroachment is very minor compared to the overall conservation area on the 

lot. The conservation area is 6,737 square feet, equating to 38.7% of the overall lot area.  



PC 23 1120 7823 Calverton Square Variance V-104-2023  4 of 4 

The area of the paver patio encroaching to the conservation easement is 279 square feet. 

The 279 square feet encroachment area is 4.1% of the conservation area on the lot. 

5. The variance request appears to meet the spirit and intent of the zoning requirement. The 

Reserve at New Albany PUD text allows for open porches and patios to encroach into the 

required yard if a minimum distance of 20 feet is maintained to any rear lot line. The 

existing patio meets this requirement.  Additionally, allowing the patio to remain will not 

alter or negatively impact any of the existing trees within the conservation area.  

6. Granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons residing 

or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially detrimental to the 

public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements in the vicinity.  

7. Granting the variance would not adversely affect the delivery of government services. 

There are no easements or public utilities located within the rear of the property. 

 

IV. RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of the variance application should the Planning Commission finds 

that the application has sufficient basis for approval. The addition of the screened in porch is 

located on an existing paver patio that is partially located within a conservation easement. 

Therefore, allowing the home addition will not negatively any trees within the conservation area. 

The home addition is also encroaching into the required rear yard setback but it appears to be a 

minor encroachment when compared to the size of the conservation area. The existing paver patio 

within the backyard is an existing condition requiring a variance since there is no evidence of it 

being permitted. The patio area is surrounded by landscaping and allowing it to remain will alter 

the spirit and intent of the conservation area which is to preserve trees. 

 

V. ACTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate (conditions may be added):  

 

Move to approve application VAR-104-2023 (conditions of approval may be added). 

 

 

Approximate Site Location:  

 
Source: NearMap 























23 1120 Cornerstone Conditional Use CU-105-20223  1 of 5 

                                           

  
 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

November 20, 2023 Meeting 

 

 

CORNERSTONE  

CONDITIONAL USE 

 

 

LOCATION:  Located at 7525 and 0 West Campus Road and 6005 Nacot Place (PIDs: 

222-002055, 222-004975, 222-004626) 

APPLICANT:   Cornerstone Academy Community School, c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq.  

REQUEST: Conditional Use 

ZONING:   Office Campus District (OCD) 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Employment Center  

APPLICATION: CU-105-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received October 18, 2023 and October 31, 2023. 

Staff report prepared by Chelsea Nichols, Planner 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests approval of a conditional use to allow secondary school (middle school 

and high school) uses on 22.994+/- acres consisting of both developed and undeveloped 

properties zoned Office Campus District (OCD).  

 

In 2021, the city approved a rezoning of other real property located at the northwest corner of 

New Albany-Condit Road and New Albany Road East to facilitate the development and 

construction of a new school campus for Cornerstone Academy.  

 

On February 7, 2022, the Planning Commission reviewed and recommended adoption to city 

council to add secondary school uses as a conditional use in the following zoning districts: Office 

(O), Office Campus District (OCD) and General Employment (GE). City council adopted these 

code changes on March 1, 2022 (O-3-2022).  

 

In March of 2022, the Cornerstone Academy received conditional use approval to operate their 

secondary school at a 7.283+/- acre site that contains a 50,461+/- sq. ft. commercial office 

building. This building was formerly known as the NACOT I building. The Cornerstone 

Academy leases this building from NACO. The use of the building has proven to be a great fit for 

the school. Cornerstone has determined they would like to remain on the site permanently. 

Therefore, rather than developing the site located at the NW corner of New Albany-Condit Road 

and New Albany Road East, Cornerstone Academy seeks to purchase the surrounding properties 

to expand its campus at the existing school location.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 22.994+/- acre site is located in the Franklin County portion of the New Albany Business 

Park. One portion of the site contains 8.76+/- acres and a 68,463+/- sq. ft. commercial office 

building. The second portion of the site is 13.19+/- acres of undeveloped property located at the 

west of and adjacent to the intersection of New Albany Road East and West Campus Road. The 

third portion of the site is 1.044+/- acres containing an existing paved parking area.  

 

 

 



23 1120 Cornerstone Conditional Use CU-105-20223  2 of 5 

III. EVALUATION 

The general standards for Conditional Uses are contained in Codified Ordinance Section 1115.03. 

The Planning Commission shall not approve a conditional use unless it shall in each specific case, 

make specific findings of fact directly based on the particular evidence presented to it, that 

support conclusions that such use at the proposed location meets all of the following 

requirements: 

 

(a) The proposed use will be harmonious with and in accordance with the general objectives, 

or with any specific objective or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

▪ The site is zoned Office Campus District (OCD). The applicant proposes to expand 

their secondary school campus.  

▪ By adding these types of uses in commercial zoning districts such as this site, it 

allows diversification within the business park, encourages links between education 

and workforce development and in this case adds commercial income tax base.  

▪ The existing school occupies a 50,461 sq foot building on 7.283 acres known as 

NACOT I. This conditional use allows an additional secondary school use within an 

existing 68,463+/- sq. ft. neighboring office building on a 7.283+/- acre 

commercially zoned property known as NACOT II.  

▪ The conditional use allows the development of the unimproved parcel to the east of 

the existing school for accessory uses in support of the schools. Immediate plans call 

for two athletic fields and concession stands to be located on that land, which is 

13.19+/- acres located at the southwest corner of New Albany Road East and West 

Campus Road. These fields and concession stands are located immediately next to a 

smaller lot (1.044+/- acres) that contains an existing parking, which would serve as 

athletic fields parking. 

▪ The previously approved secondary school building will continue to contain grades 

6-8th. This conditional use allows for a new secondary school building containing 

grades 9-12th. The applicant provides enrollment projection for the next three school 

years for both buildings: 

 

 
 

▪ The applicant states that there are approximately 75 employees for each building.  

▪ It does not appear that the proposed use alters the character of the surrounding area. 

The site is located on the western edge of New Albany and all surrounding land uses 

within the city are commercial. To the west, within Columbus, there are multi-family 

and single family attached residential properties. The property is zoned for office uses 

and contains a large office building that is currently vacant. 

▪ C.O. 1167.05(C)(2) states that 3 parking spaces are required for each classroom in the 

building or one parking space for every 5 seats in the main auditorium, whichever is 

greater. The applicant has indicated there will be no auditorium in the building. The 

applicant also indicated that there will be approximately 16 classrooms in the 

immediate future but that they plan to expand to 28 classrooms in the future. 

Therefore, 84 parking spaces are required to be provided. The applicant is exceeding 

this requirement as there are approximately 505 parking spaces on site. This is an 

ample amount of existing parking spaces available for use.  



23 1120 Cornerstone Conditional Use CU-105-20223  3 of 5 

▪ C.O. 1167.05(b)(1) states 20 parking spaces are required for each playfield, plus one 

for each six seats in stands. Therefore, the two fields require 40 parking spaces. The 

parking lot designated on the circulation plan as being for the athletic fields appears to 

provide approximately 62 parking spaces. It also appears as though overflow parking 

could be accommodated on the other two sites containing the school buildings as those 

parking lots are exponentially exceeding the parking requirements. City staff 

recommends that the applicant clarify their intent for the field parking at the time of 

the public hearing. Parking will also be addressed and must meet code requirements at 

the time of permitting for the athletic fields and concession stands (condition #2).  

 

(b) The proposed use will be harmonious with the existing or intended character of the 

general vicinity and that such use will not change the essential character of the same 

area. 

▪ The proposed use is harmonious with the existing and intended character for the 

general vicinity and will not change the essential character of the area as the use is 

located within an existing building. 

▪ The proposed use is appropriate due to its proximity to the State Route 161 

interchange, the New Albany Business Park and nearby residential uses where a 

school is typically located.  

 

(c) The use will not be hazardous to existing or future neighboring uses. 

▪ The proposed secondary school use will be permitted in an existing, vacant office 

building. There are no proposed changes to the building’s exterior and/or site.  

 

(d) The area will be adequately served by essential public facilities and services such as 

highways, streets, police, and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water 

and sewers, and schools; or that the persons or agencies responsible for the 

establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide adequately any such services. 

▪ Since this is an existing site/building, it is already being adequately served by 

essential public services.  

 

(e) The proposed use will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

▪ The proposed use will improve economic welfare in the city due to creation of jobs 

which generate income taxes in a building that is currently vacant and thus generating 

no income tax revenue.  

 

(f) The proposed use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and 

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general 

welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

▪ The applicant states that the proposed use does not involve any of the above uses as it 

operates a traditional school.  

 

(g) Vehicular approaches to the property shall be so designated as not to create interference 

with traffic on surrounding public streets or roads. 

▪ A site circulation plan was submitted as part of the application. The city traffic 

engineer’s comments are addressed below in a separate section of this report.  

 

III. ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the application and provided the following comments. 

These comments can also be found in a separate memo attached to this staff report. Staff 

recommends a condition of approval that the comments of the city engineer are 

addressed, subject to staff approval (condition #1). 
 

1. Requested information regarding enrollment (current and future), existing car and bus 

traffic, and split between bused students and students dropped off by car (current and 

future) were recently provided. From our initial review of that information, it is 

anticipated the on-site backups are unlikely to extend onto West Campus in the future.  



23 1120 Cornerstone Conditional Use CU-105-20223  4 of 5 

However, in the event this does occur there appears to be options for increasing on-site 

queuing and reducing the impact to West Campus. As a result, further traffic evaluation 

does not appear necessary.  

 

2. We will provide recommendations regarding signage modifications required on West 

Campus Road when detailed construction plans become available. 

 

3. Information was provided regarding traffic and parking associated with special events. 

The response was there is significant on-site parking capacity.  At this time, we do not 

anticipate any issues with special event parking. 

 

IV. SUMMARY 

The overall proposal is consistent with the code requirements for conditional uses for secondary 

schools. The proposed use is appropriate for the site based on the current zoning and its location 

within the New Albany Business Park. Educational uses, which are a type of institutional use, are 

not a specific future land use district in the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan. As such, these 

types of uses are intended to be integrated throughout the community which is why they were 

added as a conditional use within the Office (O), Office Campus District (OCD) and General 

Employment (GE) zoning districts by the Planning Commission and City Council.  

 

The Planning Commission approved a rezoning to allow the high school on a neighboring piece 

of undeveloped property located at the northwest corner of SR 605 and New Albany Road East. 

This application allows the same uses as the rezoning at the new site. This use will be harmonious 

with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity.   

 

There is an existing middle school at NACOT I. By allowing the high school at NACOT II, the 

NACOT buildings are interconnected with streets and private drives and share parking lots. By 

allowing Cornerstone to operate within both buildings, it will allow the area to act as a school 

campus. 

 

The NACOT buildings were designed and previously used as call centers. Call centers have a 

larger number of employees on each shirt than typical office uses. In order to accommodate for 

the large number of employees, there is a large parking lot on the site with multiple means of 

access and public streets to disperse traffic. This makes the site ideal for a high school where it is 

expected to have students and teachers driving and parking at the site.  

 

The site is zoned to allow, and has been occupied by, commercial office uses which typically 

generate a large number of daytime employees. The applicant submitted a site circulation exhibit 

which has been reviewed by the city traffic engineer.  

 

Additionally, there is an ample amount of existing parking space on the site that allows for 

additional queueing/stacking for drop off/pick up lanes.  

 

V. ACTION 

The Commission shall approve, approve with supplementary conditions, or disapprove the 

application as presented.  If the application is approved with supplementary conditions, the 

Planning Commission shall direct staff to issue a zoning permit listing the specific conditions 

listed by the Planning Commission for approval. 

 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate:  

 

 

 

 

 



23 1120 Cornerstone Conditional Use CU-105-20223  5 of 5 

Move to approve application CU-104-2023 with the following conditions: 

 

1. Comments of the city engineer are addressed, subject to staff approval. 

2. Parking to be addressed and must meet code requirements at the time of permitting for the 

athletic fields and concession stands. 

 

 

Approximate Site Location: 

Existing school/previously approved conditional use in NACOT I shown in yellow. Proposed 

sites shown in red, including NACOT II in red and blue. 

 

 
Source: Google Earth 

 

 



Ci 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

City of New Albany 
99 West  Main Street 
New Albany, Ohio 43054 

MEMO 

 

         401.60-149 
         November 8, 2023 
To:  Chelsea Nichols      
 Planner 
  
From:  Matt Ferris, P.E., P.S., Consulting City Engineer  Re: Cornerstone School 
By: Jay M. Herskowitz, P.E., BCEE           Conditional Use  

  

 
 
We have the following review comments regarding this application:  
 

1) Requested information regarding enrollment (current and future), existing car and bus 
traffic, and split between bused students and students dropped off by car (current and 
future) were recently provided.  From our initial review of that information, it is 
anticipated the on-site backups are unlikely to extend onto West Campus in the future.  
However, in the event this does occur there appears to be options for increasing on-site 
queuing and reducing the impact to West Campus. As a result, further traffic evaluation 
does not appear necessary.  

2) We will provide recommendations regarding signage modifications required on West 
Campus Road when detailed construction plans become available. 

3) Information was provided regarding traffic and parking associated with special events. 
The response was there is significant on-site parking capacity.  At this time, we do not 
anticipate any issues with special event parking. 

 
 
MEF/JH 
 
 
 
CC: Dave Samuelson, P.E., Traffic Engineer 
 
 





222-002055





Legal Description 

 

 

   222-004626



Parcel Number 222-004975 

 

 



Page 1 of 3 
 

Conditional Use Statement 

CORNERSTONE ACADEMY 

October 31, 2023 

The applicant, Cornerstone Academy Community School (“Cornerstone”), is in contract 

to purchase three parcels of real property located in the City of New Albany:  (a) 8.76+/- acres 

containing an existing commercial building with 68,463+/- square of gross floor area, located at 

6005 NACOT Place and known as Franklin County Auditor Parcel Number 222-004626 (the 

“Existing Building Site”), (b) 13.19+/- acres of undeveloped real property known as Franklin 

County Auditor Parcel Number 222-002055, located to the west of and adjacent to the 

intersection of New Albany Road East and West Campus Road (the “Undeveloped Site”), and 

(c) 1.044+/- acres containing an existing paved parking area and known as Franklin County 

Auditor Parcel Number 222-004975 (the “Parking Lot Site”, and collectively with the Existing 

Building Site and the Undeveloped Site, the “Properties”).  The Properties are zoned in the OCD, 

Office Campus District classification.  This request is for a conditional use to be approved for the 

Properties to allow for the operation of secondary schools and related uses.   

In 2021, the City approved a rezoning of other real property that is now owned by 

Cornerstone and is located to the northwest of the intersection of New Albany-Condit Road and 

New Albany Road East in close proximity to the Properties.  The rezoning was to facilitate the 

development and construction of a new school campus for Cornerstone Academy, which is a 

tuition-free public charter school.  After that rezoning was approved, Cornerstone entered into a 

lease with the owner of an existing building located at the southwest corner of West Campus 

Road and Nacot Place, formerly known as NACOT I.  The intent was to provide a temporary 

location for Cornerstone High School until such time as the new campus could be developed.  

However, the use of the building was a great fit for the school, and Cornerstone has now 

determined that it would like to remain on that site permanently.  It also seeks to purchase the 

Properties to expand its campus and, upon receipt of this conditional use approval, would 

exchange its former campus site with The New Albany Company, who will convey the 

Undeveloped Site to Cornerstone.  NACO is pursuing a rezoning of Cornerstone’s former 

campus site to a Limited General Employment, L-GE zoning classification as part of a separate 

application.   

The acquisition of the Existing Building Site will allow for Cornerstone High School to 

move into the existing building located thereon, and the building at the southwest corner of West 

Campus Road and Nacot Place will then become home to a middle school for grades six through 

eight.   The conditional use for a secondary school on the Existing Building Site will 

accommodate the high school, while the existing approved conditional use will accommodate the 

middle school.  Moreover, the conditional use being requested for the Unimproved Parcel and 

the Parking Lot Parcel is intended to provide space for uses which are accessory to and in 

support of the schools.  Immediate plans call for athletic fields and concession stands to be 

located on that land near an existing small parking lot. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

The number of employees for each building is a combined estimate of 75.  Projected 

enrollment for the high school and middle school two buildings are as follows: 

 

Enrollment Projections 

 
2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 

6-8th grade 325 350 400 

9-12th grade 250 300 325 

 

Traffic flow would be handled through two north entrances to the campus. As seen on the 

attached map, each of these entrances/exits has a prescribed purpose. This traffic flow would be 

an extension of what is already in place and working efficiently at the existing building.  

The athletic field rough sketch is shown on an accompanying drawing. It is illustrative in 

nature, and final locations for the fields will be subject to final programming and engineering.  

The drawing shows soccer fields and a small concession stand that would be mainly for catered 

concessions if water is not available to it.  

Section 1115.03 of the Codified Ordinances provides that the Planning Commission is 

to approve a conditional use if it meets all of the following requirements: 

(a) The proposed use will be harmonious with and in accordance with the 

general objectives, or with any specific objective or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

The fact that secondary schools are conditional uses in the OCD zoning district 

recognizes the direct and complementary relationship between employment-generating uses 

and educational uses.  In addition, the Properties are adjacent to the existing high school on 

the NACOT I site and are a short distance from the original site for the Cornerstone school 

campus, which was rezoned by the City in 2021.  The approved conditional use for secondary 

schools for the existing high school site and the approval of the rezoning of the original 

campus site recognize that secondary school uses are appropriate in the area.  

 

(b) The proposed use will be harmonious with the existing or intended 

character of the general vicinity and that such use will not change the essential character 

of the same area. 

 

The proposed school use on the Improved Site will operate from an existing building 

that is unoccupied.  The presence of athletic fields on the Undeveloped Site will constitute a 

minor change in the intensity of use there, changing it from an unused green space right now to 

a largely green area that will be intermittently used for school athletic activities.  Ample 

parking exists on the Properties or adjacent and commonly controlled real property to serve the 

proposed use.  Improvements already exist to accommodate traffic for office uses. An 

additional secondary school will bring similar impacts to morning peak traffic volume as office 



Page 3 of 3 
 

uses, while mostly eliminating afternoon peak impacts.  Many of the existing developments 

and currently operating uses in the area are commercial in nature, typified by large buildings 

with sizable parking lots.  Multi-family residential is located nearby.  School uses are very 

often located near to residential uses, so the proposed use is complementary to the residential 

communities to the west in the City of Columbus.   

 

(c) The use will not be hazardous to existing or future neighboring uses. 

 

Given that the existing building and related improvements on the property will remain, 

there will be no changes to the property which will negatively impact existing or neighboring 

uses.  In fact, the impact on those uses will be positive in that it will serve to lessen P.M. peak 

traffic impacts when compared to other permitted uses that apply to the site.   Any impacts 

from this use will not differ substantially from those which would arise from other permitted 

uses of the site.  

  

(d) The area will be adequately served by essential public facilities and 

services such as highways, streets, police, and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse 

disposal, water and sewers, and schools; or that the persons or agencies responsible for 

the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide adequately any such 

services. 

 

The City has already made significant investments in the construction of a robust public 

street system which serves the area in which this property is located.  Water and sanitary sewer 

infrastructure already serve the Properties.  Police and fire protection will not be impacted any 

more significantly than other permitted uses. 

 

(e) The proposed use will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the 

community. 

 

The proposed conditional use will bring economic benefit to the community by 

bringing new teaching, administrative, and other supporting jobs to a building that is vacant.   

 

(f) The proposed use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, 

equipment and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, 

or the general welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, 

glare or odors. 

 

The conditional use will not involve any such conditions.  It will operate as a school in 

a customary fashion with typical impacts to the community. 

(g) Vehicular approaches to the property shall be so designated as not to 

create interference with traffic on surrounding public streets or roads. 

 

Vehicular approaches to the property are already in existence and will not be modified 

with this use. 



0 W
. C

am
pus R

d.

7525 W
. C

am
pus R

d.

6005 N
acot Place

mreri
Line





100% Imagery date: 9/16/22 Camera: 732 m  40°06'16"N 82°49'18"W 304 m70 m

You are currently running an experimental version of Earth. Learn more Send feedback

Brian Carlton
Bus Lane:  
Car Lane: 
Athletic Field Layout:
Fence:  

Brian Carlton




Brian Carlton
  

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton
HS Bus 
Drop/PickUp

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton
MS Bus 
Drop/PickUp

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton
Cornerstone Middle School

Brian Carlton
Cornerstone High School

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton
HS Car 
Drop/PickUp

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton
MS Car
Drop/Pick Up

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton
Athletic 
Fields 
Parking

Brian Carlton
Field 1

Brian Carlton
Field 2

Brian Carlton
Concession Stand

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton

Brian Carlton
MS Staff Parking

Brian Carlton
HS Staff Parking

Brian Carlton
HS StudentParking





APPLICANT: 

 
Cornerstone Academy Community 

School 

6015 Walnut Street 

Westerville, OH 43081 

 

 

PROPERTY OWNER(S): 

NACOT II LLC 

1533 Lake Shore Drive 

Columbus, OH 43204 

The New Albany Company LLC 

8000 Walton Parkway, Suite 120 

New Albany, OH 43054 

 

ATTORNEY: 

Aaron L. Underhill 

Underhill & Hodge LLC 

8000 Walton Parkway, Suite 260 

New Albany, Ohio 43054 

 

SURROUNDING PROPERTY 

OWNERS: 

LC Farms at New Albany Park LLC 

230 West Street, Suite 200 

Columbus, OH 43215 

Grant Junge 

5795 Bridgehampton Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Brian Stark 

5797 Bridgehampton Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Courtney Cormican 

5799 Bridgehampton Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Kevin David Burns 

5801 Bridgehampton Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Brent Andrews 

5803 Bridgehampton Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Victoria Allen 

7291 Billy Goat Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Admassu Amare 

7293 Billy Goat Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Amanda Spears 

7295 Billy Goat Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Lukas Shininger 

7297 Billy Goat Drive 

Unit 65-7297 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Gregory Cook 

7299 Billy Goat Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Samuel Geoffrey Coulter 

7301 Billy Goat Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

 

Lisa Ohler 

7303 Billy Goat Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Leslie Najjar 

7280 Billy Goat Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

AMD Realty Series LLC 

5003 Keefer Lane 

Grove City, OH 43123 

Stephen Zimmerman and Jean Jennifer 

Roach 

7302 Billy Goat Drive 

New Albany, OH 43054 

New Albany Portfolio II LLC 

101 W. Big Beaver Road 

Troy, MI 48084 

Discover Properties LLC 

2500 Lake Cook Road 

Riverwoods, IL 60015 

David Morris and Michael Bower 

7306 Billy Goat Dr. 

New Albany, OH 43054 

Bryan Cheuvront 

5215 Owl Creek Drive 

Westerville, OH 43081 



Brei Miller 

7288 Billy Goat Dr. 

New Albany, OH 43054 

NACOT I LLC 

1533 Lake Shore Drive 

Columbus, OH 43204 

New Albany Portfolio LLC 

101 W. Big Beaver Road 

Troy, MI 48084 

Allison Grossett 

5844 Bunton Hush Lane 

New Albany, OH 43054 

 

Michael Filkins 

7314 Billy Goat Dr. 

New Albany, OH 43054 

 

Momentum Realty LLC 

6660 N. High Street, Suite 3K 

Worthington, OH 43085 

ASC New Albany Surgical Properties 

LLC 

6520 W. Campus Oval 

New Albany, OH 43054 

 

New Albany Business Park LLC 

2860 Fisher Road 

Columbus, OH 43204 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



PC 23 1120 Woodhaven Model Home Conditional Use CU-108-2023 1 of 4   

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

November 20, 2023 Meeting 

  

 

WOODHAVEN SUBDIVISION 

LOT 52 MODEL HOME CONDITIONAL USE  

 

 

LOCATION:  7275 Steeple Chase Lane North (PID: 222-005343) 

APPLICANT:   Bobb Webb Group c/o Kirk Denyes 

REQUEST: Conditional Use 

ZONING:   Woodhaven I-PUD Zoning District 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 

APPLICATION: CU-108-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received October 20, 2023 and November 1, 2023.   

Staff report completed by Chelsea Nichols, Planner.  

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests conditional use approval for a residential model home to be located on 

lot 52 within the Woodhaven subdivision. The model is for the age-restricted home type which 

is permitted to be developed in the subdivision. The applicant requests the conditional use to be 

approved for a period of two years.  

 

The Planning Commission reviewed the zoning change and preliminary development plan for 

the property on June 7, 2021 (ZC-15-2021) and the zoning change was adopted by city council 

on July 7, 2021 (O-22-2021). The Planning Commission approved the final development plan 

for the subdivision on September 20, 2021 (FDP-83-201). 

 

There is an additional conditional use application for a traditional single-family model home on 

the November 20th Planning Commission meeting agenda which is evaluated under a separate 

staff report CU-109-2023. 

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The Woodhaven subdivision is located at the southwest corner of Bevelhymer Road and Walnut 

Street. The site is located immediately east of the Upper Clarenton subdivision, generally south 

the Rocky Fork Metro Park and Bevelhymer Park. All of the public streets have been installed in 

the subdivision and there are several homes actively under construction.  

 

III. EVALUATION 

General Standards for Conditional Uses (C.O. 1115.03)  

The Planning Commission shall not approve a conditional use unless it shall in each specific case, 

make specific findings of fact directly based on the particular evidence presented to it, that 

support conclusions that such use at the proposed location shall meet all of the following 

requirements: 

(a) The proposed use will be harmonious with and in accordance with the general objectives, 

or with any specific objective or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance. 

(b) The proposed use will be harmonious with the existing or intended character of the 

general vicinity and that such use will not change the essential character of the same 

area. 



PC 23 1120 Woodhaven Model Home Conditional Use CU-108-2023 2 of 4   

(c) The use will not be hazardous to existing or future neighboring uses. 

(d) The area will be adequately served by essential public facilities and services such as 

highways, streets, police, and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water 

and sewers, and schools; or that the persons or agencies responsible for the 

establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide adequately any such services. 

(e) The proposed use will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

(f) The proposed use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and 

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general 

welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

(g) Vehicular approaches to the property shall be so designated as not to create interference 

with traffic on surrounding public streets or roads. 

 

Residential model homes. Per Code, these are newly constructed homes or temporary structures 

placed in a newly constructed subdivision and used by a homebuilder or developer to display 

home styles and lot availability in a subdivision to promote the sale of new housing units. The 

model home may be staffed and furnished. (C.O. 1165.11)   

 

The criteria and the applicability of this application are detailed below (Section 1165.11(a)): 

1.  Appropriate location within the community. 

The proposed model home is located on lot 52 in the subdivision, addressed off of 

Steeple Chase Lane North. The model home is located close to the subdivision entrance 

when entering from Bevelhymer Road using Woodhaven Drive. The proposed location 

appears to be appropriate as it is easily accessible and identifiable when entering the 

subdivision. Additionally, the home is accessible by sidewalks and leisure trail adjacent 

to the site.  

 

2.  It is integrated in the existing community with customary exterior residential lighting. 

The home utilizes coach lighting fixtures consistent with the style and architectural 

features present on the other homes planned within the subdivision. The building permit 

for the home was approved by staff and constructed with a double wide garage door. Per 

Woodhaven zoning text section XI(A)(3), front loaded garages are required to use single 

bay doors with a minimum width of 9 feet and a maximum width of 10 feet. The 

applicant has been made aware of this requirement and its current condition. The city 

staff recommends a condition of approval that the model home is allowed to be operated 

within the building but the garage must be corrected to meet code requirements, or 

request and receive approval for a variance before it is converted and sold for private use 

(condition #3).   

3.  The use is approved with limited duration. 

The applicant states that they would like to utilize the model home until all lots within the 

community have been sold or for a period of time no less than 2 years. Historically, the 

Planning Commission has approved conditional uses for other model homes within the 

community for 1-3 years depending on the size of the subdivision. Since this model is 

utilized for 22 age restricted lots in the subdivision, staff recommends the model home 

approval be permitted for two (2) years and that any extension in time is subject to review 

and approval by the Planning Commission (condition #1).  

 

4.  One sign is permitted.  

The applicant proposes to install one ground sign which is evaluated in the staff report 

below.  

 

5. Shall not be used as a general real estate brokerage office. 

The applicant states that the model home will not be used as a general real estate 

brokerage office.  

 



PC 23 1120 Woodhaven Model Home Conditional Use CU-108-2023 3 of 4   

The Planning Commission is also to consider the following (1165.11 (b)): 

1.  Hours of operation 

The model home will operate Thursday through Monday, from 12:00pm to 5:00pm 

which is generally consistent with other model homes that have been approved by the 

Planning Commission.   

 

2.  Number of employees and maximum number of employees at the site at one time. 

The applicant states that there will be one employee for both of the proposed model 

homes in the subdivision.  

 

3.  Provisions for parking for employees and customers 

The applicant states that staff and customers will park on the driveway and use on street 

parking which is permitted in the subdivision.  

 

4.  Size, lighting, content and location of signage 

C.O. 1169.10(e) of the city sign code permits one (1) sign not to exceed 6 square feet in 

size and no taller than 4 feet. Model home signs are not permitted to be illuminated and 

must be setback 10 feet from the adjacent street right-of-way. The applicant proposes to 

install a model home sign with the following dimensions. Staff recommends a condition 

of approval that the sign be revised to meet all code requirements found in C.O. 

1169.10(e) (condition #2).  

a) Size: 12 sq. ft. [does not meet code. City code allows a maximum area of 6 sq. 

ft]. 

b) Height: 4.5 feet [does not meet code. City code allows a maximum height of 4 

feet]. 

c)  Location: The location of the sign is not indicated on the site plan. The sign is 

required to be setback 10 feet from the street right-of-way per C.O. 1169.10(e). 

d) Lighting: none proposed [meets code].  

 

5.  Landscaping and screening 

The applicant installed landscaping in landscape beds in front of and behind the home. In 

addition, evergreen trees and a deciduous tree has been installed along the rear property 

line as well as screening around the mechanical units located on the side of the home. All 

of the landscaping is complimentary and generally consistent with other residential 

homes in New Albany. According to the approved building permit plans, 3 street trees are 

to be installed within the street yard in front of the home.  

 

V. SUMMARY 

Basis for Approval: 

If the recommended conditions of approval are met, the proposed model home is consistent 

with code requirements. Additionally, the operational aspects of the proposed model home are 

consistent with other model homes that have been approved to operate in New Albany.  

 

VI. MOTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application meets sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate:   

 

Move to approve conditional use application CU-108-2023, subject to the following conditions:  

1. The model home is permitted to operate for a period of two (2) years and any extension 

in time is subject to review and approval by the Planning Commission.  

2. The model home sign must be revised to meet all code requirements found C.O. 

1169.10(e).  

3. The model home is allowed to be operated within the building but the garage must be 

corrected to meet code requirements, or request and receive approval for a variance 

before it is converted and sold for private use. 

 



PC 23 1120 Woodhaven Model Home Conditional Use CU-108-2023 4 of 4   

 

 

 

 

Approximate Site Location: 
 

 
Source: NearMap 





City of New Albany 

Planning Commission 

99 West Main Street 

PO Box 188 

New Albany, OH 43054 

RE: Application for Conditional Use for a Model Home to be located on lot 52 and associated Street parking to be 

located on  Woodhaven Community. 

Below is the requested documentation for our conditional use application for the model home to be located at the 

Woodhaven Community

Legal Description: See Attached

Description of existing use: New Single-Family Residence 

Present zoning district: 1-PUD 

Description of proposed conditional use: 

The model home/sales center WITHOUT Garage Converted to Office

A plan of the proposed site for the conditional use showing the location of all buildings, parking and 

loading area, traffic circulation, open spaces, landscaping, refuse, and service areas, utilities, signs, 

yards, and such other information as the Commission may require to determine if the proposed 

conditional meets the intent and requirements of this Ordinance: 

Please see Attached House Plans, Plot Plan & Landscape Plan

A narrative statement evaluating the effects on adjoining property; the effect of such elements as 

noise, glare, odor, light, fumes, and vibration on adjoining property; a discussion of the general 

compatibility with adjacent and other properties in the district. 

No Occupied Homes Currently Exist in the Community. Homes would not cause any Noise, Glare, 

Fumes Vibrations, Etc.



The names and addresses of all property owners within 200 feet, contiguous to, and directly across the 

street from the property, as appearing on the Franklin County's Auditor's current tax list. The applicant 

shall also provide the addresses of all property within the above reference boundaries: 

Please see attached llustration indicating the 200' buffer to adjoining property .  All property 

within this buffer area is owned by the Bob Webb Woodhaven LLC.  7662 North Central Drive 

Lewis Center, Ohio 43035

Such other information regarding the property, proposed use, or surrounding area as may be pertinent 

to the deliberations of the Planning Commission. 

The model home will be visible and easily accessible as you enter the community on 

Woodhaven Drive. The model home will integrate within the residential character of the 

neighborhood. The home will have coach lights.

It is our intention to staff the sales office with a sales representatives. The hours of operation 

will be from Noon to 5 PM Thursday  thru Monday The sales center shall not be used as a 

general real estate brokerage office where the sale of properties not owned or previously 

owned wholly or in art by the applicant occurs. 

Parking spaces for access to the sales model will be available on Street Additional Public 

Sidewalks Have Been installed to Serve Those Spots

Bob Webb Homes would like to request that the Planning Commission approve the use of this home as a sales 

model until which time that all lots within the community have been sold or for a period of time deemed 

appropriate by the Planning Commission not to be less than two years. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

<Kirk E. Denyes 

Director of Design & 

Development Bob Webb Homes



Chapter 1165.11 - MODEL HOME STANDARDS 

(a) When making its decision to approve, disapprove or approve with conditions an application for a 
residential model home, the Planning Commission shall consider that the model home: 

(1) Is appropriately located within the community and sited so that it is easily accessible without 
creating a nuisance or hazard to nearby properties. 

Lot 52 is immediately at the End of Woodhaven Dr., The Eastern access to the Development 
off of Bevelheymer. Lot 28 is immediately at the End of Haven Green Lane., The Northern access 
to the Development off of Walnut. 

(2) Is integrated into the residential character of the neighborhood with external lighting in 
conformity with customary residential lighting. 

The Models will Have Coach lights on the Garages, as will the Homes built in the Development. 
No additional lighting is Proposed for the Models. 

(3) Is approved with a limited duration which shall be determined by the Planning Commission 
after consultation with the applicant. Extensions of time may be granted by the Planning 
Commission, but decisions must be based on the same criteria as outlined in this section. 

Request for Model Permit is 24 Months Each. 

(4) Is identified by no more than one sign which shall be in compliance with regulations governing 
signage. 

One Sign is Proposed at Each Model. Drawing attached. 

(5) Shall not be used as a general real estate brokerage office where the sale of properties not 
owned or previously owned wholly or in part by the applicant occurs. 

Models Will be Used for Sales of Bob Webb Homes, Exclusively. No resale Activity will be 
performed at either Location. 

(b) The Planning Commission shall also consider and may set conditions on the following as part of its 
decision to allow a residential model home: 

(1) Hours of operation. 

12-5 PM Thursday Thru Monday 

(2) Number and types of employees; and maximum number of employees to be on the site at any 
one time. 

Model to be staffed with One (1) Bob webb Employee for the Purpose of Selling Homes in this 
Community.  

(3) Provisions for parking for employees and customers. 

Staff & Customers will park on the Driveways & on street Parking. Additional Sidewalks Have 
been installed to aid in On street Parking, As requested by Staff. Exhibits Submitted 



 

(4) Size, lighting, content and location of signage (no internally lighted signage shall be 
permitted). 

Model sign will be unlight. Sign Graphics & Locations Attached. 

(5) Landscaping and screening. 

Landscape Plans Attached. 

(6) The use of temporary sales offices (i.e., manufactured homes, mobile homes or trailers) on 
the site of a newly constructed subdivision shall be discouraged. 

Model requests Are for Single Family Home Structures. No Trailers, Mobile Homes are Proposed 

(c) In addition to the above-listed criteria for model homes, permission to occupy a temporary sales office 
for the purpose of home and lot sales within a newly constructed subdivision shall be granted only if the 
following conditions are met: 

(1) Such facility is located on a main arterial roadway or highway. 

Model Homes are Located with Direct Access to Bevelheymer Road & Walnut. 

(2) Such facility is substantially screened by the use of landscaping and/or mounding. 

Each Home is Extensively Landscaped , Plans Attached. Also Screened from Main Arteries With 
Green Space & Additional Landscaping 

(3) Such facility shall not create a nuisance to surrounding properties. 

Models are proposed with Limited Hours as to not Bring excessive traffic to the Neighborhood. 
Model will not produce excessive noise or Any noxious Fumes. 

(4) Such other conditions as the Planning Commission deems appropriate. 

(5) Sales offices in trailers or mobile homes are permitted for a duration of twelve (12) months. 
Users of such facilities may apply to the Planning Commission for an extension of an additional 
twelve (12) months. 

Trailer or Mobile Office are NOT Proposed. 

 







LANDMARK SURVEY GROUP, INCORPORATED











SCALE 1" = 10'

NORTH

MOONGLOW SWEETBAY MAGNOLIA

QUICKFIRE HYDRANGEA

4 - LITTLE LIME PRIME HYDRANGEA

4 - GOLDMOUND SPIREA

5 - GREEN VELVET BOXWOOD

3 - JAPANESE GARDEN JUNIPERS

4 - VARIGATED LIRIOPE

2 - FAIRVIEW YEW

A/C

HETZI COLUMNAR JUNIPER

ANNUAL COLOR

4 - GREEN GIANT ARBORVITAE

RED MAPLE

WEEPING JAPANESE MAPLE

3 - MAIDEN GRASS

3 - CONEFLOWER

3 - JAPANESE GARDEN JUNIPER

3 - QUICKFIRE HYDRANGEA

BEYOND MIDNIGHT BLUE BEARD

DRIFT ROSE

12'

17'

TH
IS

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
EX

C
LU

SI
VE

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 

O
AK

LA
N

D
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S 

AN
D

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
ED

, T
R

AN
SF

ER
R

ED
, O

R
 O

TH
ER

W
IS

E 
U

SE
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
EI

R
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N

D
es

ig
n

As
so

ci
at

es

O
ak

la
nd

OF

SCALE

JOB NO.

SHEET

DRAWN

DATE

CHECKED

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

e

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t

11
56

 O
ak

la
nd

 P
ar

k 
Av

en
ue

si
te

 p
la

nn
in

g

(6
14

) 2
68

-3
83

4
C

ol
um

bu
s,

 O
hi

o 
43

22
4

REVISIONS BY

GARY HUSTON

AUGUST 18, 2023

AS SHOWN

1 1

L-1

FOUNDATION PLANTINGS TO BE RAISED 6" FROM GRADE.

ALL UTILITIES TO BE SCREENED WITH EVERGREEN SHRUBS
OR A MIX OF EVERGREEN AND DECIDUOUS SHRUBS

ALL LAWN AREAS TO BE SOD.

BO
B 

W
EB

B 
- 

 S
PE

C
72

75
 S

TE
EP

LE
 C

H
A

SE
 L

A
N

E 
N

O
RT

H
 -

 L
O

T 
52

N
EW

 A
LB

A
N

Y,
 O

H
IO



Side View

3"

3’-0"

12"

Concrete
Foundation

Concrete
Foundation

Steel
Tube

3’-0"

12"

Steel
Tube

3'-0"

4'-6"
4'-0"

4'-5"

PMS 1815

614-530-4926

Woodhaven

Sales Center

Client: 

Project Name: 

Drawing Date: 10-17-23

Drawing #: 23-603
Client Signature:                                     Date:

APPROVAL:
Copy, colors, size, quantity

SP:  KR D: BW

This sign is intended to be 
installed in accordance of article 
600 of the National Electric Code 
and or other applicable local 

codes. This includes proper grounding and 
bonding of the sign.

2757 Scioto Parkway, Columbus, OH 43221

614.276.1181 • morrisonsigns.com

This design is the property of Morrison Sign Company, Inc and remains our property until sign is purchased. Design may be purchased for a sum of Two Hundred and Fifty dollars ($250.00) and is protected by U.S. copyright law. Any attempt to reproduce this design or use by others for any purpose, without written consent is subject to prosecution to the fullest extent allowed by law.

Bob Webb | Woodhaven

Sales Center Sign

Vinyl graphics on a 3’x4’ aluminum panel
Panel is mounted to custom built aluminum frame

DOUBLE FACE



PC 23 1120 Woodhaven Model Home Conditional Use CU-109-2023 1 of 4   

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

November 20, 2023 Meeting 

  

 

WOODHAVEN SUBDIVISION 

LOT 28 MODEL HOME CONDITIONAL USE  

 

 

LOCATION:  7275 Steeple Chase Lane North (PID: 222-005343) 

APPLICANT:   Bobb Webb Group c/o Kirk Denyes 

REQUEST: Conditional Use 

ZONING:   Woodhaven I-PUD Zoning District 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 

APPLICATION: CU-108-2023 

 

Review based on: Application materials received October 20 and November 1, 2023.   

Staff report completed by Chelsea Nichols, Planner.  

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests conditional use approval for a residential model home to be located on 

lot 28 within the Woodhaven subdivision. The model is for the traditional single-family home 

type which is permitted to be developed in the subdivision. The applicant requests the 

conditional use to be approved for a period of two years.  

 

The Planning Commission reviewed the zoning change and preliminary development plan for 

the property on June 7, 2021 (ZC-15-2021) and the zoning change was adopted by city council 

on July 7, 2021 (O-22-2021). The Planning Commission approved the final development plan 

for the subdivision on September 20, 2021 (FDP-83-201). 

 

There is an additional conditional use application for an age-restricted model home on the 

November 20th Planning Commission meeting agenda which is evaluated under a separate staff 

report CU-109-2023. 

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The Woodhaven subdivision is located at the southwest corner of Bevelhymer Road and Walnut 

Street. The site is located immediately east of the Upper Clarenton subdivision, generally south 

the Rocky Fork Metro Park and Bevelhymer Park. All of the public streets have been installed in 

the subdivision and there are several homes actively under construction.  

 

III. EVALUATION 

General Standards for Conditional Uses (C.O. 1115.03)  

The Planning Commission shall not approve a conditional use unless it shall in each specific case, 

make specific findings of fact directly based on the particular evidence presented to it, that 

support conclusions that such use at the proposed location shall meet all of the following 

requirements: 

(a) The proposed use will be harmonious with and in accordance with the general objectives, 

or with any specific objective or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance. 

(b) The proposed use will be harmonious with the existing or intended character of the 

general vicinity and that such use will not change the essential character of the same 

area. 



PC 23 1120 Woodhaven Model Home Conditional Use CU-109-2023 2 of 4   

(c) The use will not be hazardous to existing or future neighboring uses. 

(d) The area will be adequately served by essential public facilities and services such as 

highways, streets, police, and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water 

and sewers, and schools; or that the persons or agencies responsible for the 

establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide adequately any such services. 

(e) The proposed use will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

(f) The proposed use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and 

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general 

welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

(g) Vehicular approaches to the property shall be so designated as not to create interference 

with traffic on surrounding public streets or roads. 

 

Residential model homes. Per Code, these are newly constructed homes or temporary structures 

placed in a newly constructed subdivision and used by a homebuilder or developer to display 

home styles and lot availability in a subdivision to promote the sale of new housing units. The 

model home may be staffed and furnished. (C.O. 1165.11)   

 

The criteria and the applicability of this application are detailed below (Section 1165.11(a)): 

1.  Appropriate location within the community. 

The proposed model home is located on lot 28 in the subdivision, addressed of Haven 

Green. The model home is located close to the subdivision entrance when entering from 

Walnut Street. The proposed location appears to be appropriate as it is easily accessible 

and identifiable when entering the subdivision. Additionally, the home is accessible by 

sidewalks and leisure trail adjacent to the site.  

 

2.  It is integrated in the existing community with customary exterior residential lighting. 

The home utilizes coach lighting fixtures consistent with the style and architectural 

features present on the other homes planned within the subdivision.  

 

3.  The use is approved with limited duration. 

The applicant states that they would like to utilize the model home until all lots within the 

community have been sold or for a period of time no less than 2 years. Historically, the 

Planning Commission has approved conditional uses for other model homes within the 

community for 1-3 years depending on the size of the subdivision. Since this model is 

utilized for 38 traditional single family lots in the subdivision, staff recommends the 

model home approval be permitted for two (2) years and that any extension in time is 

subject to review and approval by the Planning Commission (condition #1).  

 

4.  One sign is permitted.  

The applicant proposes to install one ground sign which is evaluated in the staff report 

below.  

 

5. Shall not be used as a general real estate brokerage office. 

The applicant states that the model home will not be used as a general real estate 

brokerage office.  

 

The Planning Commission is also to consider the following (1165.11 (b)): 

1.  Hours of operation 

The model home will operate Thursday through Monday, from 12:00pm to 5:00pm 

which is generally consistent with other model homes that have been approved by the 

Planning Commission.   

 

2.  Number of employees and maximum number of employees at the site at one time. 



PC 23 1120 Woodhaven Model Home Conditional Use CU-109-2023 3 of 4   

The applicant states that there will be one employee for both of the proposed model 

homes in the subdivision.  

 

3.  Provisions for parking for employees and customers 

The applicant states that staff and customers will park on the driveway and use on street 

parking which is permitted in the subdivision.  

 

4.  Size, lighting, content and location of signage 

C.O. 1169.10(e) of the city sign code permits one (1) sign not to exceed 6 square feet in 

size and no taller than 4 feet. Model home signs are not permitted to be illuminated and 

must be setback 10 feet from the adjacent street right-of-way. The applicant proposes to 

install a model home sign with the following dimensions. Staff recommends a condition 

of approval that the sign be revised to meet all code requirements found in C.O. 

1169.10(e) (condition #2).  

a) Size: 12 sq. ft. [does not meet code. City code allows a maximum area of 6 sq. 

ft]. 

b) Height: 4.5 feet [does not meet code. City code allows a maximum height of 4 

feet]. 

c)  Location: The location of the sign is not indicated on the site plan. The sign is 

required to be setback 10 feet from the street right-of-way per C.O. 1169.10(e). 

d) Lighting: none proposed [meets code].  

 

5.  Landscaping and screening 

The applicant installed landscaping in landscape beds in front of and behind the home. In 

addition, evergreen trees and a deciduous tree has been installed along the rear property 

line as well as screening around the mechanical units located on the side of the home. All 

of the landscaping is complimentary and generally consistent with other residential 

homes in New Albany. According to the approved building permit plans, 7 street trees are 

to be installed within the street yards in front of the home.  

 

V. SUMMARY 

Basis for Approval: 

If the recommended conditions of approval are met, the proposed model home is consistent 

with code requirements. Additionally, the operational aspects of the proposed model home are 

consistent with other model homes that have been approved to operate in New Albany.  

 

VI. MOTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application meets sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate:   

 

Move to approve conditional use application CU-108-2023, subject to the following conditions:  

1. The model home is permitted to operate for a period of two (2) years and any extension 

in time is subject to review and approval by the Planning Commission.  

2. The model home sign must be revised to meet all code requirements found C.O. 

1169.10(e).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PC 23 1120 Woodhaven Model Home Conditional Use CU-109-2023 4 of 4   

Approximate Site Location: 
 

 
Source: NearMap 





LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

Being Lot 28 of Woodhaven Subdivision, situated in the State of 

Ohio, County of Franklin, City of New Albany, Half Section 17, 

Section 9, Quarter Township 1, Township 2, Range 16. United 

States Military Lands.  As Recorded in Official Record, 

04/28/2023 at the Recorder’s Office, Franklin County, Instrument 

# 202304280040996. PB 132/Page 315 



City of New Albany 

Planning Commission 

99 West Main Street 

PO Box 188 

New Albany, OH 43054 

RE: Application for Conditional Use for a Model Home to be located on lot 28 and associated Street parking to be 

located on  Woodhaven Community. 

Below is the requested documentation for our conditional use application for the model home to be located at the 

Woodhaven Community

Legal Description: See Attached

Description of existing use: New Single-Family Residence 

Present zoning district: 1-PUD 

Description of proposed conditional use: 

The model home/sales center WITHOUT Garage Converted to Office

A plan of the proposed site for the conditional use showing the location of all buildings, parking and 

loading area, traffic circulation, open spaces, landscaping, refuse, and service areas, utilities, signs, 

yards, and such other information as the Commission may require to determine if the proposed 

conditional meets the intent and requirements of this Ordinance: 

Please see Attached House Plans, Plot Plan & Landscape Plan

A narrative statement evaluating the effects on adjoining property; the effect of such elements as 

noise, glare, odor, light, fumes, and vibration on adjoining property; a discussion of the general 

compatibility with adjacent and other properties in the district. 

No Occupied Homes Currently Exist in the Community. Homes would not cause any Noise, Glare, 

Fumes Vibrations, Etc.



The names and addresses of all property owners within 200 feet, contiguous to, and directly across the 

street from the property, as appearing on the Franklin County's Auditor's current tax list. The applicant 

shall also provide the addresses of all property within the above reference boundaries: 

Please see attached llustration indicating the 200' buffer to adjoining property .  All property 

within this buffer area is owned by the Bob Webb Woodhaven LLC.  7662 North Central Drive 

Lewis Center, Ohio 43035

Such other information regarding the property, proposed use, or surrounding area as may be pertinent 

to the deliberations of the Planning Commission. 

The model home will be visible and easily accessible as you enter the community on Haven 

Green Lane. The model home will integrate within the residential character of the 

neighborhood. The home will have coach lights.

It is our intention to staff the sales office with a sales representatives. The hours of operation 

will be from Noon to 5 PM Thursday thru Monday The sales center shall not be used as a 

general real estate brokerage office where the sale of properties not owned or previously 

owned wholly or in art by the applicant occurs. 

Parking spaces for access to the sales model will be available on Street Additional Public 

Sidewalks Have Been installed to Serve Those Spots

Bob Webb Homes would like to request that the Planning Commission approve the use of this home as a sales 

model until which time that all lots within the community have been sold or for a period of time deemed 

appropriate by the Planning Commission not to be less than two years. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

<Kirk E. Denyes 

Director of Design & 

Development Bob Webb Homes



Chapter 1165.11 - MODEL HOME STANDARDS 

(a) When making its decision to approve, disapprove or approve with conditions an application for a 
residential model home, the Planning Commission shall consider that the model home: 

(1) Is appropriately located within the community and sited so that it is easily accessible without 
creating a nuisance or hazard to nearby properties. 

Lot 52 is immediately at the End of Woodhaven Dr., The Eastern access to the Development 
off of Bevelheymer. Lot 28 is immediately at the End of Haven Green Lane., The Northern access 
to the Development off of Walnut. 

(2) Is integrated into the residential character of the neighborhood with external lighting in 
conformity with customary residential lighting. 

The Models will Have Coach lights on the Garages, as will the Homes built in the Development. 
No additional lighting is Proposed for the Models. 

(3) Is approved with a limited duration which shall be determined by the Planning Commission 
after consultation with the applicant. Extensions of time may be granted by the Planning 
Commission, but decisions must be based on the same criteria as outlined in this section. 

Request for Model Permit is 24 Months Each. 

(4) Is identified by no more than one sign which shall be in compliance with regulations governing 
signage. 

One Sign is Proposed at Each Model. Drawing attached. 

(5) Shall not be used as a general real estate brokerage office where the sale of properties not 
owned or previously owned wholly or in part by the applicant occurs. 

Models Will be Used for Sales of Bob Webb Homes, Exclusively. No resale Activity will be 
performed at either Location. 

(b) The Planning Commission shall also consider and may set conditions on the following as part of its 
decision to allow a residential model home: 

(1) Hours of operation. 

12-5 PM Thursday Thru Monday 

(2) Number and types of employees; and maximum number of employees to be on the site at any 
one time. 

Model to be staffed with One (1) Bob webb Employee for the Purpose of Selling Homes in this 
Community.  

(3) Provisions for parking for employees and customers. 

Staff & Customers will park on the Driveways & on street Parking. Additional Sidewalks Have 
been installed to aid in On street Parking, As requested by Staff. Exhibits Submitted 



 

(4) Size, lighting, content and location of signage (no internally lighted signage shall be 
permitted). 

Model sign will be unlight. Sign Graphics & Locations Attached. 

(5) Landscaping and screening. 

Landscape Plans Attached. 

(6) The use of temporary sales offices (i.e., manufactured homes, mobile homes or trailers) on 
the site of a newly constructed subdivision shall be discouraged. 

Model requests Are for Single Family Home Structures. No Trailers, Mobile Homes are Proposed 

(c) In addition to the above-listed criteria for model homes, permission to occupy a temporary sales office 
for the purpose of home and lot sales within a newly constructed subdivision shall be granted only if the 
following conditions are met: 

(1) Such facility is located on a main arterial roadway or highway. 

Model Homes are Located with Direct Access to Bevelheymer Road & Walnut. 

(2) Such facility is substantially screened by the use of landscaping and/or mounding. 

Each Home is Extensively Landscaped , Plans Attached. Also Screened from Main Arteries With 
Green Space & Additional Landscaping 

(3) Such facility shall not create a nuisance to surrounding properties. 

Models are proposed with Limited Hours as to not Bring excessive traffic to the Neighborhood. 
Model will not produce excessive noise or Any noxious Fumes. 

(4) Such other conditions as the Planning Commission deems appropriate. 

(5) Sales offices in trailers or mobile homes are permitted for a duration of twelve (12) months. 
Users of such facilities may apply to the Planning Commission for an extension of an additional 
twelve (12) months. 

Trailer or Mobile Office are NOT Proposed. 

 







SCALE 1" = 10'

NORTH

RED OAK

5 - GREEN GIANT ARBORVITAE

3 - QUICKFIRE HYDRANGEA

6 - DRIFT ROSE

6 - CONEFLOWER3 - DWARF LILAC

2 - FAIRVIEW YEW

QUICKFIRE HYDRANGEA

4 - LITTLE LIME PRIME HYDRANGEA

8 - FAIRVIEW YEW

14 - DAYLILY

2 - KNOCKOUT ROSE

4 - GOLDMOUND SPIREA

MOONGLOW MAGNOLIA

2 - LITTLE LIME PRIME HYDRANGEA

3 - MAIDEN GRASS

3 - BURNING BUSH

3 - MAIDEN GRASS

TH
IS

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
EX

C
LU

SI
VE

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 

O
AK

LA
N

D
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S 

AN
D

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
ED

, T
R

AN
SF

ER
R

ED
, O

R
 O

TH
ER

W
IS

E 
U

SE
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
EI

R
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N

D
es

ig
n

As
so

ci
at

es

O
ak

la
nd

OF

SCALE

JOB NO.

SHEET

DRAWN

DATE

CHECKED

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

e

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t

11
56

 O
ak

la
nd

 P
ar

k 
Av

en
ue

si
te

 p
la

nn
in

g

(6
14

) 2
68

-3
83

4
C

ol
um

bu
s,

 O
hi

o 
43

22
4

REVISIONS BY

GARY HUSTON

MARCH 8, 2023

AS SHOWN

1 1

L-1

FOUNDATION PLANTINGS TO BE RAISED 6" FROM GRADE.

ALL UTILITIES TO BE SCREENED WITH EVERGREEN SHRUBS
OR A MIX OF EVERGREEN AND DECIDUOUS SHRUBS

ALL LAWN AREAS TO BE SOD.

BO
B 

W
EB

B 
- 

 S
PE

C
73

90
 H

A
V

EN
 G

RE
EN

 L
A

N
E 

LO
T 

28
N

EW
 A

LB
A

N
Y,

 O
H

IO





1-A

OHBA TABLE 1112.2.1
INSULATION AND FENESTRATION REQUIREMENTS BY COMPONENT

0.32 0.60 NR 49 15 or 13+3 13/17 30 10, 2ft  10/13

0.32 0.60 NR 49 13 13/17 30 10 2ft  10/13

1112.2.4.2.1 Testing

1112.3.2.2 Sealing

 OHBA TABLE 1112.3.2.2(a)
POST CONSTRUCTION DUCT TIGHTNESS TESTING

Compliance Path #1
Compliance Path #2

 OHBA TABLE 1112.3.2.2(b)
ROUGH-IN DUCT TIGHTNESS TESTING

Compliance Path #1 <4cfm (1.89 L/s)
Compliance Path #2

Exception:  Duct tightness test is not required if the air handler and all ducts are located within conditioned space

FENESTRATION U-
FACTOR

SKYLIGHT U-
FACTOR

GLAZED 
FENESTRATION 
SHGC

CEILING R-
VALUE

WOOD 
FRAME 
WALL R-
VALUE

MASS WALL 
R-VALUE

FLOOR R-
VALUE

BASEMENT 
WALL R-VALUE

SLAB R-
VALUE AND 
DEPTH

CRAWL SPACE 
WALL R-VALUE

Compliance 
Path #1

10/13 
(minimum 

4' feet)

Compliance 
Path #2

10/13 
(minimum 

4' feet)

Tested Air Leakage is less than 5 ACH when tested with a blower door at a pressure of 50 pascals (0.007psi).  Testing Shall occur after 
rough in and after installation of penetrations of the building envelope, including penetrations for utilities, plumbing, electrical, 

ventilation and combustion appliances.

Post-Construction test:  Post construction duct tightness shall be verified to meet the values prescribed in Table 1112.3.2.2(a) by testing 
either the "Leakage to Outdoors" or the "Total Leakage" in accordance with the chosen compliance path.  Testing shall be conducted at 
a pressure differential of 0.1 inch w.g. (25 Pa) across the entire system, including the manufacturer's air handler enclosure.  All register 

boots shall be taped or otherwise sealed during the test.

Leakage to Outdoors (per 100 ft 2 
(9.29 m 2) of conditioned floor area)

Total Leakage (per 100 ft 2 (9.29 
m 2) of conditioned floor area)

<6 cfm (2.83 L/s) <9 cfm (4.24 L/s)
<4 cfm (1.89 L/s) <6 cfm (2.83 L/s)

Rough-In test:  Rough-in duct tightness shall be verified to meet the values prescribed in Table 1112.3.2.2(b) by testing the "Total 
Leakage" in accordance with the chosen compliance path.  Testing shall be conducted at a pressure differential of 0.1 inch w.g. (25 Pa) 
across the roughed-in system, including the manufacturer's air handler enclosure, if installed at the time of the test.  All register boots 

shall be taped or otherwise sealed during the test.

Total Leakage - with air handler 
installed (per 100 ft 2 (9.29 m 2) of 

conditioned floor area)

Total Leakage - without air 
handler installed (per 100 ft 2 
(9.29 m 2) of conditioned floor 

area)
<6 cfm (2.83 L/s)
<4 cfm (1.89 L/s) <3 cfm (1.41 L/s)

COPYWRITE 2022
LEF ARCHITECTS, LLC

LEF Architects, LLC services
are protected by U.S. Copywright Law.
You may not modify, duplicate, rent, 

lease, loan, distribute or create derivative 
works based on information provided by 

these drawings in whole or part. Any 
reproductions or modifications by means 
now known or hereafter invented, without 

the express wrtten consent of  LEF 
Architects, LLC is strictly prohibited and 
will be prosecuted to the fullest extent of  

the law.

Job No. Sheet No.

Larry Folk - License #10772
Expiration Date 12/31/2023 

PRELIMINARY
BIDDING
CONSTRUCTION

LEF Architects, LLC
Residential - Commerical

“Fine Architecture .... by Design”

3131 Big Timber Loop
Lewis Center, Ohio 43035

614.604.9859
lefarchitects.com

2022-121

Spec. Residence
Lot #28

Woodhaven



2-A

COPYWRITE 2022
LEF ARCHITECTS, LLC

LEF Architects, LLC services
are protected by U.S. Copywright Law.
You may not modify, duplicate, rent, 

lease, loan, distribute or create derivative 
works based on information provided by 

these drawings in whole or part. Any 
reproductions or modifications by means 
now known or hereafter invented, without 

the express wrtten consent of  LEF 
Architects, LLC is strictly prohibited and 
will be prosecuted to the fullest extent of  

the law.

Job No. Sheet No.

Larry Folk - License #10772
Expiration Date 12/31/2023 

PRELIMINARY
BIDDING
CONSTRUCTION

LEF Architects, LLC
Residential - Commerical

“Fine Architecture .... by Design”

3131 Big Timber Loop
Lewis Center, Ohio 43035

614.604.9859
lefarchitects.com

2022-121

Spec. Residence
Lot #28

Woodhaven



2-B

COPYWRITE 2022
LEF ARCHITECTS, LLC

LEF Architects, LLC services
are protected by U.S. Copywright Law.
You may not modify, duplicate, rent, 

lease, loan, distribute or create derivative 
works based on information provided by 

these drawings in whole or part. Any 
reproductions or modifications by means 
now known or hereafter invented, without 

the express wrtten consent of  LEF 
Architects, LLC is strictly prohibited and 
will be prosecuted to the fullest extent of  

the law.

Job No. Sheet No.

Larry Folk - License #10772
Expiration Date 12/31/2023 

PRELIMINARY
BIDDING
CONSTRUCTION

LEF Architects, LLC
Residential - Commerical

“Fine Architecture .... by Design”

3131 Big Timber Loop
Lewis Center, Ohio 43035

614.604.9859
lefarchitects.com

2022-121

Spec. Residence
Lot #28

Woodhaven



3

COPYWRITE 2022
LEF ARCHITECTS, LLC

LEF Architects, LLC services
are protected by U.S. Copywright Law.
You may not modify, duplicate, rent, 

lease, loan, distribute or create derivative 
works based on information provided by 

these drawings in whole or part. Any 
reproductions or modifications by means 
now known or hereafter invented, without 

the express wrtten consent of  LEF 
Architects, LLC is strictly prohibited and 
will be prosecuted to the fullest extent of  

the law.

Job No. Sheet No.

Larry Folk - License #10772
Expiration Date 12/31/2023 

PRELIMINARY
BIDDING
CONSTRUCTION

LEF Architects, LLC
Residential - Commerical

“Fine Architecture .... by Design”

3131 Big Timber Loop
Lewis Center, Ohio 43035

614.604.9859
lefarchitects.com

2022-121

Spec. Residence
Lot #28

Woodhaven



4

COPYWRITE 2022
LEF ARCHITECTS, LLC

LEF Architects, LLC services
are protected by U.S. Copywright Law.
You may not modify, duplicate, rent, 

lease, loan, distribute or create derivative 
works based on information provided by 

these drawings in whole or part. Any 
reproductions or modifications by means 
now known or hereafter invented, without 

the express wrtten consent of  LEF 
Architects, LLC is strictly prohibited and 
will be prosecuted to the fullest extent of  

the law.

Job No. Sheet No.

Larry Folk - License #10772
Expiration Date 12/31/2023 

PRELIMINARY
BIDDING
CONSTRUCTION

LEF Architects, LLC
Residential - Commerical

“Fine Architecture .... by Design”

3131 Big Timber Loop
Lewis Center, Ohio 43035

614.604.9859
lefarchitects.com

2022-121

Spec. Residence
Lot #28

Woodhaven



5-A

COPYWRITE 2022
LEF ARCHITECTS, LLC

LEF Architects, LLC services
are protected by U.S. Copywright Law.
You may not modify, duplicate, rent, 

lease, loan, distribute or create derivative 
works based on information provided by 

these drawings in whole or part. Any 
reproductions or modifications by means 
now known or hereafter invented, without 

the express wrtten consent of  LEF 
Architects, LLC is strictly prohibited and 
will be prosecuted to the fullest extent of  

the law.

Job No. Sheet No.

Larry Folk - License #10772
Expiration Date 12/31/2023 

PRELIMINARY
BIDDING
CONSTRUCTION

LEF Architects, LLC
Residential - Commerical

“Fine Architecture .... by Design”

3131 Big Timber Loop
Lewis Center, Ohio 43035

614.604.9859
lefarchitects.com

2022-121

Spec. Residence
Lot #28

Woodhaven



5-B

COPYWRITE 2022
LEF ARCHITECTS, LLC

LEF Architects, LLC services
are protected by U.S. Copywright Law.
You may not modify, duplicate, rent, 

lease, loan, distribute or create derivative 
works based on information provided by 

these drawings in whole or part. Any 
reproductions or modifications by means 
now known or hereafter invented, without 

the express wrtten consent of  LEF 
Architects, LLC is strictly prohibited and 
will be prosecuted to the fullest extent of  

the law.

Job No. Sheet No.

Larry Folk - License #10772
Expiration Date 12/31/2023 

PRELIMINARY
BIDDING
CONSTRUCTION

LEF Architects, LLC
Residential - Commerical

“Fine Architecture .... by Design”

3131 Big Timber Loop
Lewis Center, Ohio 43035

614.604.9859
lefarchitects.com

2022-121

Spec. Residence
Lot #28

Woodhaven



5-C

COPYWRITE 2022
LEF ARCHITECTS, LLC

LEF Architects, LLC services
are protected by U.S. Copywright Law.
You may not modify, duplicate, rent, 

lease, loan, distribute or create derivative 
works based on information provided by 

these drawings in whole or part. Any 
reproductions or modifications by means 
now known or hereafter invented, without 

the express wrtten consent of  LEF 
Architects, LLC is strictly prohibited and 
will be prosecuted to the fullest extent of  

the law.

Job No. Sheet No.

Larry Folk - License #10772
Expiration Date 12/31/2023 

PRELIMINARY
BIDDING
CONSTRUCTION

LEF Architects, LLC
Residential - Commerical

“Fine Architecture .... by Design”

3131 Big Timber Loop
Lewis Center, Ohio 43035

614.604.9859
lefarchitects.com

2022-121

Spec. Residence
Lot #28

Woodhaven



5-D

COPYWRITE 2022
LEF ARCHITECTS, LLC

LEF Architects, LLC services
are protected by U.S. Copywright Law.
You may not modify, duplicate, rent, 

lease, loan, distribute or create derivative 
works based on information provided by 

these drawings in whole or part. Any 
reproductions or modifications by means 
now known or hereafter invented, without 

the express wrtten consent of  LEF 
Architects, LLC is strictly prohibited and 
will be prosecuted to the fullest extent of  

the law.

Job No. Sheet No.

Larry Folk - License #10772
Expiration Date 12/31/2023 

PRELIMINARY
BIDDING
CONSTRUCTION

LEF Architects, LLC
Residential - Commerical

“Fine Architecture .... by Design”

3131 Big Timber Loop
Lewis Center, Ohio 43035

614.604.9859
lefarchitects.com

2022-121

Spec. Residence
Lot #28

Woodhaven



Side View

3"

3’-0"

12"

Concrete
Foundation

Concrete
Foundation

Steel
Tube

3’-0"

12"

Steel
Tube

3'-0"

4'-6"
4'-0"

4'-5"

PMS 1815

614-530-4926

Woodhaven

Sales Center

Client: 

Project Name: 

Drawing Date: 10-17-23

Drawing #: 23-603
Client Signature:                                     Date:

APPROVAL:
Copy, colors, size, quantity

SP:  KR D: BW

This sign is intended to be 
installed in accordance of article 
600 of the National Electric Code 
and or other applicable local 

codes. This includes proper grounding and 
bonding of the sign.

2757 Scioto Parkway, Columbus, OH 43221

614.276.1181 • morrisonsigns.com

This design is the property of Morrison Sign Company, Inc and remains our property until sign is purchased. Design may be purchased for a sum of Two Hundred and Fifty dollars ($250.00) and is protected by U.S. copyright law. Any attempt to reproduce this design or use by others for any purpose, without written consent is subject to prosecution to the fullest extent allowed by law.

Bob Webb | Woodhaven

Sales Center Sign

Vinyl graphics on a 3’x4’ aluminum panel
Panel is mounted to custom built aluminum frame

DOUBLE FACE


	Agenda 23 1120
	DRAFT Meeting Minutes 23 1016
	FDP-77-2023 CME
	VAR-79-2023 CME
	VAR-89-2023 Rinchem
	VAR-104-2023 Calverton
	CU-105-2023 Cornerstone
	CU-108-2023 Woodhaven
	CU-109-2023 Woodhaven



